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CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of

Securities to be Registered

Amount

to be

Registered

Maximum

Offering Price

Per Unit

Maximum

Aggregate

Offering Price

Amount of

Registration Fee (1)
4.70% Senior Notes due 2022 $700,000,000 99.810% $698,670,000 $80,068

(1) Calculated in accordance with Rule 457(r) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and relates to the Registration Statement on Form
S-3 (File No. 333-166805) filed by the Registrant on May 13, 2010, as amended by the Post Effective Amendment No. 1 filed by the
Registrant on January 3, 2012.
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Filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2)
Registration No. 333-166805

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO

PROSPECTUS DATED JANUARY 3, 2012

$700,000,000

American Tower Corporation

4.70% Senior Notes due 2022

We are offering $700 million of Senior Notes due 2022 (the �notes�). We will pay cash interest on the notes on March 15 and September 15 of
each year, beginning on September 15, 2012. The notes will mature on March 15, 2022.

The notes will be general, unsecured obligations of American Tower Corporation and will rank equally in right of payment with all other senior
unsecured debt obligations of American Tower Corporation. The notes will be structurally subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness
and other obligations of our subsidiaries.

We may redeem the notes at any time, in whole or in part, in cash at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus
a make-whole premium, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

The notes will not be listed on any securities exchange. Currently, there is no public market for the notes.

Investing in the notes involves risks. See �Risk Factors� beginning on page S-8 and those described as risk factors in Item 1A of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Public 
Offering

Price(1)

Underwriting

Discount

Proceeds Before
Expenses to American
Tower Corporation

Per note 99.810% 0.650% 99.160% 
Total $ 698,670,000 $ 4,550,000 $ 694,120,000

(1) Plus accrued interest, if any, from March 12, 2012, if settlement occurs after that date.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities
or determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a
criminal offense.

The underwriters expect to deliver the notes in book-entry form only through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company for the accounts of
its participants, including Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the Euroclear System, against
payment on March 12, 2012.

Joint Book-Running Managers

Citigroup J.P. Morgan Mizuho Securities Morgan Stanley TD Securities

Senior Co-Managers

Barclays Capital Goldman, Sachs & Co. RBC Capital Markets RBS

Co-Managers

BofA Merrill Lynch Credit Suisse Santander

The date of this prospectus supplement is March 7, 2012.
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We are responsible for the information contained and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and accompanying
prospectus. We have not, and the underwriters have not, authorized anyone to give you any other information, and we take no
responsibility for any other information that others may give you. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction
where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained or incorporated by reference in this
prospectus supplement or accompanying prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date of the document containing the
information.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document consists of two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering. The second
part is the accompanying prospectus, which describes more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering. You should read
both this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, together with the documents incorporated by reference and the additional
information described below under the heading �Where You Can Find More Information.�

If the description of the offering varies between this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on the
information in this prospectus supplement.

Any statement made in this prospectus supplement or in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus
supplement will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus supplement to the extent that a statement contained in
this prospectus supplement or in any other subsequently filed document that is also incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in
this prospectus supplement modifies or supersedes that statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so
modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus supplement.

NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement and accompanying prospectus contain or incorporate by reference statements about future events and expectations,
or forward-looking statements, all of which are inherently uncertain. We have based those forward-looking statements on our current
expectations and projections about future results. When we use words such as �anticipates,� �intends,� �plans,� �believes,� �estimates,� �expects,� or similar
expressions, we do so to identify forward-looking statements. Examples of forward-looking statements include statements we make regarding
our ability to qualify or to remain qualified as a real estate investment trust (�REIT�); the amount and timing of any future distributions including
those we are required to make as a REIT; our substantial leverage and debt service obligations; future prospects of growth in the
communications site leasing industry; the level of future expenditures by companies in this industry and other trends in this industry; the effects
of consolidation among companies in our industry and among our customers and other competitive pressures; economic, political and other
events, particularly those relating to our international operations; our ability to maintain or increase our market share; changes in environmental,
tax and other laws; our ability to protect our rights to the land under our towers; natural disasters and similar events; the possibility of health
risks relating to radio emissions; our future operating results; our future purchases under our stock repurchase program; our future capital
expenditure levels; our future financing transactions; and our plans to fund our future liquidity needs. These statements are based on our
management�s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. These assumptions could prove inaccurate.
See �Risk Factors.� These forward-looking statements may be found in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus generally as
well as the documents incorporated by reference.
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You should keep in mind that any forward-looking statement we make in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the
documents incorporated by reference or elsewhere speaks only as of the date on which we make it. New risks and uncertainties arise from time
to time, and it is impossible for us to predict these
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events or how they may affect us. In any event, these and other important factors, including those set forth under the caption �Risk Factors� in this
prospectus supplement, in the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference, may cause actual results to differ
materially from those indicated by our forward-looking statements. We do not intend to update or revise the forward-looking statements we
make in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference or elsewhere, except as may be
required by law. In light of these risks and uncertainties, you should keep in mind that the future events or circumstances described in any
forward-looking statement we make in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference or
elsewhere might not occur.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

This prospectus supplement and accompanying prospectus contain or incorporate by reference estimates regarding market data, which are based
on our internal estimates, independent industry publications, reports by market research firms and/or other published independent sources. In
each case, we believe these estimates are reasonable. However, market data is subject to change and cannot always be verified with complete
certainty due to limits on the availability and reliability of raw data, the voluntary nature of the data gathering process and other limitations and
uncertainties inherent in any statistical survey of market data. As a result, you should be aware that market data set forth in this prospectus
supplement, accompanying prospectus or incorporated by reference, and estimates and beliefs based on such data, may not be reliable.

S-iii
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

This summary may not contain all the information that may be important to you. You should read this entire prospectus supplement, the
accompanying prospectus and those documents incorporated by reference into the prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus,
including the risk factors and the financial statements and related notes, before making an investment decision. Unless otherwise indicated or
the context otherwise requires, references to �we,� �us,� �our� and �American Tower� are references to American Tower Corporation and its
predecessor, as applicable, and its consolidated subsidiaries as the context requires. References herein to our �common stock� refer to our
common stock and the Class A common stock of our predecessor, as applicable.

American Tower Corporation

American Tower Corporation was created as a subsidiary of American Radio Systems Corporation in 1995 to own, manage, develop and lease
communications and broadcast tower sites, and was spun off into a free-standing public company in 1998. Since inception, we have grown our
communications site portfolio through acquisitions, long-term lease arrangements, development and construction, and through mergers with and
acquisitions of other tower operators, increasing the size of our portfolio to over 45,000 communications sites. In addition, the Company has
entered into definitive agreements to acquire up to approximately 2,250 communications sites in Colombia, Mexico and Uganda for
approximately $350.0 million. The Company expects to close on these additional communications sites during the first half of 2012.

To effect its conversion to a REIT for federal income tax purposes, effective December 31, 2011, American Tower Corporation merged with and
into its wholly owned subsidiary, American Tower REIT, Inc. American Tower REIT, Inc., the surviving corporation, was renamed American
Tower Corporation and began operating as a REIT for federal income tax purposes effective January 1, 2012.

American Tower Corporation is a holding company, and we conduct our operations through our directly and indirectly owned subsidiaries. Our
principal United States operating subsidiaries are American Towers LLC and SpectraSite Communications, LLC. We conduct our international
operations through our subsidiary, American Tower International, Inc., which in turn conducts operations through its various international
operating subsidiaries and joint ventures. Our international operations consist primarily of our operations in Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Ghana,
India, Mexico, Peru and South Africa.

Our principal executive office is located at 116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116. Our main telephone number at that address is
(617) 375-7500.

S-1
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THE OFFERING

Issuer American Tower Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

Securities Offered $700.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.70% senior notes due 2022.

Maturity Date March 15, 2022

Interest Payments March 15 and September 15 of each year, beginning on September 15, 2012. Interest will
accrue from March 12, 2012.

Ranking The notes will be general, unsecured obligations and will rank equally in right of payment
with all of our other senior unsecured debt obligations. As of December 31, 2011, after
giving effect to the transactions described under �Capitalization,� we would have had
approximately $4,925.2 million of senior unsecured indebtedness outstanding. In
addition, we would have had approximately $1,365.0 million in aggregate undrawn loan
commitments under our $1.0 billion unsecured revolving credit facility entered into in
April 2011 (the �2011 Credit Facility�) and our $1.0 billion unsecured revolving credit
facility entered into in January 2012 (the �2012 Credit Facility�), net of approximately $3.0
million of outstanding undrawn letters of credit.

The notes will be structurally subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness and
other obligations of our subsidiaries. Our subsidiaries are not guarantors of the notes. As
of December 31, 2011, after giving effect to the transactions described under
�Capitalization,� our subsidiaries would have had approximately $2,335.7 million of total
debt obligations (excluding intercompany obligations), including:

� $1,750.0 million in commercial mortgage pass-through certificates backed by the debt
of two special purpose subsidiaries, which is secured primarily by mortgages on those
subsidiaries� interests in 5,285 broadcast and wireless communications towers and the
related tower sites;

� $84.9 million of subsidiary South African Rand denominated debt (687.0 million
South African Rand);

� $44.4 million of subsidiary Colombian Peso denominated debt (82.7 billion
Colombian Pesos);

� $72.8 million of wholly owned subsidiary Colombian Peso denominated debt
(141.1 billion Colombian Pesos);

� $127.5 million of U.S. Dollar denominated debt entered into by our 51% owned
Ghana joint venture (represents the portion of the debt
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reported as our outstanding debt, after elimination in consolidation of the portion of the
debt loaned by one of our wholly owned subsidiaries);

� $209.3 million in secured cellular site revenue notes secured by, among other things,
liens on approximately 1,470 real property interests and assumed by us in connection
with the acquisition of certain legal entities from Unison Holdings, LLC and Unison
Site Management II, L.L.C.; and

� approximately $46.8 million of other debt, which consists primarily of capital leases
attributable to wholly owned subsidiaries.

Optional Redemption We may redeem the notes at any time, in whole or in part, in cash, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus a make-whole premium, together
with accrued interest to the redemption date.

Change of Control Offer Following a Change of Control and Ratings Decline (each as defined herein), we will be
required to offer to purchase all of the notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the
principal amount of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to but not
including the date of repurchase. See �Description of Notes�Repurchase of Notes Upon a
Change of Control Triggering Event.� The 2011 Credit Facility and the 2012 Credit
Facility might restrict our ability to make such a payment.

Certain Covenants The provisions of the indenture governing the notes will, among other things, limit our
ability to:

� create liens; and

� merge, consolidate or sell assets.

These covenants are subject to a number of important exceptions.

Use of Proceeds We expect that the net proceeds of this offering will be approximately $693.0 million,
after deducting discounts and commissions payable to the underwriters and estimated
expenses of this offering payable by us. We intend to use the net proceeds to refinance
existing indebtedness incurred under our credit facilities, which have been used to fund
recent acquisitions. Subject to the terms of our credit facilities, amounts outstanding
thereunder that are repaid may be re-borrowed at a later date. See �Use of Proceeds� and
�Capitalization.�

Conflicts of Interest As described in �Use of Proceeds,� some of the net proceeds of this offering may be used to
pay down borrowings under the 2011 Credit Facility and the 2012 Credit Facility.
Because more than 5% of the proceeds of this offering, not including underwriting
compensation, may be received by affiliates of certain underwriters in this offering, this
offering is being conducted in compliance with Financial Industry Regulatory Authority
(�FINRA�) Rule 5121.
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No Prior Market We do not intend to list the notes on any securities exchange or any automated dealer
quotation system. Although the underwriters have informed us that they presently intend
to make a market in the notes, they are not obligated to do so and may discontinue
market-making at any time at their sole discretion without notice. Accordingly, we cannot
assure you that a liquid market for the notes will develop or be maintained.

Denominations The notes will be issued in minimum denominations of $2,000 and multiples of $1,000
thereafter.

Trustee The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.

Financial Advisor EA Markets Securities LLC

Risk Factors Before investing in the notes, you should carefully consider all of the information in this
prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or incorporated by reference herein
or therein, including the discussions under �Risk Factors� beginning on page S-8 and in
Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2011, which is incorporated by reference herein.

S-4
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SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected historical consolidated financial data for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and as of December 31, 2011
and 2010 is derived from historical audited consolidated financial information included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011 (the �2011 Annual Report�), which is incorporated herein by reference. The selected historical consolidated financial data for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is derived from historical financial
information not included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.

You should read the summary historical consolidated financial data in conjunction with our �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,� our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes which are incorporated by reference in this
prospectus supplement, and the information set forth under the heading �Risk Factors.� Year-to-year comparisons are significantly affected by our
acquisitions, dispositions and construction of towers.

S-5
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

(In thousands)
Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Rental and management $ 1,425,975 $ 1,547,035 $ 1,668,420 $ 1,936,373 $ 2,386,185
Network development services 30,619 46,469 55,694 48,962 57,347

Total operating revenues 1,456,594 1,593,504 1,724,114 1,985,335 2,443,532
Operating expenses:
Cost of operations (exclusive of items shown separately below)
Rental and management(1) 343,450 363,024 383,990 447,629 590,272
Network development services(2) 16,172 26,831 32,385 26,957 30,684
Depreciation, amortization and accretion(3) 522,928 405,332 414,619 460,726 555,517
Selling, general, administrative and development expense 186,483 180,374 201,694 229,769 288,824
Other operating expenses 9,198 11,189 19,168 35,876 58,103

Total operating expenses 1,078,231 986,750 1,051,856 1,200,957 1,523,400

Operating income 378,363 606,754 672,258 784,378 920,132
Interest income, TV Azteca, net 14,207 14,253 14,210 14,212 14,214
Interest income 10,848 3,413 1,722 5,024 7,378
Interest expense (235,824) (253,584) (249,803) (246,018) (311,854) 
Loss on retirement of long-term obligations (35,429) (4,904) (18,194) (1,886) �  
Other income (expense) 20,675 5,988 1,294 315 (122,975) 

Income before income taxes and income on equity method investments 152,840 371,920 421,487 556,025 506,895
Income tax provision (59,809) (135,509) (182,565) (182,489) (125,080) 
Income on equity method investments 19 22 26 40 25

Income from continuing operations 93,050 236,433 238,948 373,576 381,840
(Loss) income from discontinued operations (36,396) 110,982 8,179 30 �  

Net income 56,654 347,415 247,127 373,606 381,840
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (338) (169) (532) (670) 14,622

Net income attributable to American Tower Corporation $ 56,316 $ 347,246 $ 246,595 $ 372,936 $ 396,462

Other Data:
Capital expenditures $ 154,381 $ 243,484 $ 250,262 $ 346,664 $ 523,015
Cash provided by operating activities 692,679 773,258 842,126 1,020,977 1,165,942
Cash used for investing activities (186,180) (274,940) (543,066) (1,300,902) (2,790,812) 
Cash (used for) provided by financing activities (754,640) (388,172) (194,942) 910,330 1,086,095
Sites owned and operated at end of period 22,807 23,740 27,256 35,074 45,478

As of December 31,

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

(In thousands)
Balance Sheet Data(4):
Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash)(5) $ 86,807 $ 194,943 $ 295,129 $ 959,935 $ 372,966
Property and equipment, net 3,045,186 3,022,636 3,169,623 3,683,474 4,883,473
Total assets 8,130,457 8,211,665 8,519,931 10,370,084 12,232,430
Long-term obligations, including current portion 4,285,284 4,333,146 4,211,581 5,587,388 7,236,308
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Total American Tower Corporation stockholders� equity 3,022,092 2,991,322 3,315,082 3,501,444 3,287,220

(1) For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007, includes approximately $1.1 million, $0, $0, $0, and $0, respectively, in stock-based
compensation expense.

(2) For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007, includes approximately $1.2 million, $0, $0, $0, and $0, respectively, in stock-based
compensation expense.

(3) In 2008, we completed a review of the estimated useful lives of our tower assets. Based upon this review, we revised the estimated useful lives of our towers
and certain related intangible assets, primarily our network location intangible assets, from our historical estimate of 15 years to a revised estimate of 20
years. We accounted for this change as a change in estimate which was accounted for prospectively, effective January 1, 2008. For the year ended December
31, 2008, the change resulted in a reduction in depreciation and amortization expense of approximately $121.2 million and an increase in net income of
approximately $74.4 million.

(4) Balances have been revised to reflect purchase accounting measurement period adjustments.
(5) As of December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011, amount includes approximately $53.7 million, $51.9 million, $47.8 million, $76.0 million and $42.8

million, respectively, of restricted funds pledged as collateral to secure obligations and cash, the use of which is otherwise limited by contractual provisions.

S-6
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for each of the last five years:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges(1) 1.50x 2.12x 2.27x 2.65x 2.19x

(1) For the purpose of this calculation, �earnings� consists of income from continuing operations before income taxes, income on equity method investments and
fixed charges (excluding interest capitalized and amortization of interest capitalized). �Fixed charges� consists of interest expensed and capitalized,
amortization of debt discount and related issuance costs and the component of rental expense associated with operating leases believed by management to be
representative of the interest factor thereon.

S-7
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risk factors, in addition to the other information presented and incorporated by reference in this
prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, in evaluating us, our business and an investment in the notes. A description of the
risks related to our business is included in the �Risk Factors� section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2011, which is incorporated by reference herein. The risks and uncertainties described below and incorporated by reference are not the only
ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties that we do not currently know about, or that we currently believe are immaterial, may also
adversely impact our business. Events relating to any of the following risks as well as other risks and uncertainties could seriously harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations. In such a case, the trading value of the notes could decline, or we may be unable to meet
our obligations under the notes, which in turn could cause you to lose all or part of your investment.

Risks related to this offering

Our leverage and debt service obligations may materially and adversely affect us.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness. As of December 31, 2011, after giving effect to the transactions described under �Capitalization,�
we would have had approximately $7,260.9 million of consolidated debt and the ability to borrow additional aggregate amounts of
approximately $1,365.0 million under the 2011 Credit Facility and the 2012 Credit Facility, net of approximately $3.0 million of outstanding
undrawn letters of credit. Our substantial level of indebtedness increases the possibility that we may be unable to generate cash sufficient to pay
when due the principal of, interest on, or other amounts due with respect to, our indebtedness. We are also permitted, subject to certain
restrictions under our existing indebtedness, to obtain additional long-term debt and working capital lines of credit to meet future financing
needs. This would effectively increase our total leverage. Furthermore, the indenture relating to the notes does not prohibit us from incurring
additional indebtedness. Our leverage could have significant negative consequences on our financial condition and results of operations,
including:

� impairing our ability to meet one or more of the financial ratio covenants contained in our debt agreements or to generate cash sufficient
to pay interest or principal due under those agreements, which could result in an acceleration of some or all of our outstanding debt and
the loss of towers subject to our securitization transaction if an uncured default occurs;

� increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

� limiting our ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing;

� increasing our borrowing costs if our current investment grade debt ratings decline;

� requiring the dedication of a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service our debt, thereby reducing the amount of
our cash flow available for other purposes, including capital expenditures;

� requiring us to sell debt or equity securities or to sell some of our core assets, possibly on unfavorable terms, to meet payment
obligations;
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� limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the markets in which we compete;

� limiting our ability to repurchase our common stock; and

� placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage to less leveraged competitors and competitors that may have better access to capital
resources.

Our holding company structure results in structural subordination of the notes and may affect our ability to make payments on the
notes.

The notes will be obligations exclusively of American Tower Corporation and not of our subsidiaries. However, all of our operations are
conducted through our subsidiaries. Our cash flow and our ability to service our debt, including the notes, is dependent upon distributions of
earnings, loans or other payments by our

S-8
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subsidiaries to us. Our subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities and have no obligation to pay any amounts due on the notes or to
provide us with funds for our payment obligations, whether by dividends, distributions, loans or other consideration. Payments to us by our
subsidiaries are contingent upon our subsidiaries� earnings and cash flows. Moreover, our subsidiaries may incur indebtedness that may restrict or
prohibit the making of distributions, the payment of dividends or the making of loans by such subsidiaries to us. The notes are structurally
subordinated to all existing, and will be structurally subordinated to all future, indebtedness and other obligations issued by our subsidiaries.
Certain of our subsidiary indebtedness is also secured. As of December 31, 2011, after giving effect to the transactions described under
�Capitalization,� our subsidiaries would have had approximately $2,335.7 million of total debt obligations (excluding intercompany obligations),
including:

� $1,750.0 million in commercial mortgage pass-through certificates backed by the debt of two special purpose subsidiaries, which is
secured primarily by mortgages on those subsidiaries� interests in 5,285 broadcast and wireless communications towers and the related
tower sites;

� $84.9 million of subsidiary South African Rand denominated debt (687.0 million South African Rand) that was used to partially finance
the purchase of towers in South Africa;

� $44.4 million of subsidiary Colombian Peso denominated debt (82.7 billion Colombian Pesos) that was used to finance the purchase of
towers in Colombia;

� $72.8 million of wholly owned subsidiary Colombian Peso denominated debt (141.1 billion Colombian Pesos) that was used to partially
finance the purchase of towers and of exclusive use rights in Colombia;

� $127.5 million of U.S. Dollar denominated debt entered into by our 51% owned Ghana joint venture in connection with the
establishment of that joint venture (represents the portion of the debt reported as our outstanding debt, after elimination in consolidation
of the portion of the debt loaned by one of our wholly owned subsidiaries);

� $209.3 million in secured cellular site revenue notes secured by, among other things, liens on approximately 1,470 real property
interests and assumed by us in connection with the acquisition of certain legal entities from Unison Holdings, LLC and Unison Site
Management II, L.L.C.; and

� approximately $46.8 million of other debt, which consists primarily of capital leases attributable to wholly owned subsidiaries.

In the event of our insolvency, liquidation or reorganization, or should any of the indebtedness of our subsidiaries be accelerated because of a
default, the holders of those debt obligations would have a claim to the proceeds from any liquidation of, or distribution from, certain of our
subsidiaries prior to a claim by holders of the notes.

There may be no public market for the notes offered hereby.

Prior to the sale of the notes offered by this prospectus supplement, there has been no public market for the notes and we cannot assure you as to:

� the liquidity of any market that may develop;
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� your ability to sell your notes; or

� the price at which you would be able to sell your notes.

If a market were to exist for the notes, the notes could trade at prices that are lower than the principal amount of your purchase price, depending
on many factors, including prevailing interest rates, the market for similar notes and our financial performance. We do not intend to apply for
listing of the notes on any securities exchange or any automated dealer quotation system.
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The underwriters have advised us that they presently intend to make a market in the notes. The underwriters are not obligated, however, to make
a market in the notes, and may discontinue any such market-making at any time at their sole discretion. In addition, any market-making activity
will be subject to the limits imposed by securities laws. Accordingly, we cannot assure you as to the development or liquidity of any market for
the notes.

We may be unable to repay the notes when due or repurchase the notes when we are required to do so and holders may be unable to
require us to repurchase their notes in certain circumstances.

At final maturity of the notes or in the event of acceleration of the notes following an event of default, the entire outstanding principal amount of
the notes will become due and payable. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Triggering Event (as described in this prospectus
supplement), we will be required to offer to repurchase in cash all outstanding notes at a redemption price equal to 101% of the principal amount
of the notes plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the repurchase date. If we were unable to make the required payments
or repurchases of the notes, it would constitute an event of default under the notes and, as a result, under the 2011 Credit Facility, the 2012
Credit Facility and other outstanding indebtedness. The indentures for our other outstanding indebtedness also provide for repurchase rights
upon a change of control and, in some cases, other fundamental changes under different terms. As a result, holders of our other indebtedness
may have the ability to require us to repurchase their debt securities before the holders of the notes would have such repurchase rights. It is
possible that we will not have sufficient funds at maturity, upon acceleration or at the time of the Change of Control Triggering Event or other
fundamental change to make the required repurchase of notes and other indebtedness. In addition, a Change of Control (as described in this
prospectus supplement) and certain other change of control events would constitute an event of default under the 2011 Credit Facility and the
2012 Credit Facility.

Holders may not be able to require us to purchase their notes in certain circumstances involving a significant change in the composition of our
board of directors, including a proxy contest where our board of directors does not endorse the dissident slate of directors but approves them as
Continuing Directors (as described in this prospectus supplement). In this regard, a decision of the Delaware Chancery Court (not involving us
or our securities) considered a change of control redemption provision of an indenture governing publicly traded debt securities that is
substantially similar to the change of control event described in clause (3) of the definition of �Change of Control.� In its decision, the court noted
that a board of directors may �approve� a dissident shareholder�s nominees solely for purposes of such an indenture, provided the board of directors
determines in good faith that the election of the dissident nominees would not be materially adverse to the interests of the corporation or its
stockholders (without taking into consideration the interests of the holders of debt securities in making this determination). See �Description of
Notes�Repurchase of Notes Upon a Change of Control Triggering Event.�

The notes effectively rank junior to any secured indebtedness we incur in the future.

The notes are our general unsecured obligations, and effectively rank junior to any secured indebtedness we incur in the future to the extent of
the assets securing such indebtedness. In the event of our bankruptcy, liquidation, reorganization or other winding up, our assets that secure
indebtedness will be available to pay obligations on the notes only after all such secured indebtedness has been repaid in full from such assets.
As a result, there may not be sufficient assets remaining to pay amounts due on any or all of the notes then outstanding.

S-10
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We expect that the net proceeds of this offering will be approximately $693.0 million, after deducting discounts and commissions payable to the
underwriters and estimated expenses of this offering payable by us. We intend to use up to approximately $693.0 million of the net proceeds to
refinance existing indebtedness incurred under our credit facilities, which have been used to fund recent acquisitions. Pending use, the net
proceeds may be invested temporarily in short-term marketable securities. Our management will have broad discretion in the application of the
net proceeds, and the purposes for which the net proceeds are used may change from those described above.

The 2011 Credit Facility has a term of five years and matures on April 8, 2016. As of December 31, 2011, we had no amounts outstanding under
the 2011 Credit Facility. In January 2012, we borrowed $625.0 million under the 2011 Credit Facility. Subject to the terms of the 2011 Credit
Facility, amounts outstanding thereunder that are repaid may be re-borrowed at a later date. At December 31, 2011, the interest rate applicable to
the 2011 Credit Facility was 1.850% above the London Interbank Offered Rate (�LIBOR�).

The 2012 Credit Facility has a term of five years and matures on January 31, 2017. In January 2012, we borrowed $700.0 million under the 2012
Credit Facility. Subject to the terms of the 2012 Credit Facility, amounts outstanding thereunder that are repaid may be re-borrowed at a later
date. At closing, the interest rate applicable to the 2012 Credit Facility was 1.625% above LIBOR.

Affiliates of some of the underwriters are lenders, and in some cases agents or managers for the lenders, under the 2011 Credit Facility or the
2012 Credit Facility.

S-11
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table shows our cash and cash equivalents and capitalization as of December 31, 2011:

� on a historical basis;

� on an �as adjusted� basis, after giving effect to the following: (i) borrowings under the 2011 Credit Facility of $625.0 million in January
2012, (ii) borrowings under the 2012 Credit Facility of $700.0 million in January 2012, (iii) the associated repayment of all outstanding
amounts under our $1.25 billion unsecured revolving credit facility (the �Revolving Credit Facility�) and $325.0 million term loan (the
�Term Loan�) in January 2012 and (iv) borrowings under our Colombian bridge loan of $17.6 million in February 2012; and

� on an �as further adjusted� basis, after giving effect to the receipt of approximately $693.0 million, after deducting discounts
and commissions payable to the underwriters and estimated expenses payable by us, and the use of up to approximately
$625.0 million of the net proceeds to repay existing outstanding indebtedness under the 2011 Credit Facility and
approximately $68.0 million to repay existing outstanding indebtedness under the 2012 Credit Facility.

In addition, we have the ability to borrow additional amounts under the 2011 Credit Facility and the 2012 Credit Facility. You should read the
capitalization table below in conjunction with �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� and our
consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.

As of December 31, 2011

Historical As Adjusted
As Further
Adjusted

(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents(1)(2) $ 330,191 $ 330,191 $ 330,191

Long-term debt, including current portion(3):
American Tower subsidiary debt:
Commercial mortgage pass-through certificates,
series 2007-1 $ 1,750,000 $ 1,750,000 $ 1,750,000
Unison notes, Series 2010-1 Class C, Series 2010-2 Class C and Series 2010-2 Class F
notes 209,321 209,321 209,321
South African facility(4) 84,920 84,920 84,920
Colombian bridge loan(5) 26,780 44,365 44,365
Colombian short-term credit facility(5) 72,811 72,811 72,811
Ghana loan(6) 127,466 127,466 127,466
Capital leases and other long-term subsidiary debt 46,818 46,818 46,818

Total American Tower subsidiary debt 2,318,116 2,335,701 2,335,701
American Tower Corporation debt:
Revolving Credit Facility 1,000,000 �  �  
Term Loan 325,000 �  �  
2011 Credit Facility �  625,000 �  
2012 Credit Facility �  700,000 632,000
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5.05% senior notes due 2020 699,258 699,258 699,258
4.50% senior notes due 2018 999,313 999,313 999,313
4.625% senior notes due 2015 599,489 599,489 599,489
5.90% senior notes due 2021 499,302 499,302 499,302
7.00% senior notes due 2017 500,000 500,000 500,000
7.25% senior notes due 2019 295,830 295,830 295,830
Notes offered hereby �  �  700,000

Total American Tower Corporation debt 4,918,192 4,918,192 4,925,192

Total long-term debt, including current portion $ 7,236,308 $ 7,253,893 $ 7,260,893
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As of December 31, 2011

Historical As Adjusted
As Further
Adjusted

(In thousands)
Stockholders� equity:
Common stock(7) 3,936 3,936 3,936
Additional paid-in capital 4,903,800 4,903,800 4,903,800
Accumulated deficit (1,477,899) (1,477,899) (1,477,899) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (142,617) (142,617) (142,617) 
Treasury stock(1)(8) �  �  �  

American Tower Corporation stockholders� equity 3,287,220 3,287,220 3,287,220
Non-controlling interest 122,922 122,922 122,922

Total stockholders� equity 3,410,142 3,410,142 3,410,142

Total capitalization $ 10,646,450 $ 10,664,035 $ 10,671,035

(1) Does not reflect the repurchase of approximately 61,900 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $3.9
million, including commissions and fees, during the period from January 1, 2012 through February 29, 2012 pursuant to our previously
announced stock repurchase program.

(2) As of December 31, 2011, amount excludes approximately $42.8 million of restricted funds pledged as collateral to secure obligations and
cash, the use of which is otherwise limited by contractual provisions.

(3) Excludes intercompany indebtedness that is eliminated in our consolidated financial statements.
(4) The South African facility is denominated in South African Rand.
(5) The Colombian short-term credit facility and the Colombian bridge loan are denominated in Colombian Pesos.
(6) The Ghana loan is denominated in U.S. Dollars.
(7) Common stock consists of common stock, par value $.01 per share � 1,000,000,000 shares authorized, 393,642,079 shares outstanding, as

of December 31, 2011.
(8) As part of our conversion to a REIT, all shares of treasury stock outstanding as of December 31, 2011 were retired.
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DESCRIPTION OF NOTES

You can find the definitions of certain terms used in this description under the subheading �� Certain Definitions.� In this description, the
references to �American Tower,� �we,� �us� or �our� refer only to American Tower Corporation (and not to any of its affiliates, including
Subsidiaries). The following description supplements and, to the extent inconsistent therewith, replaces the description of the general terms and
provisions of the debt securities set forth in the accompanying prospectus.

American Tower Corporation will issue the notes under an indenture dated as of May 13, 2010, between us and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, as previously amended and supplemented and as further supplemented by a fifth supplemental indenture
thereto, relating to the notes. We refer to the indenture as so supplemented as the �indenture.� The terms of the notes include those stated in the
indenture and those made part of the indenture by reference to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the �Trust Indenture Act�).

The following description is a summary of the material provisions of the indenture and does not restate the indenture in its entirety. We urge you
to read the indenture because the indenture, and not this description, defines your rights as holders of the notes. Copies of the indenture are
available from the trustee and a copy has been filed with the registration statement of which the accompanying prospectus is a part, as set forth
below under �Where You Can Find More Information.� We use certain defined terms in this description that are not defined below under ��
Certain Definitions� or elsewhere in this description; these terms have the meanings assigned to them in the indenture.

General

We will issue $700.0 million aggregate principal amount of notes in this offering.

The notes will be issued in minimum denominations of $2,000 and multiples of $1,000 thereafter.

We may, without the consent of the holders of the notes, issue additional notes having the same ranking, interest rate, maturity and other terms
as the notes previously issued. Any additional notes having such similar terms, together with the notes previously issued, will constitute a single
series of notes previously issued under the indenture.

The notes will mature on March 15, 2022. Accrued and unpaid interest on the notes will be payable in U.S. Dollars semi-annually in arrears on
March 15 and September 15 of each year, which we refer to as �interest payment dates,� beginning on September 15, 2012 to the persons in whose
names the notes are registered at the close of business on the preceding March 1 and September 1 respectively, which we refer to as �record dates.�
Interest on the notes will accrue from March 12, 2012 and will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.

Each payment of interest on the notes will include interest accrued through the day before the applicable interest payment date. Any payment
required to be made on any day that is not a business day will be made on the next business day as if made on the date that the payment was due
and no interest will accrue on that payment for the period from the original payment date to the date of that payment on the next business day.
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We will pay principal and interest on the notes, register the transfer of the notes and exchange the notes at our office or agency maintained for
that purpose, which initially will be the Corporate Trust Office of the trustee. We may change the paying agent or registrar without prior notice
to the holders of the notes, and we or any of our subsidiaries may act as paying agent or registrar. So long as the notes are represented by global
debt securities, the interest payable on the notes will be paid to Cede & Co, the nominee of the depositary, or its registered assigns as the
registered owner of such global debt securities, by wire transfer of immediately

S-14

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 28



Table of Contents

available funds on each of the applicable interest payment dates. If any of the notes are no longer represented by a global debt security, we have
the option to pay interest by check mailed to the address of the person entitled to the interest. No service charge will be made for any transfer or
exchange of notes, but we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable.

The notes are our senior unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all our existing and future senior unsecured debt. The
notes are effectively junior to all of our secured indebtedness to the extent of the assets securing such indebtedness. Our operations are
conducted through our subsidiaries and, therefore, we depend on the cash flow of our subsidiaries to meet our obligations, including our
obligations under the notes. Our subsidiaries are not guarantors of the notes. Accordingly, the notes are effectively subordinated to all
indebtedness and other obligations of our subsidiaries, including (i) $1,750.0 million of indebtedness incurred by two of our special-purpose
subsidiaries in connection with the offering of commercial mortgage-pass through certificates, which indebtedness is secured primarily by
mortgages on the subsidiaries� interest in 5,285 wireless and broadcast communication towers and the related tower sites, trade payables and
lease obligations and (ii) $196.0 million of indebtedness (the fair value of which was $209.3 million at the date of acquisition) incurred by
entities we acquired in connection with the acquisition of certain legal entities from Unison Holdings, LLC and Unison Site Management II,
L.L.C., which indebtedness is secured by, among other things, liens on approximately 1,470 real property interests.

As of December 31, 2011, after giving effect to the transactions described under �Capitalization,� we and our subsidiaries would have had total
outstanding consolidated debt of approximately $7,260.9 million, consisting of:

� approximately $4,925.2 million of our indebtedness; and

� approximately $2,335.7 million of indebtedness of our subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2011, after giving effect to the transactions described under �Capitalization,� we had the ability to borrow an additional
$1,365.0 million under the 2011 Credit Facility and the 2012 Credit Facility, net of approximately $3.0 million of outstanding undrawn letters of
credit.

As of the issue date, our current subsidiaries, other than those listed in the definition of �Unrestricted Subsidiary� under �� Certain Definitions�
below, will be Subsidiaries. Under certain circumstances, we will be able to designate current or future subsidiaries as Unrestricted Subsidiaries.
Unrestricted Subsidiaries will not be subject to the restrictive covenants set forth in the indenture.

The notes are not subject to a sinking fund.

Transfer and Exchange

A holder may transfer or exchange notes in accordance with the indenture. The registrar and the trustee may require a holder, among other
things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents in connection with a transfer of notes. Holders will be required to pay all
taxes due on transfer. We are not required to transfer or exchange any note selected for redemption or tendered for repurchase. Also, we are not
required to transfer or exchange any note for a period of 15 days preceding the first mailing of notice of redemption of notes to be redeemed.
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The notes are redeemable at our election, in whole or in part, at any time at a redemption price equal to the greater of:

(1) 100% of the principal amount of the notes to be redeemed then outstanding; and

(2) as determined by an Independent Investment Banker, the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal
and interest on the notes to be redeemed (not including any portion of such payments of interest accrued to the date of redemption)
discounted to the redemption date on a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the
Adjusted Treasury Rate for the notes, plus 40 basis points;
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plus, in either of the above cases, accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption on the notes to be redeemed.

If the optional redemption date is on or after an interest record date and on or before the related interest payment date, the accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, will be paid to the person in whose name the note is registered at the close of business on such record date.

We will mail or cause to be mailed a notice of redemption at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before the redemption date to each holder
of the notes to be redeemed at their registered address, except that redemption notices may be mailed more than 60 days prior to a redemption
date if the notice is issued in connection with a defeasance of the notes or a satisfaction and discharge of the indenture. Notices of redemption
may not be conditional.

Unless we default in payment of the redemption price, on and after the redemption date, interest will cease to accrue on the notes or portions
thereof called for redemption. Notes called for redemption become due on the date fixed for redemption.

If less than all of the notes are to be redeemed, the trustee will select notes for redemption as follows:

(1) if the notes are listed on any national securities exchange, in compliance with the requirements of the principal national securities
exchange on which the notes are listed; or

(2) if the notes are not so listed, on a pro rata basis (subject to the procedures of DTC) or, to the extent a pro rata basis is not permitted,
by lot or in such other manner as the trustee shall deem to be fair and appropriate.

However, no note of $2,000 in principal amount or less shall be redeemed in part. If any note is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of
redemption relating to such note will state the portion of the principal amount to be redeemed. A new note in principal amount equal to the
unredeemed portion will be issued in the name of the holder thereof upon cancellation of the original note.

Repurchase of Notes upon a Change of Control Triggering Event

If a Change of Control Triggering Event occurs with respect to the notes, each holder of notes will have the right to require us to repurchase all
or any part, equal to $2,000 or an integral multiple of $1,000 thereafter, of that holder�s notes pursuant to a Change of Control Offer on the terms
set forth in the indenture. In the Change of Control Offer, we will offer a Change of Control Payment in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate
principal amount of notes repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest on the notes up to but excluding the date of repurchase. Within 30 days
following any Change of Control Triggering Event, if we had not, prior to the Change of Control Triggering Event, sent a redemption notice for
all the notes in connection with an optional redemption permitted by the indenture, we will mail or cause to be mailed a notice to each registered
holder briefly describing the transaction or transactions that constitute a Change of Control Triggering Event and offering to repurchase notes on
the date specified in such notice (the �Change of Control Payment Date�), which date will be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days
from the date the notice is mailed, pursuant to the procedures required by the indenture and described in such notice.
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We will comply with the requirements of Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act and any other securities laws and regulations thereunder to the
extent such laws and regulations are applicable to any Change of Control Offer. To the extent that the provisions of any securities laws or
regulations conflict with the provisions of the indenture relating to the covenant described above, we will comply with the applicable securities
laws and regulations and will not be deemed to have breached our obligations under the provisions of the indenture relating to the covenant
described above by virtue of such conflict.
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On the Change of Control Payment Date, we will, to the extent lawful:

(1) accept for payment all notes or portions thereof properly tendered pursuant to the Change of Control Offer;

(2) deposit with the paying agent an amount equal to the Change of Control Payment in respect of all notes or portions thereof properly tendered;
and

(3) deliver or cause to be delivered to the trustee the notes so accepted together with an Officers� Certificate stating the aggregate principal
amount of notes or portions thereof being purchased by us.

The paying agent will promptly mail to each registered holder of notes so tendered the Change of Control Payment for such notes, and the
trustee will promptly authenticate and mail, or cause to be transferred by book entry, to each holder a new note equal in principal amount to any
unpurchased portion of the notes surrendered, if any; provided that each such new note will be in a principal amount of $2,000 or an integral
multiple of $1,000 thereafter. Any note so accepted for payment will cease to accrue interest on and after the Change of Control Payment Date.

Except as described above, the provisions described above will be applicable regardless of whether or not any other provisions of the indenture
are applicable. Other than with respect to a Change of Control Triggering Event, the indenture does not contain provisions that permit the
holders of the notes to require that we repurchase or redeem the notes in the event of a takeover, recapitalization or similar transaction.

Holders will not be entitled to require us to purchase their notes in the event of a takeover, recapitalization, leveraged buyout or similar
transaction that is not a Change of Control. We may nonetheless incur significant additional indebtedness in connection with such a transaction.

For the avoidance of doubt, a Change of Control will not be deemed to have occurred if we merge with an affiliate solely for the purpose of
reincorporating American Tower in its current or another jurisdiction within the United States of America.

Holders may not be able to require us to purchase their notes in certain circumstances involving a significant change in the composition of our
board of directors, including a proxy contest where our board of directors does not endorse the dissident slate of directors but approves them as
Continuing Directors. In this regard, a decision of the Delaware Chancery Court (not involving us or our securities) considered a change of
control redemption provision of an indenture governing publicly traded debt securities that is substantially similar to the change of control event
described in clause (3) of the definition of �Change of Control.� In its decision, the court noted that a board of directors may �approve� a dissident
shareholder�s nominees solely for purposes of such an indenture, provided the board of directors determines in good faith that the election of the
dissident nominees would not be materially adverse to the interests of the corporation or its stockholders (without taking into consideration the
interests of the holders of debt securities in making this determination). See �Risk Factors�We may be unable to repay the notes when due or
repurchase the notes when we are required to do so and holders may be unable to require us to repurchase their notes in certain circumstances.�

We will not be required to make a Change of Control Offer upon a Change of Control Triggering Event if a third party makes the Change of
Control Offer in the manner, at the times and otherwise in compliance with the requirements set forth in the indenture applicable to a Change of
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Control Offer made by us and purchases all notes properly tendered and not withdrawn under the Change of Control Offer.

A Change of Control Offer may be made in advance of a Change of Control Triggering Event, and conditional upon the occurrence of such
Change of Control Triggering Event, if a definitive agreement is in place for the Change of Control Triggering Event at the time of making the
Change of Control Offer.

There can be no assurance that we will have sufficient funds available at the time of any Change of Control Triggering Event, and consummate a
Change of Control Offer for all notes then outstanding, at a purchase price
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for 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the Change of Control Payment Date. The indentures for our other
outstanding indebtedness also provide for repurchase rights upon a change in control and, in some cases, certain other events under different
terms. As a result, holders of our other indebtedness may have the ability to require us to repurchase their debt securities before the holders of
the notes offered hereby would have such repurchase rights. In addition, a Change of Control (as described herein) and certain other change of
control events would constitute an event of default under the 2011 Credit Facility and the 2012 Credit Facility. As a result, we may not be able to
make any of the required payments on, or repurchases of, the notes without obtaining the consent of the lenders under the 2011 Credit Facility or
the 2012 Credit Facility with respect to such payment or repurchase.

Covenants

Limitations on liens

Under the indenture, we will not, and will not permit any of our Subsidiaries to, allow any Lien (other than Permitted Liens) on any of our or our
Subsidiaries� property or assets (which includes Capital Stock) securing Indebtedness, unless the Lien secures the notes equally and ratably with,
or prior to, any other Indebtedness secured by such Lien, so long as such other Indebtedness is so secured.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may, and may permit any of our Subsidiaries to, incur Liens securing Indebtedness without equally and
ratably securing the notes if, after giving effect to the incurrence of such Liens, the aggregate amount (without duplication) of the Indebtedness
secured by Liens (other than Permitted Liens) on the property or assets (which includes Capital Stock) of us and our Subsidiaries shall not
exceed the Permitted Amount at the time of the incurrence of such Liens (it being understood that Liens securing Existing SpectraSite
Indebtedness shall be deemed to be incurred pursuant to this paragraph).

Trustee

The trustee for the notes is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., and we have initially appointed the trustee as the paying agent,
registrar, and custodian with regard to the notes. Except during the continuance of an Event of Default, the trustee will perform only such duties
as are specifically set forth in the indenture. During the existence of an Event of Default, the trustee will exercise such of the rights and powers
vested in it under the indenture and use the same degree of care and skill in its exercise as a prudent person would exercise under the
circumstances in the conduct of such person�s own affairs. The holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding notes will have
the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for exercising any remedy available to the trustee, subject to certain
exceptions. Subject to these provisions, the trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the indenture at the
request of any holder of notes, unless such holder has offered to the trustee security and indemnity satisfactory to it against any loss, liability or
expense.

Pursuant and subject to the Trust Indenture Act, the trustee will be permitted to engage in other transactions with us; however, if the trustee
acquires any conflicting interest (as defined in the Trust Indenture Act), it would be required to eliminate such conflict within 90 days, apply to
the SEC for permission to continue as trustee or resign. The trustee is also the trustee under each of the indentures under which our other senior
notes have been issued.

Governing Law

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 35



The indenture and the notes will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.
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Book-Entry; Delivery and Form

We have obtained the information in this section concerning DTC, Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (�Clearstream�), and the Euroclear
System (�Euroclear�) and their book-entry systems and procedures from sources that we believe to be reliable. We take no responsibility for an
accurate portrayal of this information. In addition, the description of the clearing systems in this section reflects our understanding of the rules
and procedures of DTC, Clearstream and Euroclear as they are currently in effect. Those systems could change their rules and procedures at any
time.

The notes will initially be represented by one or more fully registered global notes. Each such global note will be deposited with, or on behalf of,
DTC or any successor thereto and registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC�s nominee). You may hold your interests in the global notes in the
United States through DTC, or in Europe through Clearstream or Euroclear, either as a participant in such systems or indirectly through
organizations that are participants in such systems. Clearstream and Euroclear will hold interests in the global notes on behalf of their respective
participating organizations or customers through customers� securities accounts in Clearstream�s or Euroclear�s names on the books of their
respective depositaries, which in turn will hold those positions in customers� securities accounts in the depositaries� names on the books of DTC.
Citibank, N.A. will act as depositary for Clearstream and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. will act as depositary for Euroclear.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the global securities representing the notes, DTC or such nominee will be considered
the sole owner and holder of the notes for all purposes of the notes and the indenture. Except as provided below, owners of beneficial interests in
the notes will not be entitled to have the notes registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of the notes in
definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders of the notes under the indenture, including for purposes of receiving any reports
delivered by us or the trustee pursuant to the indenture. Accordingly, each person owning a beneficial interest in a note must rely on the
procedures of DTC or its nominee and, if such person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which such person owns
its interest, in order to exercise any rights of a holder of notes.

Unless and until we issue the notes in fully certificated, registered form under the limited circumstances described below under the heading
�Certificated Notes�:

� you will not be entitled to receive a certificate representing your interest in the notes;

� all references in this prospectus supplement to actions by holders will refer to actions taken by DTC upon instructions from its direct
participants; and

� all references in this prospectus supplement to payments and notices to holders will refer to payments and notices to DTC or Cede &
Co., as the registered holder of the notes, for distribution to you in accordance with DTC procedures.

The Depository Trust Company

DTC will act as securities depositary for the notes. The notes will be issued as fully registered notes registered in the name of Cede & Co. DTC
is:

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 37



� a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law;

� a �banking organization� under the New York Banking Law;

� a member of the Federal Reserve System;

� a �clearing corporation� under the New York Uniform Commercial Code; and

� a �clearing agency� registered under the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act.
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DTC holds securities that its direct participants deposit with DTC. DTC facilitates the settlement among direct participants of securities
transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry changes in direct participants�
accounts, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates.

Direct participants of DTC include securities brokers and dealers (including the underwriters), banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and
certain other organizations. DTC is owned by a number of its direct participants. Indirect participants of DTC, such as securities brokers and
dealers, banks and trust companies, can also access the DTC system if they maintain a custodial relationship with a direct participant.

Purchases of notes under DTC�s system must be made by or through direct participants, which will receive a credit for the notes on DTC�s
records. The ownership interest of each beneficial owner is in turn to be recorded on the records of direct participants and indirect participants.
Beneficial owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but beneficial owners are expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the direct participants or indirect
participants through which such beneficial owners entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the notes are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of participants acting on behalf of beneficial owners. Beneficial owners will not receive certificates
representing their ownership interests in notes, except as provided below under the heading �Certificated Notes.�

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all notes deposited with DTC are registered in the name of DTC�s nominee, Cede & Co. The deposit of notes
with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
beneficial owners of the notes. DTC�s records reflect only the identity of the direct participants to whose accounts such notes are credited, which
may or may not be the beneficial owners. The participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to direct participants, by direct participants to indirect participants and by direct
participants and indirect participants to beneficial owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Book-Entry Format

Under the book-entry format, the trustee will pay interest or principal payments to Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. DTC will forward the
payment to the direct participants, who will then forward the payment to the indirect participants (including Clearstream or Euroclear) or to you
as the beneficial owner. You may experience some delay in receiving your payments under this system. Neither we, the trustee under the
indenture nor any paying agent has any direct responsibility or liability for the payment of principal or interest on the notes to owners of
beneficial interests in the notes.

DTC is required to make book-entry transfers on behalf of its direct participants and is required to receive and transmit payments of principal,
premium, if any, and interest on the notes. Any direct participant or indirect participant with which you have an account is similarly required to
make book-entry transfers and to receive and transmit payments with respect to the notes on your behalf. We and the trustee under the indenture
have no responsibility for any aspect of the actions of DTC, Clearstream or Euroclear or any of their direct or indirect participants. In addition,
we and the trustee under the indenture have no responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records kept by DTC, Clearstream, Euroclear or
any of their direct or indirect participants relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the notes or for
maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests. We also do not supervise these systems in any
way.
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The trustee will not recognize you as a holder under the indenture, and you can only exercise the rights of a holder indirectly through DTC and
its direct participants. DTC has advised us that it will only take action regarding a note if one or more of the direct participants to whom the note
is credited directs DTC to take such action and only in respect of the portion of the aggregate principal amount of the notes as to which that
participant or participants has or have given that direction. DTC can only act on behalf of its direct participants. Your ability to pledge notes to
non-direct participants, and to take other actions, may be limited because you will not possess a physical certificate that represents your notes.
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the notes unless authorized by a direct
participant in accordance with DTC�s procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC will mail an omnibus proxy to us as soon as possible after the
record date. The omnibus proxy assigns Cede & Co.�s consenting or voting rights to those direct participants to whose accounts the notes are
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the omnibus proxy). Clearstream or Euroclear will credit payments to the cash
accounts of Clearstream customers or Euroclear participants in accordance with the relevant system�s rules and procedures, to the extent received
by its depositary. These payments will be subject to tax reporting in accordance with relevant United States tax laws and regulations.
Clearstream or the Euroclear operator, as the case may be, will take any other action permitted to be taken by a holder under the indenture on
behalf of a Clearstream customer or Euroclear participant only in accordance with its relevant rules and procedures and subject to its depositary�s
ability to effect those actions on its behalf through DTC.

Transfers Within and Among Book-Entry Systems

Transfers between DTC�s direct participants will occur in accordance with DTC rules. Transfers between Clearstream customers and Euroclear
participants will occur in accordance with the applicable rules and operating procedures of Clearstream and Euroclear, respectively.

DTC will effect cross-market transfers between persons holding directly or indirectly through DTC, on the one hand, and directly or indirectly
through Clearstream customers or Euroclear participants, on the other hand, in accordance with DTC rules on behalf of the relevant European
international clearing system by its depositary. However, cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to the relevant European
international clearing system by the counterparty in that system in accordance with its rules and procedures and within its established deadlines
(European time). The relevant European international clearing system will, if the transaction meets its settlement requirements, instruct its
depositary to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving securities in DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance
with normal procedures for same-day funds settlement applicable to DTC. Clearstream customers and Euroclear participants may not deliver
instructions directly to the depositaries.

Because of time-zone differences, credits of securities received in Clearstream or Euroclear resulting from a transaction with a DTC direct
participant will be made during the subsequent securities settlement processing, dated the business day following the DTC settlement date.
Those credits or any transactions in those securities settled during that processing will be reported to the relevant Clearstream customer or
Euroclear participant on that business day. Cash received in Clearstream or Euroclear as a result of sales of securities by or through a
Clearstream customer or a Euroclear participant to a DTC direct participant will be received with value on the DTC settlement date but will be
available in the relevant Clearstream or Euroclear cash amount only as of the business day following settlement in DTC.

Although DTC, Clearstream and Euroclear have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfers of notes among their
respective participants, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures and such procedures may be
discontinued at any time.

Certificated Notes
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Unless and until they are exchanged, in whole or in part, for notes in definitive form in accordance with the terms of the notes, the notes may not
be transferred except (1) as a whole by DTC to a nominee of DTC; (2) by a nominee of DTC to DTC or another nominee of DTC; or (3) by DTC
or any such nominee to a successor of DTC or a nominee of such successor.
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We will issue notes to you or your nominees, in fully certificated registered form, rather than to DTC or its nominees, only if:

� DTC is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for such global note and we are unable to find a qualified replacement for DTC
within 90 days;

� at any time DTC ceases to be a �clearing agency� registered under the Exchange Act and we are unable to find a qualified replacement for
DTC within 90 days;

� we in our sole discretion decide to allow some or all book-entry notes to be exchangeable for certificated notes in registered form; or

� an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing under the indenture, and a holder of the notes has requested certificated notes.

If any of the four above events occurs, DTC is required to notify all direct participants that notes in fully certificated registered form are
available through DTC. DTC will then surrender the global note representing the notes along with instructions for re-registration. The trustee
will re-issue the notes in fully certificated registered form and will recognize the registered holders of the certificated notes as holders under the
indenture.

Unless and until we issue the notes in fully certificated, registered form, (1) you will not be entitled to receive a certificate representing your
interest in the notes; (2) all references in this prospectus supplement to actions by holders will refer to actions taken by the depositary upon
instructions from their direct participants; and (3) all references in this prospectus supplement to payments and notices to holders will refer to
payments and notices to the depositary, as the registered holder of the notes, for distribution to you in accordance with its policies and
procedures.

Certain Definitions

�Adjusted EBITDA� means, for the 12-month period preceding the calculation date, for us and our Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in
accordance with GAAP, the sum of (a) Net Income, plus (b) to the extent deducted in determining Net Income, the sum of (i) Interest Expense,
(ii) income tax expense, including, without limitation, taxes paid or accrued based on income, profits or capital, including state, franchise and
similar taxes and foreign withholding taxes, (iii) depreciation and amortization (including, without limitation, amortization of goodwill and other
intangible assets), (iv) extraordinary losses and non-recurring non-cash charges and expenses, (v) all other non-cash charges, expenses and
interest (including, without limitation, any non-cash losses in respect of Commodity Agreements, Currency Agreements or Interest Rate
Agreements, non-cash impairment charges, non-cash valuation charges for stock option grants or vesting of restricted stock awards or any other
non-cash compensation charges, and losses from the early extinguishment of Indebtedness) and (vi) nonrecurring charges and expenses,
restructuring charges, transaction expenses (including, without limitation, transaction expenses incurred in connection with any merger or
acquisition) and underwriters� fees or discounts, and severance and retention payments in connection with any merger or acquisition, in each case
for such period, less extraordinary gains and cash payments (not otherwise deducted in determining net income) made during such period with
respect to non-cash charges that were added back in a prior period; provided, however, (I) with respect to any Person that became a Subsidiary,
or was merged with or consolidated into us or any Subsidiary, during such period, or any acquisition by us or any Subsidiary of the assets of any
Person during such period, �Adjusted EBITDA� shall, at our option in respect of any or all of the foregoing, also include the Adjusted EBITDA of
such Person or attributable to such assets, as applicable, during such period as if such acquisition, merger or consolidation had occurred on the
first day of such period and (II) with respect to any Person that has ceased to be a Subsidiary during such period, or any material assets of us or
any Subsidiary sold or otherwise disposed of by us or any Subsidiary during such period, �Adjusted EBITDA� shall exclude the Adjusted
EBITDA of such Person or attributable to such assets, as applicable, during such period as if such sale or disposition of such Subsidiary or such
assets had occurred on the first day of such period.
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�Adjusted Treasury Rate� means, with respect to any redemption date:

(1) the yield, under the heading which represents the average for the immediately preceding week, appearing in the most recently
published statistical release designated �H.15(519)� or any successor publication which is published weekly by the Board of Governors
of the Federal Reserve System and which establishes yields on actively traded United States Treasury securities adjusted to constant
maturity under the caption �Treasury Constant Maturities,� for the maturity corresponding to the Comparable Treasury Issue (if no
maturity is within three months before or after the Remaining Life, yields for the two published maturities most closely
corresponding to the Comparable Treasury Issue shall be determined and the Adjusted Treasury Rate shall be interpolated or
extrapolated from such yields on a straight line basis, rounding to the nearest month); or

(2) if such release (or any successor release) is not published during the week preceding the calculation date or does not contain such
yields, the rate per annum equal to the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, calculated using a
price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price
for such redemption date.

The Adjusted Treasury Rate shall be calculated on the third Business Day preceding the redemption date.

�Beneficial Owner� has the meaning assigned to such term in Rule 13d-3 and Rule 13d-5 under the Exchange Act, except that in calculating the
beneficial ownership of any particular �person� as such term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, such �person� will be deemed to have
beneficial ownership of all securities that such �person� has the right to acquire by conversion or exercise of other securities, whether such right is
currently exercisable or is exercisable only upon the occurrence of a subsequent condition.

�Board of Directors� means either our Board of Directors or any committee of such Board duly authorized to act on our behalf.

�Board Resolution� means one or more resolutions duly adopted or consented to by the Board of Directors and in full force and effect.

�Business Day� means any day except a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in the City of New York are authorized or
obligated by law or executive order to close.

�Capital Lease Obligations� means, at the time any determination is to be made, the amount of the liability in respect of a capital lease that would
at that time be required to be capitalized on a balance sheet in accordance with GAAP.

�Capital Stock� means:

(1) in the case of a corporation, corporate stock;
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(2) in the case of an association or business entity, any and all shares, interests, participations, rights or other equivalents (however
designated) of corporate stock;

(3) in the case of a partnership or limited liability company, partnership or membership interests (whether general or limited); and

(4) any other interest or participation that confers on a Person the right to receive a share of the profits and losses of, or distributions of
assets of, the issuing Person.

�Change of Control� means the occurrence of any of the following:

(1) the adoption of a plan relating to our liquidation or dissolution;

(2) any �person,� as such term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, becomes the Beneficial Owner, directly or indirectly, of
more than 50% of the voting power of our Voting Stock; provided that
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a transaction in which we become a Subsidiary of another Person shall not constitute a Change of Control if (a) our stockholders
immediately prior to such transaction Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, 50% or more of
the voting power of the outstanding Voting Stock of such other Person of whom we are a Subsidiary immediately following such
transaction and (b) immediately following such transaction no person (as defined above) other than such other Person, Beneficially
Owns, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting power of our Voting Stock; or

(3) the first day on which a majority of the members of our Board of Directors are not Continuing Directors.

�Change of Control Triggering Event� means the occurrence of both a Change of Control and a Ratings Decline.

�Commodity Agreement� of any Person means any commodity forward contract, commodity swap agreement, commodity option agreement or
other similar agreement or arrangement to which such Person is a party.

�Comparable Treasury Issue� means the United States Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment Banker as having a maturity
comparable to the remaining term of the notes that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial
practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of such notes (�Remaining Life�).

�Comparable Treasury Price� means, for any redemption date, (1) the average of four Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such redemption
date, after excluding the highest and lowest Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, or (2) if the Independent Investment Banker obtains fewer
than four such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations the average of all such quotations.

�Continuing Director� means, as of any date of determination, any member of our Board of Directors who:

(1) was a member of such Board of Directors on the Issue Date; or

(2) was nominated for election or elected to such Board of Directors with the approval of a majority of the Continuing Directors who
were members of such Board at the time of such nomination or election.

�Corporate Trust Office� means the designated office of the trustee at which at any time its corporate trust business shall be administered, which
office at the date hereof is located at 525 William Penn Place, 7th Floor, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, 15259, Attention: Corporate Trust
Administration, or such other address as the trustee may designate from time to time by notice to the holders of the notes and us, or the principal
corporate trust office of any successor trustee (or such other address as such successor trustee may designate from time to time by notice to the
holders of the notes and us).

�Currency Agreement� of any Person means any foreign exchange contract, currency swap agreement or other similar agreement or arrangement
as to which such Person is a party.

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 47



�Disqualified Stock� means any Capital Stock that, by its terms (or by the terms of any security into which it is convertible, or for which it is
exchangeable, in each case at the option of the holder of the Capital Stock), or upon the happening of any event, matures or is mandatorily
redeemable, pursuant to a sinking fund obligation or otherwise, or redeemable at the option of the holder of the Capital Stock, in whole or in
part, on or prior to the Stated Maturity of the notes.

�DTC� means The Depository Trust Company.

�Existing SpectraSite Indebtedness� means that certain mortgage loan more fully described in the Offering Memorandum dated April 27, 2007
regarding the $1,750.0 million American Tower Trust I Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2007-1.
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�Fair Market Value� means, with respect to any asset, the price that (after taking into account any liabilities relating to such asset) would be paid
in an arm�s-length transaction between an informed and willing seller under no compulsion to sell and an informed and willing buyer under no
compulsion to buy, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors, whose determination shall be conclusive if evidenced by a Board
Resolution.

�Fitch� means Fitch, Inc. or any successor to the rating agency business thereof.

�Foreign Subsidiary� means, with respect to any Person, (a) any Subsidiary of such Person that is not organized or existing under the laws of, and
whose principal business is conducted outside of, the United States, any state thereof, the District of Columbia, or any territory thereof (for
purposes of this definition only, the �United States�), or (b) any Subsidiary of such Person that is organized or existing under the laws of the
United States whose only material assets are the Capital Stock of Foreign Subsidiaries meeting clause (a) of this definition.

�GAAP� means generally accepted accounting principles set forth in the standards, statements and pronouncements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board, or in such other statements by such other entity as may be approved by a significant segment of the accounting profession of
the United States, which are in effect on the Issue Date.

�Guarantee� means a guarantee (other than by endorsement of negotiable instruments for collection in the ordinary course of business), direct or
indirect, in any manner (including, without limitation, by way of a pledge of assets or through letters of credit or reimbursement agreements in
respect thereof), of all or any part of any Indebtedness. The term �Guarantee� used as a verb has a corresponding meaning.

�Indebtedness� means, with respect to any Person, any indebtedness of such Person, whether or not contingent:

(1) in respect of borrowed money;

(2) evidenced by bonds, notes, debentures or similar instruments or letters of credit (or reimbursement agreements in respect thereof);

(3) in respect of banker�s acceptances;

(4) representing Capital Lease Obligations;

(5) representing the balance deferred and unpaid of the purchase price of any property, except any such balance that constitutes an
accrued expense or trade payable;

(6) representing obligations under any Interest Rate Agreements, Commodity Agreements and Currency Agreements except for those
entered into for the purpose of fixing, hedging or swapping interest rate, commodity price or foreign currency exchange risk; or

(7) all Disqualified Stock issued by such Person with the amount of Indebtedness represented by such Disqualified Stock being equal to
the greater of its voluntary or involuntary liquidation preference and its maximum fixed repurchase price, but excluding accrued
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dividends, if any; provided that (a) if the Disqualified Stock does not have a fixed repurchase price, such maximum fixed repurchase
price shall be calculated in accordance with the terms of the Disqualified Stock as if the Disqualified Stock were purchased on any
date on which Indebtedness shall be required to be determined pursuant to the indenture, and (b) if the maximum fixed repurchase
price is based upon, or measured by, the fair market value of the Disqualified Capital Stock, the fair market value shall be the Fair
Market Value thereof;

if and to the extent any of the preceding items (other than letters of credit and obligations under Interest Rate Agreements, Commodity
Agreements and Currency Agreements) would appear as a liability upon a balance sheet of such Person prepared in accordance with GAAP. In
addition, the term �Indebtedness�
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includes all Indebtedness of others secured by a Lien on any asset of such Person whether or not such Indebtedness is assumed by such Person
(the amount of such Indebtedness as of any date being deemed to be the lesser of the Fair Market Value of such property or assets as of such date
or the principal amount of such Indebtedness of such other Person so secured) and, to the extent not otherwise included, the Guarantee by such
Person of any Indebtedness of any other Person.

The amount of any Indebtedness outstanding as of any date shall be:

(1) the accreted value of the Indebtedness, in the case of any Indebtedness issued with original issue discount; and

(2) the principal amount of the Indebtedness, together with any interest on the Indebtedness that is more than 30 days past due, in the
case of any other Indebtedness.

�Independent Investment Banker� means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers appointed by us.

�Interest Expense� means, for any period, all cash interest expense (including imputed interest with respect to Capital Lease Obligations and
commitment fees) with respect to any of our Indebtedness and our Subsidiaries� Indebtedness on a consolidated basis during such period pursuant
to the terms of such Indebtedness.

�Interest Rate Agreement� of any Person means any interest rate protection agreement, interest rate future agreement, interest rate option
agreement, interest rate swap agreement, interest rate cap agreement, interest rate collar agreement, interest rate hedge agreement, option or
future contract or other similar agreement or arrangement as to which such Person is a party.

�Investment Grade Rating� means a rating equal to or greater than BBB- by S&P and Fitch and Baa3 by Moody�s or the equivalent thereof under
any new ratings system if the ratings system of any such agency shall be modified after the Issue Date, or the equivalent rating or any other
Ratings Agency selected by us as provided in the definition of Ratings Agency.

�Issue Date� means March 12, 2012.

�Licenses� means, collectively, any telephone, microwave, radio transmissions, personal communications or other license, authorization,
certificate of compliance, franchise, approval or permit, whether for the construction, ownership or operation of any communications tower
facilities, granted or issued by the Federal Communications Commission (or other similar or successor agency of the federal government
administering the Communications Act of 1934 or any similar or successor federal statute) and held by us or any of our Subsidiaries.

�Lien� means, with respect to any property or assets, including Capital Stock, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or encumbrance
of any kind in respect of such asset, whether or not filed, recorded or otherwise perfected under applicable law (including any conditional sale or
other title retention agreement, any lease in the nature thereof, any option or other agreement to sell or give a security interest in and any filing of
or agreement to give any financing statement under the Uniform Commercial Code (or equivalent statutes) of any jurisdiction).
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�Moody�s� means Moody�s Investors Services, Inc. or any successor to the rating agency business thereof.

�Net Income� means, for any period of determination, net income (loss) of us and our Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, determined in
accordance with GAAP.

�Newly Created Subsidiary� means a newly created direct or indirect Subsidiary of us that is formed or organized after the Issue Date; provided
that neither we nor any of our Subsidiaries shall have transferred, or may in the future transfer, any assets (other than cash or cash equivalents) to
such Newly Created Subsidiary for so long as such Newly Created Subsidiary remains designated as an Unrestricted Subsidiary.
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�Officers� Certificate� means, with respect to any Person, a certificate signed by the chairman of the Board of Directors, the chief executive officer,
the president, the chief operating officer, the chief financial officer, or any vice president and by the treasurer, any assistant treasurer, the
controller, any assistant controller, the secretary or any assistant secretary of such Person in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
indenture.

�Permitted Amount� means, on any date, an amount equal to 3.5 times Adjusted EBITDA as of the most recent fiscal quarter for which our
financial statements are internally available immediately preceding such date.

�Permitted Liens� means:

(1) Liens in favor of us or our Subsidiaries;

(2) Liens existing on the Issue Date (other than those securing Existing SpectraSite Indebtedness) and renewals and replacements
thereof;

(3) Liens for taxes, assessments or governmental charges or claims that are not yet delinquent or that are being contested in good faith
by appropriate proceedings promptly instituted and diligently conducted; provided that any reserve or other appropriate provision as
shall be required in conformity with GAAP shall have been made therefor;

(4) Liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics, vendors (solely to the extent arising by operation of law), laborers and materialmen
incurred in the ordinary course of business for sums not yet due or being diligently contested in good faith, if reserves or appropriate
provisions shall have been made therefor;

(5) Liens incurred in the ordinary course of business in connection with worker�s compensation and unemployment
insurance, social security obligations, assessments or government charges which are not overdue for more than 60 days;

(6) restrictions on the transfer of Licenses or assets of us or any of our Subsidiaries imposed by any of the Licenses as in effect on the
Issue Date or imposed by the Communications Act of 1934, any similar or successor federal statute or the rules and regulations of
the Federal Communications Commission (or other similar or successor agency of the federal government administering such Act or
successor statute) thereunder, all as the same may be in effect from time to time;

(7) Liens arising by operation of law in favor of purchasers in connection with the sale of an asset; provided, however, that such Lien
only encumbers the property being sold;

(8) Liens to secure performance of statutory obligations, surety or appeal bonds, performance bonds, bids or tenders;

(9) judgment Liens;

(10) Liens in connection with escrow or security deposits made in connection with any acquisition of assets;
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(11) Liens securing Indebtedness since the Issue Date represented by Capital Lease Obligations, mortgage financings or purchase money
obligations, in each case incurred for the purpose of financing all or any part of the purchase price or cost of construction or
improvement of property, plant or equipment used in any business of us or any of our Subsidiaries in an aggregate principal amount,
including all Indebtedness incurred to refund, refinance or replace any other Indebtedness of the type described under this clause
(11), not to exceed $500.0 million at any time outstanding for us and any of our Subsidiaries;

(12) Liens securing obligations under Interest Rate Agreements, Commodity Agreements and Currency Agreements not for speculative
purposes;

(13) easements, rights-of-way, zoning restrictions, licenses or restrictions on use and other similar encumbrances on the use of real
property that:

(a) are not incurred in connection with the borrowing of money or the obtaining of advances or credit (other than trade credit in
the ordinary course of business); and
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(b) do not in the aggregate materially detract from the value of the property or materially impair the use thereof in the operation
of business by us and our Subsidiaries;

(14) Liens on property of us or any of our Subsidiaries at the time we or such Subsidiary acquired the property, including acquisition by
means of a merger or consolidation with or into us or any Subsidiary, or an acquisition of assets, and any replacement thereof,
provided, however, that such Liens are not created, incurred or assumed in connection with or in contemplation of such acquisition,
and provided further that such Liens may not extend to any other property owned by us or any of our Subsidiaries;

(15) leases and subleases of real property in the ordinary course of business (for the avoidance of doubt, excluding sale and lease-back
transactions) which do not materially interfere with the ordinary conduct of the business; and

(16) banker�s Liens, rights of set-off or similar rights and remedies as to deposit accounts or other funds maintained with a depositary
institution; provided that:

(a) such deposit account is not a dedicated cash collateral account and is not subject to restrictions against access in excess of
those set forth by regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board or other applicable law; and

(b) such deposit account is not intended to provide collateral to the depositary institution.

�Person� means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock company, trust, estate,
unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof or any other entity.

�Ratings Agencies� means (1) S&P, Moody�s and Fitch; and (2) if any of S&P, Moody�s and Fitch ceases to rate the notes or ceases to make a rating
on the notes publicly available, an entity registered as a �nationally recognized statistical rating organization� (registered as such pursuant to Rule
17g-1 of the Exchange Act) then making a rating on the notes publicly available selected by us (as certified by an Officers� Certificate), which
shall be substituted for S&P, Moody�s or Fitch, as the case may be.

�Ratings Decline� means the occurrence of the following on, or within 90 days after, the date of the public notice of the occurrence of a Change of
Control or of the intention by us or any third party to effect a Change of Control (which period shall be extended for so long as the rating of the
notes is under publicly announced consideration for possible downgrade by any of the Ratings Agencies if such period exceeds 90 days): (1) in
the event that the notes have an Investment Grade Rating by all three Ratings Agencies, the notes cease to have an Investment Grade Rating by
two of the three Rating Agencies, (2) in the event that the notes have an Investment Grade Rating by only two Ratings Agencies, the notes cease
to have an Investment Grade Rating by both such Rating Agencies, or (3) in the event that the notes do not have an Investment Grade Rating, the
rating of the notes by two of the three Ratings Agencies (or, if there are less than three Rating Agencies rating the notes, the rating of each
Rating Agency) decreases by one or more gradations (including gradations within ratings categories as well as between rating categories) or is
withdrawn.

�Reference Treasury Dealer� means any of the primary U.S. Government securities dealers in New York City.

�Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations� means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption date, the average, as
determined by the Independent Investment Banker, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a
percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Independent Investment Banker at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third
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�S&P� means Standard & Poor�s Rating Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., or any successor to the rating agency business
thereof.

�Stated Maturity� means, (1) with respect to any debt security, the date specified in such debt security as the fixed date on which the final
installment of principal of such debt security is due and payable and (2) with respect to any scheduled installment of principal of or interest on
any debt security, the date specified in such debt security as the fixed date on which such installment is due and payable.

�Subsidiary� means, with respect to any Person, (1) any corporation, limited liability company, association or other business entity of which more
than 50% of the voting power of the outstanding Voting Stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by such Person and one or more other
Subsidiaries of such Person or (2) any partnership (A) the sole general partner or the managing general partner of which is such Person or a
Subsidiary of such Person or (B) the only general partners of which are such Person or one or more Subsidiaries of such Person (or any
combination thereof). The term �Subsidiary� with respect to us shall not include any Unrestricted Subsidiary.

�Unrestricted Subsidiary� means (a) any Foreign Subsidiary or Newly Created Subsidiary of us that is designated by the Board of Directors as an
Unrestricted Subsidiary until such time as the Board of Directors may designate it to be a Subsidiary, provided that no Default or Event of
Default would occur or be existing following such designation, and (b) any subsidiary of an Unrestricted Subsidiary. Any such designation by
the Board of Directors shall be evidenced to the trustee by filing a Board Resolution with the trustee giving effect to such designation. At the
time of designation of an Unrestricted Subsidiary as a Subsidiary, such Subsidiary shall be deemed to incur outstanding Indebtedness and grant
any existing Liens.

�Voting Stock� of any Person as of any date means the Capital Stock of such Person that is normally entitled to vote in the election of the board of
directors, managers or trustees of such Person.
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CERTAIN UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following summary describes certain U.S. federal income tax consequences to you of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the notes
as of the date hereof. This summary deals only with holders that purchase notes in the initial offering at their issue price (i.e., the first price at
which a substantial amount of notes is sold to investors) and that hold such notes as capital assets for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

A �U.S. holder� means a beneficial owner of a note that is any of the following for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

� a citizen or resident of the U.S.;

� a corporation (or other entity classified as a corporation for these purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the U.S., any
state thereof, or the District of Columbia;

� an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

� a trust if (1) its administration is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the U.S. and one or more U.S. persons have the
authority to control all of its substantial decisions, or (2) it has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be
treated as a U.S. person.

A �non-U.S. holder� means a beneficial owner of a note that is neither a U.S. holder nor a partnership.

This summary is based upon provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), and regulations, rulings and judicial
decisions as of the date hereof. Those authorities may be changed, perhaps retroactively, so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences
different from those summarized below. This summary does not represent a detailed description of the federal income tax consequences to you
in light of your particular circumstances. In addition, it does not represent a detailed description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences
applicable to you if you are subject to special treatment under the U.S. federal income tax laws (including if you are a financial institution or a
tax-exempt entity; if your �functional currency� is not the U.S. dollar; if you are an insurance company, a dealer in securities or foreign currencies,
or a trader in securities electing to mark your positions to market; if you hold the notes as part of a hedge, straddle, �constructive sale,� �conversion�
or other integrated transaction; or if you are a U.S. expatriate, �controlled foreign corporation,� or �passive foreign investment company�), and it
does not address any taxes other than U.S. federal income and withholding taxes. We cannot assure you that a change in law will not alter
significantly the tax considerations that we describe in this summary, perhaps with retroactive effect.

If an entity classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds notes, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend upon
the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. If you are a partner of a partnership holding the notes, you should consult your tax
advisors.

If you are considering the purchase of notes, you should consult your own tax advisors concerning the particular U.S. federal income tax
consequences to you of the ownership of notes, as well as the consequences to you arising under the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction,
including any state, local or non-U.S. income tax consequences.
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This section applies to you if you are a U.S. holder.
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Payments of Interest

In general, you must include stated interest on the notes in your gross income as ordinary income as it is received or accrued in accordance with
your regular accounting method.

Sale, Exchange, Redemption and Retirement of the Notes

On the sale, exchange, redemption or retirement of a note:

� You will have taxable gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount received by you (other than amounts representing
accrued and unpaid stated interest, which will be treated as described below) and your adjusted tax basis in the note. Generally, your
adjusted tax basis in a note will be the amount you paid for the note decreased by any amounts previously received on the note other
than stated interest.

� Your gain or loss will generally be a capital gain or loss, and will be a long-term capital gain or loss if you held the note for more than
one year at the time of disposition. Certain non-corporate U.S. holders are currently eligible for reduced rates of tax on long term capital
gains. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitation.

� If you sell a note between interest payment dates, a portion of the amount you receive will reflect interest that has accrued on the note
but has not yet been paid by the sale date. This amount will be treated as interest income and not as sales proceeds, and will be taxed at
ordinary income rates.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences to Non-U.S. Holders

This section applies to you if you are a non-U.S. holder.

U.S. Federal Withholding Tax

The 30% U.S. federal withholding tax will not apply to any payment of principal or interest on a note, provided that:

� you do not actually or constructively own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our voting stock
within the meaning of the Code and applicable U.S. Treasury regulations;

� you are not a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us through stock ownership; and

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 60



� either (a) you provide your name and address on an IRS Form W-8BEN (or other applicable form), and certify, under penalties of
perjury, that you are not a U.S. person or (b) you hold your notes through certain foreign intermediaries and satisfy the certification
requirements of applicable U.S. Treasury regulations.

If you cannot satisfy the requirements of the �portfolio interest� exemption described above, payments of interest made to you will be subject to
the 30% U.S. federal withholding tax, unless you provide us or our paying agent with a properly executed (1) IRS Form W-8BEN (or other
applicable form) claiming an exemption from or reduction in withholding under the benefit of an applicable income tax treaty or (2) IRS Form
W-8ECI (or other applicable form) stating that interest paid on a note is not subject to withholding tax because it is effectively connected with
your conduct of a trade or business in the U.S. (as discussed below under ��U.S. Federal Income Tax�).

You are urged to consult your tax advisor regarding the availability of the above exemptions and the procedure for obtaining such exemptions, if
available. A claim for exemption will not be valid if the person receiving the applicable form has actual knowledge or reason to know that the
statements on the form are false.

The 30% U.S. federal withholding tax generally will not apply to any gain that you realize on the sale, exchange, retirement or other disposition
of a note.

On February 8, 2012, the U.S. Treasury Department and Internal Revenue Service issued proposed regulations implementing sections 1471
through 1474 of the Code (�FATCA�), which is discussed (prior to the issuance of the proposed regulations) in paragraph (a)(v) under the heading
�Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax
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Considerations Relevant to Holders of Our Debt Securities�Tax Consequences to Non-U.S. Holders� of the accompanying prospectus. Under the
proposed regulations, FATCA withholding does not apply to obligations issued before January 1, 2013, and therefore the notes are not subject to
withholding under the FATCA rules.

U.S. Federal Income Tax

If you are engaged in a trade or business in the U.S. and interest on the notes is effectively connected with the conduct of that trade or business
(and the interest is attributable to a permanent establishment or fixed base maintained by you in the U.S. if that is required by an applicable
income tax treaty as a condition for subjecting you to U.S. tax on a net income basis), you will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on that
interest at graduated rates on a net income basis (although you will be exempt from the 30% withholding tax, provided you comply with the
certification and disclosure requirements discussed above in � � U.S. Federal Withholding Tax�) in the same manner as if you were a U.S. person as
defined under the Code. In addition, if you are a corporate non-U.S. holder, you may be subject to a branch profits tax equal to 30% (or lower
applicable treaty rate) of such effectively connected interest.

Any gain realized on the disposition of a note generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless:

� the gain is effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business in the U.S. (and the gain is attributable to a permanent
establishment or fixed base maintained by you in the U.S. if that is required by an applicable income tax treaty as a condition for
subjecting you to U.S. tax on a net income basis), in which case if you are a foreign corporation the branch profits tax described above
may also apply, or

� you are an individual who is present in the U.S. for 183 days or more in the taxable year of that disposition, and certain other conditions
are met.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Interest payments, payments in respect of principal on, and proceeds received from the sale or other taxable disposition of a note generally will
be reported to U.S. holders and to the IRS, and a backup withholding tax (currently at a rate of 28%) may apply to such payments or proceeds if
the U.S. holder fails to furnish the payor with a correct taxpayer identification number or other required certification or the holder has been
notified by the IRS that the holder is subject to backup withholding for failing to report interest or dividends required to be shown on the holder�s
U.S. federal income tax returns. Certain U.S. holders, including generally corporations and tax-exempt entities, are exempt from information
reporting and backup withholding.

In general, a non-U.S. holder will not be subject to backup withholding with respect to interest or principal payments on the notes if such holder
has provided the statement described above in the last bullet point under ��U.S. Federal Withholding Tax� and the payor does not have actual
knowledge or reason to know that the holder is a U.S. person. Information reporting on IRS Form 1042-S may still apply to interest payments,
however. In addition, a non-U.S. holder generally will not be subject to backup withholding or information reporting with respect to the
proceeds of the sale of a note made within the United States or conducted through certain U.S. financial intermediaries if the payor receives the
statement described above and does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that the holder is a U.S. person or the holder otherwise
establishes an exemption. Non-U.S. holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the application of information reporting and backup
withholding in their particular situations, the availability of exemptions and the procedure for obtaining those exemptions, if available.
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Backup withholding is not an additional tax, and amounts withheld as backup withholding will be allowed as a refund or credit against a holder�s
U.S. federal income tax liability, as long as the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.
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UNDERWRITING

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Mizuho Securities USA Inc., Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and TD Securities (USA)
LLC are acting as joint bookrunning managers of the offering and as representatives of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and
conditions stated in the underwriting agreement dated the date of this prospectus supplement, each underwriter named below has severally
agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to that underwriter, the principal amount of notes set forth opposite the underwriter�s name.

Underwriters

Principal Amount
of Notes

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. $ 119,000,000
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC 119,000,000
Mizuho Securities USA Inc. 119,000,000
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC 119,000,000
TD Securities (USA) LLC 119,000,000
Barclays Capital Inc. 21,000,000
Goldman, Sachs & Co. 21,000,000
RBC Capital Markets, LLC 21,000,000
RBS Securities Inc. 21,000,000
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith

                     Incorporated 7,000,000
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC 7,000,000
Santander Investment Securities Inc. 7,000,000

Total $ 700,000,000

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the notes included in this offering are subject to
approval of legal matters by counsel and to other conditions. The underwriters are obligated to purchase all the notes if they purchase any of the
notes.

Notes sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus
supplement. Any notes sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a selling concession from the initial public offering price not
in excess of 0.400% of the principal amount of the notes. Any such securities dealers may resell any notes purchased from the underwriters to
certain other brokers or dealers at a discount from the initial public offering price not in excess of 0.250% of the principal amount of the notes. If
all the notes are not sold at the initial offering price, the underwriters may change the offering price and the other selling terms.

The following table shows the underwriting discounts and commissions that we are to pay to the underwriters in connection with this offering
(expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of the notes).

Paid by
American
Tower
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Per note 0.650% 

We estimate that our total expenses for this offering will be $1.1 million. We have entered into an agreement with the underwriters regarding a
reimbursement of a portion of our offering expenses.

In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell notes in the open market. Purchases and sales in the open market may
include short sales, purchases to cover short positions, stabilizing purchases and penalty bids.

� Short sales involve secondary market sales by the underwriters of a greater number of notes than they are required to purchase in the
offering.
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� Covering transactions involve purchases of notes in the open market after the distribution has been completed in order to cover short
positions.

� Stabilizing transactions involve bids to purchase notes so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum.

� Penalty bids permit the representatives to reclaim a selling concession from an underwriter when the notes originally sold by the
underwriter are purchased in a stabilizing transaction or a syndicate covering transaction to cover syndicate short positions.

Purchases to cover short positions and stabilizing purchases, as well as other purchases by the underwriters for their own accounts, may have the
effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the notes. They may also cause the price of the notes to be higher than the price
that would otherwise exist in the open market in the absence of these transactions. The underwriters may conduct these transactions in the
over-the-counter market or otherwise. If the underwriters commence any of these transactions, they may discontinue them at any time.

The underwriters have performed commercial banking, investment banking and advisory services for us from time to time for which they have
received customary fees and reimbursement of expenses. The underwriters may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform
services for us in the ordinary course of their business for which they may receive customary fees and reimbursement of expenses. In addition,
affiliates of some of the underwriters are lenders, and in some cases agents or managers for the lenders, under the 2011 Credit Facility and/or the
2012 Credit Facility.

In addition, in the ordinary course of their business activities, the underwriters and their affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments
and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own
account and for the accounts of their customers. Such investments and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or
our affiliates. If any of the underwriters or their affiliates have a lending relationship with us, certain of those underwriters or their affiliates
routinely hedge, and certain other of those underwriters may hedge, their credit exposure to us consistent with their customary risk management
policies. Typically, these underwriters and their affiliates would hedge such exposure by entering into transactions which consist of either the
purchase of credit default swaps or the creation of short positions in our securities, including potentially the notes offered hereby. Any such
credit default swaps or short positions could adversely affect future trading prices of the notes offered hereby. The underwriters and their
affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or
financial instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Relationship with EA Markets Securities LLC

Pursuant to an engagement agreement, we retained EA Markets Securities LLC, a FINRA member, to act as our financial advisor in connection
with this offering. We agreed to pay EA Markets Securities, a fee of $125,000 and to reimburse EA Markets Securities for reasonable and
documented out-of-pocket expenses. EA Markets Securities is not acting as an underwriter and has no contact with any public or institutional
investor on our behalf or on behalf of the underwriters associated with this offering. In addition, EA Markets Securities will not underwrite or
purchase any of the notes in this offering or otherwise participate in any such undertaking.

Conflicts of Interest
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As described in �Use of Proceeds,� some of the net proceeds of this offering may be used to pay down borrowings under the 2011 Credit Facility
and the 2012 Credit Facility. Because more than 5% of the proceeds of this offering, not including underwriting compensation, may be received
by affiliates of certain underwriters in this offering, this offering is being conducted in compliance with FINRA Rule 5121.
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We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or to
contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make because of any of those liabilities.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each member state of the European Economic Area that has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a relevant member state),
with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that relevant member state (the relevant
implementation date), an offer of notes described in this prospectus supplement may not be made to the public in that relevant member state
other than:

� to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

� to fewer than 100 or, if the relevant member state has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD Amending Directive, 150,
natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus
Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant Dealer or Dealers nominated by us for any such offer; or

� in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offer of notes shall require us or any underwriter to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For purposes of this provision, the expression an �offer of notes to the public� in any relevant member state means the communication in any form
and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase
or subscribe for the notes, as the expression may be varied in that member state by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that
member state, and the expression �Prospectus Directive� means Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending
Directive, to the extent implemented in the relevant member state) and includes any relevant implementing measure in each relevant member
state. The expression 2010 PD Amending Directive means Directive 2010/73/EU.

The sellers of the notes have not authorized and do not authorize the making of any offer of notes through any financial intermediary on their
behalf, other than offers made by the underwriters with a view to the final placement of the notes as contemplated in this prospectus supplement.
Accordingly, no purchaser of the notes, other than the underwriters, is authorized to make any further offer of the notes on behalf of the sellers
or the underwriters.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are only being distributed to, and are only directed at, (i) persons who are outside
the United Kingdom, (ii) investment professionals falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial
Promotion) Order 2005 (the �Order�) or (iii) high net worth companies, and other persons to whom it may lawfully be communicated, falling
within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order (all such persons together being referred to as �relevant persons�). The notes described in this prospectus
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supplement are only available to, and any invitation, offer or agreement to subscribe, purchase or otherwise acquire such notes will be engaged
in only with, relevant persons. Any person who is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this document or any of its contents.

Each underwriter has represented, warranted and agreed that:

� it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or
inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Market Act 2000 (�FSMA�))
received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any notes which is contemplated by this prospectus supplement in circumstances in
which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to us; and

� it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to such notes
in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton LLP, New York, New York, will pass upon the validity of the notes for American Tower. Sullivan &
Worcester LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, has passed upon our qualification and taxation as a REIT in an opinion filed with the registration
statement of which the accompanying prospectus is a part. Certain other legal matters will be passed upon for American Tower by Edmund
DiSanto, Esq., Executive Vice President and General Counsel of American Tower. The underwriters will be represented by Shearman & Sterling
LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011 and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports, which are incorporated herein by reference (which reports (1) express an
unqualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements and include an explanatory paragraph relating to our change in the presentation of
comprehensive income and (2) express an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting). Such financial
statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available to the public
over the Internet at the SEC�s website at http://www.sec.gov. Please note that the SEC�s website is included in this prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus as an inactive textual reference only. The information contained on the SEC�s website is not incorporated by reference
into this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus and should not be considered to be part of this prospectus supplement or the
accompanying prospectus, except as described in the following paragraph. You may also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at its
public reference facility at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the
operation of the public reference facility.

We �incorporate by reference� into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus certain information we file with the SEC, which
means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is an
important part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Certain information that we subsequently file with the SEC will
automatically update and supersede information in this prospectus supplement and in our other filings with the SEC. We incorporate by
reference the documents listed below, which we have already filed with the SEC, and any future filings we make with the SEC under Sections
13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, until all the notes offered by this prospectus supplement have been sold and all conditions to the
consummation of such sales have been satisfied, except that we are not incorporating any information included in a Current Report on Form 8-K
that has been or will be furnished (and not filed) with the SEC, unless such information is expressly incorporated herein or in the accompanying
prospectus by a reference in a furnished Current Report on Form 8-K or other furnished document:

� our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on February 29, 2012;

� our Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on April 7, 2011 pursuant to Section 14 of the Exchange Act; and
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� our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 19, 2011, January 3, 2012, January 31, 2012 and February 22, 2012.

You may request a copy of these filings at no cost, by writing or calling us at the following address: 116 Huntington Avenue, Boston,
Massachusetts 02116, Tel: (617) 375-7500, Attention: Investor Relations.
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Debt Securities

We will provide the specific terms of these securities in supplements to this prospectus at the time of the offering. You should read this
prospectus and any prospectus supplement carefully before you invest.

We may offer and sell from time to time, or selling securityholders may sell from time to time, together or separately, debt securities, which may
be convertible or exchangeable into shares of our common stock.

These securities may be offered together or separately and in one or more series, if any, in amounts, at prices and on other terms to be
determined at the time of the offering and described in a prospectus supplement.

We may offer and sell these securities through one or more underwriters, dealers or agents, through underwriting syndicates managed or
co-managed by one or more underwriters, or directly to purchasers, on a continuous or delayed basis. The prospectus supplement for each
offering of securities will describe in detail the plan of distribution for that offering.

To the extent that any selling securityholder resells any securities, the selling securityholder may be required to provide you with this prospectus
and a prospectus supplement identifying and containing specific information about the selling securityholder and the terms of the securities
being offered.

Investing in the offered securities involves risks. You should consider the risk factors described in any applicable
prospectus supplement and in the documents we incorporate by reference.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or
passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement. Any representation to the contrary
is a criminal offense.

Prospectus dated January 3, 2012
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We are responsible for the information contained and incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to
give you any other information, and we take no responsibility for any other information that others may give you. We are not making
an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information
contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date of
the document containing the information.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as the SEC,
utilizing an automatic shelf registration process. Under this shelf process, we may periodically sell the securities described in this prospectus in
one or more offerings. This prospectus provides a general description of the debt securities and common stock that we may offer. Each time we
offer securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus
supplement may also add, update or change information, including information about us, contained in this prospectus. Therefore, before making
your investment decision, you should carefully read:

� this prospectus;

� any applicable prospectus supplement, which (1) explains the specific terms of the securities being offered and (2) updates
and changes information in this prospectus; and

� the documents referred to in �Where You Can Find More Information� on page 43 for information about us, including our financial
statements.

References to �we,� �us,� �our,� the �Company� and �American Tower� are references to American Tower Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries,
unless it is clear from the context that we mean only American Tower Corporation. As part of its conversion to a real estate investment trust
(�REIT�) for federal income tax purposes, effective at 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time, on December 31, 2011, American Tower Corporation merged
with and into its wholly owned subsidiary, American Tower REIT, Inc., with American Tower REIT, Inc. as the surviving corporation. At the
effective time of the merger, American Tower REIT, Inc. changed its name to �American Tower Corporation.� Prior to the effective time of the
merger, �American Tower Corporation� refers to the predecessor company, and as of the effective time of the merger, �American Tower
Corporation� refers to the successor entity.

NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference contain statements about future events and
expectations, or forward-looking statements, all of which are inherently uncertain. We have based those forward-looking statements on our
current expectations and projections about future results. When we use words such as �anticipates,� �intends,� �plans,� �believes,� �estimates,� �expects,� or
similar expressions, we do so to identify forward-looking statements. Examples of forward-looking statements include statements we make
regarding our ability to qualify or to remain qualified as a REIT; the amount and timing of quarterly distributions we are required to make as a
REIT; our substantial leverage and debt service obligations; future prospects of growth in the communications site leasing industry; the level of
future expenditures by companies in this industry and other trends in this industry; the effects of consolidation among companies in our industry
and among our customers and other competitive pressures; economic, political and other events, particularly those relating to our international
operations; our ability to maintain or increase our market share; changes in environmental, tax and other laws; our ability to protect our rights to
the land under our towers; natural disasters and similar events; the possibility of health risks relating to radio emissions; our future operating
results; our future purchases under our stock repurchase program; our future capital expenditure levels; our future financing transactions; and our
plans to fund our future liquidity needs. These statements are based on our management�s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on
currently available information. These assumptions could prove inaccurate.

You should keep in mind that any forward-looking statement we make in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement, the documents
incorporated by reference or elsewhere speaks only as of the date on which we make it. New risks and uncertainties arise from time to time, and
it is impossible for us to predict these events or how they may affect us. In any event, these and other important factors, including those set forth
under the caption

1

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 74



Table of Contents

�Risk Factors� in a prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference, may cause actual results to differ materially from those
indicated by our forward-looking statements. We do not intend to update or revise the forward-looking statements we make in this prospectus,
any prospectus supplement, the documents incorporated by reference or elsewhere, except as may be required by law. In light of these risks and
uncertainties, you should keep in mind that the future events or circumstances described in any forward-looking statement we make in this
prospectus, any prospectus supplement, the documents incorporated by reference or elsewhere might not occur.

AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION

American Tower Corporation was created as a subsidiary of American Radio Systems Corporation in 1995 to own, manage, develop and lease
communications and broadcast tower sites, and was spun off into a free-standing public company in 1998. Since inception, we have grown our
communications site portfolio through acquisitions, long-term lease arrangements, development and construction, and through mergers with and
acquisitions of other tower operators.

In order to effect its conversion to a REIT for federal income tax purposes, effective December 31, 2011, American Tower Corporation merged
with and into its wholly owned subsidiary, American Tower REIT, Inc. American Tower REIT, Inc. was the surviving corporation, and was
renamed American Tower Corporation.

American Tower Corporation is a holding company organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, and we conduct our operations through
our directly and indirectly owned subsidiaries. Our principal United States operating subsidiaries are American Towers LLC and SpectraSite,
LLC. We conduct our international operations through our subsidiary, American Tower International, Inc., which in turn conducts operations
through its various international operating subsidiaries. Our international operations consist of our operations in Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Ghana,
India, Mexico, Peru and South Africa. Effective for our taxable year that commenced January 1, 2012, we expect to be taxed as a REIT under
Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which we refer to as the Code.

Our principal executive office is located at 116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116. Our main telephone number at that address is
(617) 375-7500.

RISK FACTORS

Investing in the offered securities involves risks. Before deciding to invest in our securities, you should carefully consider the discussion of risks
and uncertainties under the heading �Risk Factors� contained in any applicable prospectus supplement and in the documents that are incorporated
by reference in this prospectus. See the section entitled �Where You Can Find More Information� on page 43.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Except as otherwise set forth in a prospectus supplement, we intend to use the net proceeds from any sale of the securities described in this
prospectus for our general corporate purposes, which may include financing possible acquisitions, refinancing our indebtedness and
repurchasing our common stock. The net proceeds may be invested temporarily in short-term marketable securities or applied to repay
short-term debt until they are used for their stated purpose.

Unless otherwise set forth in a prospectus supplement, we will not receive any proceeds in the event that the securities are sold by a selling
securityholder.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the indicated periods:

Year Ended December 31,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

(In thousands)
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (1) 1.25x 1.50x 2.12x 2.27x 2.65x 2.12x

(1) For the purpose of this calculation, �earnings� consists of income from continuing operations before income taxes, income on equity method
investments and fixed charges (excluding interest capitalized and amortization of interest capitalized). �Fixed charges� consist of interest
expensed and capitalized, amortization of debt discount and related issuance costs and the component of rental expense associated with
operating leases believed by management to be representative of the interest factor thereon.
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DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

This section describes the general terms that will apply to any debt securities that we may offer pursuant to this prospectus and an applicable
prospectus supplement. The specific terms of any offered debt securities, and the extent to which the general terms described in this section
apply to these debt securities, will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement at the time of the offering. The prospectus supplement,
which we will file with the SEC, may or may not modify the general terms found in this prospectus. For a complete description of any series of
debt securities, you should read both this prospectus and the prospectus supplement that applies to that series of debt securities.

In this section, the terms �we,� �our,� �us� and �American Tower� refer solely to American Tower Corporation (and not to any of its affiliates, including
subsidiaries). As used in this prospectus, �debt securities� means the senior debentures, notes, bonds and other evidences of indebtedness offered
pursuant to this prospectus and an applicable prospectus supplement and authenticated by the relevant trustee and delivered under the applicable
indenture.

We may issue senior debt securities under an indenture dated as of May 13, 2010 between us and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as trustee. The indenture has been supplemented from time to time, including, without limitation, effective December 31, 2011,
whereby American Tower REIT, Inc. (now known as American Tower Corporation) as successor to American Tower Corporation, assumed all
of American Tower Corporation�s obligations under the indenture. This indenture, as supplemented, is referred to in this prospectus as the
�indenture.� We refer to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as the �trustee� in this prospectus. If a different trustee or a different
indenture for a series of debt securities is used, those details will be provided in a prospectus supplement and the forms of any other indentures
will be filed with the SEC at the time they are used.

We have summarized below the material provisions of the indenture and the debt securities, and indicated which material provisions will be
described in an applicable prospectus supplement. For further information, you should read the indenture. The indenture is an exhibit to the
registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the provisions of the indenture.

General

The debt securities that we may offer under the indenture are not limited in aggregate principal amount. We may issue debt securities at one or
more times in one or more series. Each series of debt securities may have different terms. The terms of any series of debt securities will be
described in, or determined by action taken pursuant to, a resolution of our board of directors or a committee appointed by our board of directors
or in a supplement to the indenture relating to that series.

We are not obligated to issue all debt securities of one series at the same time and, unless otherwise provided in the prospectus supplement, we
may reopen a series, without the consent of the holders of the debt securities of that series, for the issuance of additional debt securities of that
series. Additional debt securities of a particular series will have the same terms and conditions as outstanding debt securities of that series,
except for the date of original issuance and the offering price, and will be consolidated with, and form a single series with, those outstanding
debt securities.

The prospectus supplement relating to any series of debt securities that we may offer will state the price or prices at which the debt securities
will be offered and will contain the specific terms of that series. These terms may include the following:

� the title of the series;

� any limit upon the aggregate principal amount of the series;

� the date or dates on which each of the principal of and premium, if any, on the securities of the series is payable and the method of
determination thereof;
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� the rate or rates at which the securities of the series shall bear interest, if any, or the method of calculating such rate or rates of
interest, the date or dates from which such interest shall accrue or the method by which such date or dates shall be determined, the
interest payment dates on which any such interest shall be payable and the record date, if any;

� the place or places where the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest, if any, on securities of the series shall be payable;

� the place or places where the securities may be exchanged or transferred;

� the period or periods within which, the price or prices at which, the currency or currencies (including currency unit or units) in
which, and the other terms and conditions upon which, securities of the series may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at our option, if
we are to have that option with respect to the applicable series;

� our obligation, if any, to redeem or purchase securities of the series in whole or in part pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous
provision or upon the happening of a specified event or at the option of a holder thereof and the period or periods within which, the
price or prices at which, and the other terms and conditions upon which securities of the series shall be redeemed or purchased, in
whole or in part, pursuant to such obligation;

� if other than denominations of $2,000 and multiples of $1,000 thereafter, the denominations in which securities of the series are
issuable;

� if other than U.S. dollars, the currency or currencies (including currency unit or units) in which payments of principal of (and
premium, if any) and interest, if any, on the securities of the series shall or may be payable, or in which the securities of the series
shall be denominated, and the particular provisions applicable thereto;

� if the payments of principal of (and premium, if any), or interest, if any, on the securities of the series are to be made, at our or a
holder�s election, in a currency or currencies (including currency unit or units) other than that in which such securities are
denominated or designated to be payable, the currency or currencies (including currency unit or units) in which such payments are to
be made, the terms and conditions of such payments and the manner in which the exchange rate with respect to such payments shall
be determined, and the particular provisions applicable thereto;

� if the amount of payments of principal of (and premium, if any) and interest, if any, on the securities of the series shall be determined
with reference to an index, formula or other method (which index, formula or method may be based, without limitation, on a
currency or currencies (including currency unit or units) other than that in which the securities of the series are denominated or
designated to be payable), the index, formula or other method by which such amounts shall be determined;

� whether, and the terms and conditions upon which, the securities of the series may or must be converted into our securities or
exchanged for our securities or those of another enterprise;

� if other than the principal amount thereof, the portion of the principal amount of securities of the series which shall be payable upon
declaration of acceleration of the maturity thereof pursuant to an event of default or the method by which such portion shall be
determined;
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� any modifications of or additions to the events of default or covenants with respect to securities of the series;

� whether the securities of the series will be subject to legal defeasance or covenant defeasance as provided in the indenture;

� if other than the trustee, the identity of the registrar and any paying agent;

� if the securities of the series shall be issued in whole or in part in global form, (i) the depositary for such global securities, (ii) the
form of any legend that shall be borne by such global security,
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(iii) whether beneficial owners of interests in any securities of the series in global form may exchange such interests for certificated
securities of that series and of like tenor of any authorized form and denomination and (iv) the circumstances under which any such
exchange may occur; and

� any other terms of the series.
Interest

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, if any payment date with respect to debt securities falls on a day that is not a
business day, we will make the payment on the next business day. The payment made on the next business day will be treated as though it had
been made on the original payment date, and no interest will accrue on the payment for the additional period of time.

Ranking

The debt securities will be our direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations and will rank pari passu with all of our other
unsecured senior obligations. However, the senior debt securities will be effectively junior to all of our secured obligations to the extent of the
value of the assets securing those obligations. The debt securities will also be structurally subordinated to all liabilities, including trade payables
and lease obligations, of our subsidiaries.

Covenants

Except as described below or in the prospectus supplement with respect to any series of debt securities, neither we nor our subsidiaries are
restricted by the indenture from paying dividends or making distributions on our or their capital stock or purchasing or redeeming our or their
capital stock. The indenture does not require the maintenance of any financial ratios or specified levels of net worth or liquidity. In addition, with
certain exceptions, the indenture does not contain any covenants or other provisions that would limit our or our subsidiaries� right to incur
additional indebtedness or limit the amount of additional indebtedness, including senior or secured indebtedness that we can create, incur,
assume or guarantee.

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, covenants contained in the indenture will be applicable to the series of debt
securities to which the prospectus supplement relates so long as any of the debt securities of that series are outstanding.

Reporting

The indenture provides that we shall furnish to the trustee, within 15 days after we are required to file such annual and quarterly reports,
information, documents and other reports with the SEC, copies of our annual report and of the information, documents and other reports that we
are required to file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which we refer to as the Exchange Act.
We shall also comply with the other provisions of Section 314(a) of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, which we refer to as the
Trust Indenture Act.

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets

The indenture provides that we may not consolidate or merge with or into, or sell or convey all or substantially all of our assets in any one
transaction or series of related transactions to another person, unless:

� either we are the resulting, surviving or transferee corporation, or our successor is a corporation organized under the laws of the
United States, any state or the District of Columbia and expressly assumes by supplemental indenture all of our obligations under the
indenture and all the debt securities; and

� immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no default or event of default has occurred and is continuing.
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The term �default� for the purpose of this provision means any event that is, or with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both would
become, an event of default.

Except in the case of a lease of all or substantially all of our assets, the successor will be substituted for us in the indenture with the same effect
as if it had been an original party to such indenture. Thereafter, the successor may exercise our rights and powers under the indenture.

Events of Default, Notice and Waiver

In the indenture, the term �event of default� with respect to debt securities of any series means any of the following:

� failure by us to pay interest, if any, on the debt securities of that series for 30 days after the date payment is due and payable;

� failure by us to pay principal of or premium, if any, on the debt securities of that series when due, at maturity, upon any redemption,
by declaration or otherwise;

� failure by us to comply with other covenants in the indenture or the debt securities of that series for 90 days after notice that
compliance was required; and

� certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency of us or any of our significant subsidiaries.
The term �significant subsidiaries� for the purpose of this provision means any of our subsidiaries that would be a �significant subsidiary� as defined
in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which we refer to as the Securities Act.

If an event of default (other than relating to certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency of us or breach of our reporting obligation) has occurred
and is continuing, the trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that series may declare
the entire principal of all the debt securities of the affected series to be due and payable immediately.

If an event of default relating to certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency of us occurs and is continuing, then the principal amount of all of the
outstanding debt securities and any accrued interest thereon will automatically become due and payable immediately, without any declaration or
other act by the trustee or any holder.

The holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of any series may, after satisfying conditions, rescind
and annul any of the above-described declarations and consequences involving the debt securities of that series, except a continuing default or
event of default in the payment of principal of, or interest or premium, if any, on the debt securities of the affected series.

The indenture imposes limitations on suits brought by holders of debt securities of any series against us. Except for actions for payment of
overdue principal or interest, no holder of a debt security of any series may institute any action against us under the indenture unless:

� the holder has previously given to the trustee written notice of an event of default and the continuance of that event of default;

� the holder or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series have requested
that the trustee pursue the remedy;

� such holder or holders have offered to the trustee security or indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the trustee against the costs,
expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request;
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� the trustee has not received inconsistent direction by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities
of that series.

We will be required to file annually with the trustee a certificate, signed by two officers of our company, stating whether or not the officers
know of any default by us in the performance, observance or fulfillment of any condition or covenant of the indenture.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the sole remedy for any breach of our obligation under the indenture to file or furnish reports or other financial
information pursuant to section 314(a)(1) of the Trust Indenture Act (or as otherwise required by the indenture) shall be the payment of
liquidated damages, and the holders will not have any right under the indenture to accelerate the maturity of the debt securities of the affected
series as a result of any such breach. If any such breach continues for 90 days after notice thereof is given in accordance with the indenture, we
will pay liquidated damages to all the holders of the debt securities of that series at a rate per annum equal to (i) 0.25% per annum of the
principal amount of the debt securities of that series from the 90th day following such notice to but not including the 180th day following such
notice (or such earlier date on which the event of default relating to the reporting obligations referred to in this paragraph shall have been cured
or waived) and (ii) 0.50% per annum of the principal amount of the debt securities of that series from the 180th day following such notice to but
not including the 365th day following such notice (or such earlier date on which the event of default relating to the reporting obligations referred
to in this paragraph shall have been cured or waived). On such 365th day (or earlier, if the event of default relating to the reporting obligations
referred to in this paragraph shall have been cured or waived prior to such 365th day), such additional interest will cease to accrue, and the debt
securities of that series will be subject to acceleration as provided above if the event of default is continuing. The provisions of the indenture
described in this paragraph will not affect the rights of the holders of the debt securities of any series in the event of the occurrence of any other
event of default.

Modification and Waiver

Except as provided in the two succeeding paragraphs, the indenture provides that we and the trustee thereunder may, with the consent of the
holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of any series then outstanding (including, without
limitation, consents obtained in connection with a purchase of, or tender offer or exchange offer for, debt securities of that series), voting as one
class, add any provisions to, or change in any manner, eliminate or modify in any way the provisions of, the indenture or modify in any manner
the rights of the holders of the debt securities of that series.

We and the trustee may amend or supplement the indenture or the debt securities of any series without the consent of any holder to:

� secure the debt securities of any series;

� evidence the assumption by a successor corporation of our obligations under the indenture and the debt securities of any series in the
case of a merger, amalgamation, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets;

� add covenant(s) or events of default(s) for the protection of the holders of all or any series of debt securities;

� cure any ambiguity or correct any defect or inconsistency in the indenture or make any other provisions as we may deem necessary
or desirable; provided, however, that no such provisions will materially adversely affect the interests of the holders of any debt
securities;

� evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee in accordance with the indenture;

� provide for uncertificated debt securities in addition to, or in place of, certificated debt securities of any series in a manner that does
not materially and adversely affect any holders of the debt securities of that series;
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� conform the text of the indenture or the debt securities of any series to any provision of this �Description of Debt Securities� or
�Description of Securities� in the prospectus supplement for such series to the extent that such provision in such description was
intended to be a verbatim recitation of a provision of the indenture or the debt securities of that series;

� provide for the issuance of additional debt securities of any series in accordance with the limitations set forth in the indenture as of
the date of the indenture;

� make any change that would provide any additional rights or benefits to the holders of all or any series of debt securities or that does
not adversely affect the legal rights under the indenture of any such holder or any holder of a beneficial interest in the debt securities
of that series;

� comply with requirements of the SEC in order to effect or maintain the qualification of the indenture under the Trust Indenture Act;

� establish the form or terms of debt securities of any series as permitted by the indenture;

� secure our obligations in respect of the debt securities of any series;

� in the case of convertible or exchangeable debt securities of any series, subject to the provisions of the supplemental indenture for
that series, to provide for conversion rights, exchange rights and/or repurchase rights of holders of that series in connection with any
reclassification or change of our common stock or in the event of any amalgamation, consolidation, merger or sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of us or our subsidiaries substantially as an entirety occurs;

� in the case of convertible or exchangeable debt securities of any series, to reduce the conversion price or exchange price applicable to
that series;

� in the case of convertible or exchangeable debt securities of any series, to increase the conversion rate or exchange ratio in the
manner described in the supplemental indenture for that series, provided that the increase will not adversely affect the interests of the
holders of that series in any material respect; or

� any other action to amend or supplement the indenture or the debt securities of any series as described in the prospectus supplement
with respect to that series of debt securities.

We and the trustee may not, without the consent of the holder of each outstanding debt security affected thereby:

� change the final maturity of any debt security;

� reduce the aggregate principal amount on any debt security;

� reduce the rate or amend or modify the calculation, or time of payment, of interest, including defaulted interest on any debt security;
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� reduce or alter the method of computation of any amount payable on any debt security upon redemption, prepayment or purchase of
any debt security or otherwise alter or waive any of the provisions with respect to the redemption of any debt security, or waive a
redemption payment with respect to any debt security;

� change the currency in which the principal of, or interest or premium, if any, on any debt security is payable;

� impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on any debt security when due, or otherwise make any change in
the provisions of the indenture relating to waivers of past defaults or the rights of holders of any debt security to receive payments of
principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on any debt security;
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� modify the provisions of the indenture with respect to modification and waiver (including waiver of certain covenants, waiver of a
default or event of default in respect of debt securities of any series), except to increase the percentage required for modification or
waiver or to provide for the consent of each affected holder;

� reduce the percentage of principal amount of outstanding debt securities of any series whose holders must consent to an amendment,
supplement or waiver of the indenture or the debt securities of that series;

� impair the rights of holders of debt securities of any series that are exchangeable or convertible to receive payment or delivery of any
consideration due upon the conversion or exchange of the debt securities of that series; or

� any other action to modify or amend the indenture or the debt securities of any series as may be described in the prospectus
supplement with respect to that series of debt securities as requiring the consent of each holder affected thereby.

Defeasance

The indenture provides that we will be discharged from any and all obligations in respect of the debt securities of any series (except for certain
obligations to register the transfer or exchange of the debt securities, to replace stolen, lost or mutilated debt securities, to maintain paying
agencies and hold monies for payment in trust and to pay the principal of and interest, if any, on those debt securities), upon the deposit with the
applicable trustee, in trust, of money and/or U.S. government obligations, which through the payment of interest and principal of the U.S.
government obligations in accordance with their terms will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay any installment of principal and
premium, if any, and interest, if any, on the debt securities of that series on the stated maturity date thereof in accordance with the terms of the
indenture and the debt securities of that series. Also, the establishment of such a trust will be conditioned on the delivery by us to the trustee of
an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the trustee to the effect that, based upon applicable U.S. federal income tax law or a ruling
published by the United States Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, such a defeasance and discharge will not be deemed, or result in, a taxable
event with respect to the holders. For the avoidance of doubt, such an opinion would require a change in current U.S. tax law.

We may also omit to comply with the restrictive covenants, if any, of any particular series of debt securities, other than our covenant to pay the
amounts due and owing with respect to that series. Thereafter, any such omission shall not be an event of default with respect to the debt
securities of that series, upon the deposit with the applicable trustee, in trust, of money and/or U.S. government obligations, which through the
payment of interest and principal of the U.S. government obligations in accordance with their terms will provide money in an amount sufficient
to pay any installment of principal and premium, if any, and interest, if any, on the debt securities of that series on the stated maturity date
thereof in accordance with the terms of the indenture and the debt securities of that series. Our obligations under the indenture and the debt
securities of that series other than with respect to those covenants will remain in full force and effect. Also, the establishment of such a trust will
be conditioned on the delivery by us to the trustee of an opinion of counsel to the effect that such a defeasance and discharge will not be deemed,
or result in, a taxable event with respect to the holders.

Satisfaction and Discharge

At our option, we may satisfy and discharge the indenture with respect to the debt securities of any series (except for specified obligations of the
trustee and ours, including, among others, the obligations to apply money held in trust) when:

� either (a) all debt securities of that series previously authenticated under the indenture have been delivered to the trustee for
cancellation or (b) all debt securities of that series not yet delivered to the trustee for cancellation (i) have become due and payable
by reason of the mailing of a notice of
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redemption or otherwise or (ii) will become due and payable within one year, and we have irrevocably deposited or caused to be
deposited with the trustee as trust funds in trust solely for the benefit of the holders an amount sufficient to pay and discharge the
entire indebtedness on debt securities of that series;

� no default or event of default with respect to debt securities of that series has occurred or is continuing on the date of the deposit or
will occur as a result of the deposit and the deposit will not result in a breach or violation of any other instrument to which we are
bound;

� we have paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable by us under the indenture and any applicable supplemental indenture with
respect to the debt securities of that series;

� we have delivered irrevocable instructions to the trustee to apply the deposited funds toward the payment of securities of that series
at the stated maturity date or the redemption date, as applicable; and

� we have delivered to the trustee an officers� certificate stating that all conditions precedent relating to the satisfaction and discharge of
the indenture as to that series have been satisfied.

Unclaimed Money

If money deposited with the trustee or paying agent for the payment of principal of, premium or accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on debt
securities remains unclaimed for two years, the trustee and paying agent will pay the money back to us upon our request. However, the trustee
and paying agent have the right to withhold paying the money back to us until they publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of
New York, or mail to each holder, a notice stating that the money will be paid back to us if unclaimed after a date no less than 30 days from the
publication or mailing. After the trustee or paying agent pays the money back to us, holders of debt securities entitled to the money must look to
us for payment, subject to applicable law, and all liability of the trustee and the paying agent with respect to the money will cease.

Purchase and Cancellation

The registrar and paying agent will forward to the trustee any debt securities surrendered to them for transfer, exchange or payment, and the
trustee will promptly cancel those debt securities in accordance with its customary procedures. We will not issue new debt securities to replace
debt securities that we have paid or delivered to the trustee for cancellation or that any holder has converted.

We may, to the extent permitted by law, purchase debt securities in the open market or by tender offer at any price or by private agreement. We
may, at our option and to the extent permitted by law, reissue, resell or surrender to the trustee for cancellation any debt securities we purchase
in this manner; provided that we not reissue or resell those debt securities if upon reissuance or resale, they would constitute �restricted securities�
within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act. Debt securities surrendered to the trustee for cancellation may not be reissued or resold
and will be promptly cancelled.

Replacement of Debt Securities

We will replace mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen debt securities at the holder�s expense upon delivery to the trustee of the mutilated debt
securities or evidence of the loss, destruction or theft of the debt securities satisfactory to the trustee and us. In the case of a lost, destroyed or
stolen debt security, we or the trustee may require, at the expense of the holder, indemnity satisfactory to us and the trustee.

Regarding the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. is the trustee under the indenture.

Except during the continuance of an event of default, the trustee will perform only such duties as are specifically set forth in the indenture.
During the existence of an event of default, the trustee will exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it under the indenture and use the
same degree of care and skill in its exercise as a
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prudent person would exercise under the circumstances in the conduct of such person�s own affairs. The holders of a majority in principal amount
of the then outstanding debt securities of any series will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for
exercising any remedy available to the trustee, subject to certain exceptions. Subject to these provisions, the trustee will be under no obligation
to exercise any of its rights or powers under the indenture at the request of any holder of debt securities, unless such holder has offered to the
trustee security and indemnity satisfactory to it against any loss, liability or expense.

Pursuant and subject to the Trust Indenture Act, the trustee will be permitted to engage in other transactions with us; however, if the trustee
acquires any conflicting interest, it would be required to eliminate such conflict within 90 days, apply to the SEC for permission to continue as
trustee or resign. The trustee is also the trustee under each of the indentures under which our other senior debt securities have been issued, and
also acts as our stock transfer agent for our common stock, warrant agent for warrants to purchase our common stock and servicer under the loan
agreement related to our securitization transaction.

No individual liability of directors, officers, employees, incorporators, stockholders or agents

The indenture provides that none of our past, present or future directors, officers, employees, incorporators, stockholders or agents in their
capacity as such will have any liability for any of our obligations under the debt securities of any series or the indenture. Each holder of debt
securities of any series by accepting a debt security waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration for
issuance of the debt securities. The waiver may not be effective to waive liabilities under the federal securities laws and it is the view of the SEC
that such a waiver is against public policy.

Governing law

The indenture and debt securities of each series are governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
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DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK

We may periodically issue debt securities that can be converted or exchanged into shares of our common stock. The description below
summarizes the general terms of our common stock. This section is a summary, and it does not describe every aspect of our common stock. This
summary is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which we refer to
as our Certificate of Incorporation, and our Amended and Restated By-Laws, which we refer to as our By-Laws.

Authorized Shares

As of the date of this prospectus, we are authorized to issue up to one billion (1,000,000,000) shares of common stock with one cent ($0.01) par
value per share and twenty million (20,000,000) shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share.

Voting Rights

With respect to all matters upon which stockholders are entitled to vote, the holders of the outstanding shares of common stock are entitled to
one (1) vote in person or by proxy for each share of common stock outstanding in the name of such stockholders on the record of stockholders.
Generally, all matters to be voted on by stockholders must be approved by a majority (or by a plurality in the case of election of directors where
the number of candidates nominated for election exceeds the number of directors to be elected) of the votes entitled to be cast by all shares of
common stock present in person or by proxy.

Dividends

Subject to applicable law and rights, if any, of the holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock or any class or series of stock having a
preference over the common stock with respect to the payment of dividends, dividends may be declared and paid on the common stock from
time to time and in amounts as our board of directors may determine. We anticipate initiating a regular quarterly dividend in 2012, but the
amount, timing and frequency of any such distribution will be at the sole discretion of our board of directors, and will be declared based upon
various factors, including without limitation distributions required to maintain REIT status. The loan agreements for our credit facilities contain
covenants that restrict our ability to pay dividends unless certain financial covenants are satisfied.

Liquidation Rights

Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, the holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably
in all assets available for distribution after payment in full to creditors and payment in full to holders of preferred stock then outstanding of any
amount required to be paid to them. Neither the merger, consolidation or business combination of American Tower with or into any other entity
in which our stockholders receive capital stock and/or other securities (including debt securities) of the surviving entity (or the direct or indirect
parent entity thereof), nor the sale, lease or transfer by us of any part of our business and assets, nor the reduction of our capital stock, shall be
deemed to be a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Other Provisions

The holders of common stock have no preemptive, subscription or redemption rights and are not entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund. The
shares of common stock presently outstanding are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

We may not subdivide, combine, or pay or declare any stock dividend on, the outstanding shares of common stock unless all outstanding shares
of common stock are subdivided or combined or the holders of common stock receive a proportionate dividend.
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Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

For us to comply with and have maximum business flexibility under the Federal Communications Laws (defined in our Certificate of
Incorporation and including the Communications Act of 1934, as amended), and for us to qualify as a REIT under the Code, our Certificate of
Incorporation contains restrictions on stock ownership and stock transfers. These ownership and transfer restrictions could delay, defer or
prevent a transaction or a change in control that might involve a premium price for our common stock or otherwise be in the best interest of the
stockholders.

Federal Communications Laws Restrictions. Our Certificate of Incorporation permits us to restrict the ownership or proposed ownership of
shares of our common stock if that ownership or proposed ownership (i) is or could be inconsistent with, or in violation of, Federal
Communications Laws (as defined in our Certificate of Incorporation); (ii) limits or impairs, or could limit or impair, our business activities or
proposed business activities under the Federal Communications Laws; or (iii) subjects or could subject us to CFIUS Review (as defined in our
Certificate of Incorporation) or to any provision of the Federal Communications Laws, including those requiring any review, authorization or
approval, to which we would not be subject but for that ownership or proposed ownership, including, without limitation, Section 310 of the
Communications Act and regulations relating to foreign ownership, multiple ownership or cross-ownership (clauses (i) through (iii) above are
collectively referred to as FCC Regulatory Limitations). We reserve the right to require any person to whom a FCC Regulatory Limitation may
apply to promptly furnish to us such information (including, without limitation, information with respect to the citizenship, other ownership
interests and affiliations) as we may request. If such person fails to furnish all of the information we request, or we conclude that such person�s
ownership or proposed ownership of our common stock, or the exercise by such person of any rights of stock ownership in connection with our
common stock, may result in an FCC Regulatory Limitation, we reserve the right to:

� refuse to permit the transfer of shares of our common stock and/or preferred stock to such person;

� to the fullest extent permitted by law, suspend those rights of stock ownership the exercise of which may cause the FCC Regulatory
Limitation;

� require the conversion of any or all shares of our preferred stock held by such person into a number of shares of our common stock of
equivalent value;

� redeem the shares of our common stock and/or our preferred stock held by such person pursuant to the procedures set forth below;
and/or

� exercise any and all appropriate remedies, at law or in equity, in any court of competent jurisdiction, against any such person, with a
view toward obtaining the information or preventing or curing any situation that may cause an FCC Regulatory Limitation.

The following procedures apply to the redemption of such person�s shares of our common stock and/or preferred stock:

� the redemption price of any redeemed shares of our common stock or preferred stock shall be the fair market value (as defined in the
our Certificate of Incorporation) of those shares;

� the redemption price may be paid in cash or any other of our debt or equity securities or any combination thereof;

� the board of directors in its sole discretion may decide to only redeem some (and not all) of such person�s shares, which may include
the selection of the most recently purchased or acquired shares, selection by lot or selection by such other manner as the board of
directors may determine;
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� we must provide at least 15 days� prior written notice of the date on which we plan to effect the redemption (unless waived by such
person); provided, that the redemption date may be the date on which written notice is given to such person if the cash (or any other
of our debt or equity securities) necessary to effect the redemption has been deposited in trust for the benefit of such person and is
subject to immediate withdrawal by such person upon surrender of the stock certificates for the redeemed shares;
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� from and after the date of the redemption, any and all rights relating to the redeemed shares shall cease and terminate and such
person shall only possess the right to obtain cash (or such other of our debt or equity securities) payable upon the redemption; and

� such other terms and condition as the board of directors may determine.
REIT Restrictions. For us to qualify as a REIT under the Code, our stock must be beneficially owned by 100 or more persons during at least 335
days of a taxable year of 12 months or during a proportionate part of a shorter taxable year (other than the first year for which an election to be a
REIT has been made). In addition, not more than 50% of the value of the outstanding shares of our stock may be owned, directly or indirectly,
by five or fewer �individuals� (as defined in the Code to include certain entities such as private foundations) during the last half of a taxable year
(other than the first taxable year for which an election to be a REIT has been made). To ensure that these ownership requirements and other
requirements for continued qualification as a REIT are met and to otherwise protect us from the consequences of a concentration of ownership
among our stockholders, our Certificate of Incorporation contains provisions restricting the ownership or transfer of shares of our stock.

The relevant sections of our Certificate of Incorporation provide that, subject to the exceptions and the constructive ownership rules described
below, no person (as defined in our Certificate of Incorporation) may beneficially or constructively own more than 9.8% in value of our
aggregate outstanding stock, including common stock and preferred stock, or more than 9.8% in value or number (whichever is more restrictive)
of the outstanding shares of any class or series of our stock. We refer to these restrictions as the �ownership limits.�

The applicable constructive ownership rules under the Code are complex and may cause stock owned, actually or constructively, by a group of
related individuals or entities to be treated as owned by one individual or entity. As a result, the acquisition of less than 9.8% in value of our
aggregate outstanding stock or less than 9.8% in value or number of our outstanding shares of any class or series of stock (including through the
acquisition of an interest in an entity that owns, actually or constructively, any class or series of our stock) by an individual or entity could
nevertheless cause that individual or entity, or another individual or entity, to own, constructively or beneficially, in excess of 9.8% in value of
our aggregate outstanding stock or 9.8% in value or number of our outstanding shares of any class or series of stock.

In addition to the ownership limits, our Certificate of Incorporation prohibits any person from actually or constructively owning shares of our
stock to the extent that such ownership would cause any of our income that would otherwise qualify as �rents from real property� for purposes of
Section 856(d) of the Code to fail to qualify as such.

The board of directors may, in its sole discretion, exempt a person from the ownership limits and certain other REIT limits on ownership and
transfer of our stock described above, and may establish a different limit on ownership for that person. However, the board of directors may not
exempt any person whose ownership of outstanding stock in violation of these limits would result in our failing to qualify as a REIT. In order to
be considered by the board of directors for an exemption or a different limit on ownership, a person must make such representations and
undertakings as are reasonably necessary to ascertain that the person�s beneficial or constructive ownership of our stock will not now or in the
future jeopardize our ability to qualify as a REIT and must agree that any violation or attempted violation of those representations or
undertakings (or other action that is contrary to the ownership limits and certain other REIT limits on ownership and transfer of our stock
described above) will result in the shares of stock being automatically transferred to a trust as described below. As a condition of its waiver, the
board of directors may require an opinion of counsel or IRS ruling satisfactory to it with respect to our qualification as a REIT and may impose
such other conditions as it deems appropriate in connection with the granting of the exemption or different limit on ownership.

In connection with the waiver of the ownership limits or at any other time, the board of directors may from time to time increase the ownership
limits for one or more persons and decrease the ownership limits for all other

15

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 93



Table of Contents

persons; provided that the new ownership limits may not, after giving effect to such increase and under certain assumptions stated in our
Certificate of Incorporation, result in us being �closely held� within the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code (without regard to whether the
ownership interests are held during the last half of a taxable year). Reduced ownership limits will not apply to any person whose percentage
ownership of our aggregate outstanding stock or of the shares of a class or series of our stock, as applicable, is in excess of such decreased
ownership limits until such time as that person�s percentage of our aggregate outstanding stock or of the shares of a class or series of stock, as
applicable, equals or falls below the decreased ownership limits, but any further acquisition of shares of our stock or of a class or series of our
stock, as applicable, in excess of such percentage ownership of shares of stock or of a class or series of stock will be in violation of the
ownership limits.

Our Certificate of Incorporation further prohibits:

� any person from transferring shares of our stock if the transfer would result in our aggregate outstanding stock being beneficially
owned by fewer than 100 persons (determined without reference to any rules of attribution); and

� any person from beneficially or constructively owning shares of our stock if that ownership would result in our failing to qualify as a
REIT.

The foregoing provisions on transferability and ownership will not apply if the board of directors determines that it is no longer in our best
interests to attempt to qualify, or to continue to qualify, as a REIT.

Any person who acquires, or attempts or intends to acquire, beneficial or constructive ownership of shares of our stock that will or may violate
the ownership limits or any of the other foregoing restrictions on transferability and ownership will be required to give notice to us immediately
(or, in the case of a proposed or attempted transaction, at least 15 days prior to the transaction) and provide us with such other information as we
may request in order to determine the effect, if any, of the transfer on our qualification as a REIT.

Pursuant to our Certificate of Incorporation, if there is any purported transfer of our stock or other event or change of circumstances that, if
effective or otherwise, would violate any of the restrictions described above, then the number of shares causing the violation (rounded up to the
nearest whole share) will be automatically transferred to a trust for the exclusive benefit of a designated charitable beneficiary, except that any
transfer that results in the violation of the restriction relating to our stock being beneficially owned by fewer than 100 persons will be
automatically void and of no force or effect. The automatic transfer will be effective as of the close of business on the business day prior to the
date of the purported transfer or other event or change of circumstances that requires the transfer to the trust. We refer below to the person that
would have owned the shares if they had not been transferred to the trust as the purported transferee. Any ordinary dividend paid to the
purported transferee prior to our discovery that the shares had been automatically transferred to a trust as described above must be repaid to the
trustee upon demand. Our Certificate of Incorporation also provides for adjustments to the entitlement to receive extraordinary dividends and
other distributions as between the purported transferee and the trust. If the transfer to the trust as described above is not automatically effective
for any reason, to prevent violation of the applicable restriction contained in our Certificate of Incorporation, the transfer of the excess shares
will be automatically void and of no force or effect.

Shares of our stock transferred to the trustee are deemed to be offered for sale to us or our designee at a price per share equal to the lesser of
(i) the price per share in the transaction that resulted in the transfer to the trust or, if the purported transferee did not give value for the shares in
connection with the event causing the shares to be held in trust (e.g., in the case of a gift, devise or other similar transaction), the market price at
the time of the event and (ii) the market price on the date we accept, or our designee accepts, the offer. We have the right to accept the offer until
the trustee has sold the shares of our stock held in the trust pursuant to the clauses discussed below. Upon a sale to us, the interest of the
charitable beneficiary in the shares sold terminates and the trustee must distribute the net proceeds of the sale to the purported transferee, except
that the trustee may reduce
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the amount payable to the purported transferee by the amount of any ordinary dividends that we paid to the purported transferee prior to our
discovery that the shares had been transferred to the trust and that is owed by the purported transferee to the trustee as described above. Any net
sales proceeds in excess of the amount payable to the purported transferee will be immediately paid to the charitable beneficiary, and any
ordinary dividends held by the trustee with respect to the stock will be paid to the charitable beneficiary.

If we do not buy the shares, the trustee must, as soon as reasonably practicable (and, if the shares are listed on a national securities exchange,
within 20 days) after receiving notice from us of the transfer of shares to the trust, sell the shares to a person or entity who could own the shares
without violating the restrictions described above. Upon such a sale, the trustee must distribute to the purported transferee an amount equal to the
lesser of (i) the price paid by the purported transferee for the shares or, if the purported transferee did not give value for the shares in connection
with the event causing the shares to be held in trust (e.g., in the case of a gift, devise or other such transaction), the market price of the shares on
the day of the event causing the shares to be held in the trust, and (ii) the sales proceeds (net of commissions and other expenses of sale) received
by the trustee for the shares. The trustee may reduce the amount payable to the purported transferee by the amount of any ordinary dividends that
we paid to the purported transferee before our discovery that the shares had been transferred to the trust and that is owed by the purported
transferee to the trustee as described above. Any net sales proceeds in excess of the amount payable to the purported transferee will be
immediately paid to the charitable beneficiary, together with any ordinary dividends held by the trustee with respect to such stock. In addition, if
prior to discovery by us that shares of common stock have been transferred to a trust, the shares of stock are sold by a purported transferee, then
the shares will be deemed to have been sold on behalf of the trust and, to the extent that the purported transferee received an amount for or in
respect of the shares that exceeds the amount that the purported transferee was entitled to receive as described above, the excess amount will be
paid to the trustee upon demand. The purported transferee has no rights in the shares held by the trustee.

The trustee will be indemnified by us or from the proceeds of sales of stock in the trust for its costs and expenses reasonably incurred in
connection with conducting its duties and satisfying its obligations under our Certificate of Incorporation. The trustee will also be entitled to
reasonable compensation for services provided as determined by agreement between the trustee and the board of directors, which compensation
may be funded by us or the trust. If we pay any such indemnification or compensation, we are entitled on a first priority basis (subject to the
trustee�s indemnification and compensation rights) to be reimbursed from the trust. To the extent the trust funds any such indemnification and
compensation, the amounts available for payment to a purported transferee (or the charitable beneficiary) would be reduced.

The trustee will be designated by us and must be unaffiliated with us and with any purported transferee. Prior to the sale of any shares by the
trust, the trustee will receive, in trust for the beneficiary, all distributions paid by us with respect to the shares, and may also exercise all voting
rights with respect to the shares.

Subject to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, which we refer to as the DGCL, effective as of the date that the shares have
been transferred to the trust, the trustee will have the authority, at the trustee�s sole discretion:

� to rescind as void any vote cast by a purported transferee prior to our discovery that the shares have been transferred to the trust; and

� to recast the vote in accordance with the desires of the trustee acting for the benefit of the charitable beneficiary of the trust.
However, if we have already taken corporate action, then the trustee may not rescind and recast the vote.

In addition, if our board of directors determines that a proposed or purported transfer would violate the restrictions on ownership and transfer of
our stock set forth in our Certificate of Incorporation, our board of directors may take such action as it deems advisable to refuse to give effect to
or to prevent the violation, including but not limited to, causing us to repurchase shares of our stock, refusing to give effect to the transfer on our
books or instituting proceedings to enjoin the transfer.
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Following the end of each REIT taxable year, every owner of 5% or more (or such lower percentage as required by the Code or the Treasury
regulations promulgated thereunder) of the outstanding shares of any class or series of our stock, must, upon request, provide us written notice of
the person�s name and address, the number of shares of each class and series of our stock that the person beneficially owns and a description of
the manner in which the shares are held. Each such owner must also provide us with such additional information as we may request in order to
determine the effect, if any, of such owner�s beneficial ownership on our qualification as a REIT and to ensure compliance with the ownership
limits. In addition, each beneficial owner or constructive owner of our stock, and any person (including the stockholder of record) who is
holding shares of our stock for a beneficial owner or constructive owner will, upon demand, be required to provide us with such information as
we may request in good faith in order to determine our qualification as a REIT and to comply with the requirements of any taxing authority or
governmental authority or to determine such compliance.

Preferred Stock

As noted above, the rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of our common stock may be affected by the rights, preferences and
privileges granted to holders of preferred stock. Pursuant to our Certificate of Incorporation, the board of directors is empowered, without any
approval of our stockholders, to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series, to establish the number of shares in each series, and to fix
the relative rights, preferences, powers, qualifications, limitations and restrictions of each such series. The specific matters that may be
determined by the board of directors include:

� whether the shares of the series are redeemable, and if so, the prices at which, and the terms and conditions on which, the shares may
be redeemed, including the date or dates upon or after which the shares shall be redeemable and the amount per share payable in case
of redemption;

� whether shares of the series will be entitled to receive distributions and, if so, the distribution rate on the shares, any restriction,
limitation or condition upon the payment of the distributions, whether distributions will be cumulative, and the dates on which
distributions are payable;

� any preferential amount payable upon shares of the series in the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of American Tower;

� whether the shares of the series are convertible, or exchangeable for, shares of any other class or classes of stock or of any other
series of stock, or any other securities of American Tower, and if so, the terms and conditions of such conversion or exchange,
including price or rates of conversion at which, and the terms and conditions on which, the shares of the series may be converted or
exchanged into other securities;

� terms and conditions of the purchase or sinking fund provisions, if any, for the purchase or redemption of shares of the series;

� the distinctive designation of each series and the number of shares that will constitute the series;

� the voting power, if any, of shares of the series; and

� any other relative rights, preferences or limitations.
Because the board of directors will have the power to establish the preferences and rights of each series of preferred stock, it may afford the
stockholders of any series of preferred stock preferences, powers and rights senior to the rights of holders of shares of our common stock that
could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of American Tower.
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Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions

Delaware Business Combination Provisions

We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL. Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a
�business combination� with an �interested stockholder� for a period of three years after the person became an interested stockholder, unless the
business combination or the transaction in which the stockholder became an interested stockholder is approved in a prescribed manner. A
�business combination� includes mergers, asset sales and other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. Subject to
certain exceptions, an �interested stockholder� is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within the prior three years owned,
15% or more of the corporation�s voting stock.

Certain Provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws

Our By-Laws establish advance notice procedures with respect to stockholder proposals and the nomination of candidates for election of
directors, other than nominations made by, or at the direction of, our board of directors. These procedures may impede stockholders� ability to
bring matters before a meeting of stockholders or make nominations for directors at a meeting of stockholders.

Our Certificate of Incorporation includes provisions eliminating the personal liability of our directors to the fullest extent permitted by the
DGCL and indemnifying our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL. The limitation of liability and indemnification
provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against directors for breach of their fiduciary
duty. These provisions may also have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and officers, even though a
derivative action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our stockholders. In addition, the value of investments in our securities may be
adversely affected to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to these
indemnification provisions.

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that any or all of the directors may be removed at any time, either with or without cause, by a vote of a
majority of the shares outstanding and entitled to vote. This provision may delay or prevent our stockholders from removing incumbent
directors.

The ownership and transfer restrictions contained in our Certificate of Incorporation, and described above, may have the effect of inhibiting or
impeding a change in control.

Our Certificate of Incorporation and our By-Laws provide that our By-Laws may be altered, amended, changed or repealed by (i) the approval or
consent of not less than a majority of the total outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors or (ii) a majority
of the entire board of directors.

Certain Provisions of our Debt Obligations

Change of control and merger, consolidation and asset sale provisions in our indentures for our outstanding notes and loan agreements for our
credit facilities may discourage a takeover attempt. These provisions may make acquiring us more difficult.

Listing of Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �AMT.�

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., 525 William Penn Place, 7th

Floor, Pittsburgh, PA 15259, telephone number (412) 234-7571.
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LEGAL OWNERSHIP

In this prospectus and in any applicable prospectus supplement, when we refer to the �holders� of securities as being entitled to specified rights or
payments, we mean only the actual legal holders of the securities. While you will be the holder if you hold a security registered in your name,
more often than not the holder actually will be a broker, bank or other financial institution or, in the case of a global security, the depositary. Our
obligations, as well as the obligations of the trustee, any transfer agent, any registrar and any third parties employed by us, the trustee, any
transfer agent and any registrar, run only to persons who are registered as holders of our securities, except as may be specifically provided for in
the contract governing the securities. For example, once we make payment to the registered holder, we have no further responsibility for the
payment even if that holder is legally required to pass the payment along to you as a street name customer but does not do so.

Street Name and Other Indirect Holders

Holding securities in accounts at banks, brokers or other financial institutions is called holding in �street name.� If you hold our securities in street
name, we will recognize only the bank or broker, or the financial institution the bank or broker uses to hold the securities, as a holder. These
intermediary banks, brokers, other financial institutions and depositaries pass along principal, interest, dividends and other payments, if any, on
the securities, either because they agree to do so in their customer agreements or because they legally are required to do so. This means that if
you are an indirect holder, you will need to coordinate with the institution through which you hold your interest in a security in order to
determine how the provisions involving holders described in this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement actually will apply to
you. For example, if the debt security in which you hold a beneficial interest in street name can be repaid at the option of the holder, you cannot
redeem it yourself by following the procedures described in the prospectus supplement that applies to that security. Instead, you would need to
cause the institution through which you hold your interest to take those actions on your behalf. Your institution may have procedures and
deadlines different from or additional to those described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

If you hold our securities in street name or through other indirect means, you should check with the institution through which you hold your
interest in a security to find out:

� How it handles payments and notices with respect to the securities;

� Whether it imposes fees or charges;

� How it handles voting, if applicable;

� How and when you should notify it to exercise on your behalf any rights or options that may exist under the securities;

� Whether and how you can instruct it to send you securities registered in your own name so you can be a direct holder as described
below; and

� How it would pursue rights under the securities if there were a default or other event triggering the need for holders to act to protect
their interests.

Book-Entry Issuance

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, our debt securities will be book-entry securities that are cleared and settled
through the Depositary Trust Company, which we refer to as the DTC, a securities depositary. Upon issuance, unless otherwise specified in the
applicable prospectus supplement, all book-entry securities of the same series will be represented by one or more fully registered global
securities. Each global security will be deposited with, or on behalf of, DTC and will be registered in the name of DTC or a nominee of DTC.
DTC will thus be the only registered holder of any such securities and will be considered the sole owner of the securities.
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Purchasers may only hold interests in the global securities through DTC if they are participants in the DTC system. Purchasers may also hold
interests through a securities intermediary � a bank, brokerage house or other institution that maintains securities accounts for customers � that has
an account with DTC or its nominee. DTC will maintain accounts showing the securities holdings of its participants, and these participants will
in turn maintain accounts showing the securities holdings of their customers. Some of these customers may themselves be securities
intermediaries holding securities for their customers. Thus, each beneficial owner of a book-entry security will hold that security indirectly
through a hierarchy of intermediaries, with DTC at the �top� and the beneficial owner�s own securities intermediary at the �bottom.�

The securities of each beneficial owner of a book-entry security will be evidenced solely by entries on the books of the beneficial owner�s
securities intermediary. The actual purchaser of the securities will generally not be entitled to have the securities represented by the global
securities registered in its name and will not be considered the owner. In most cases, a beneficial owner will also not be able to obtain a paper
certificate evidencing the holder�s ownership of securities. The book-entry system for holding securities eliminates the need for physical
movement of certificates. The laws of some jurisdictions require some purchasers of securities to take physical delivery of their securities in
definitive form. These laws may impair the ability to transfer book-entry securities.

Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement with respect to a series of debt securities, the beneficial owner of book-entry securities
represented by a global security may exchange the securities for definitive or paper securities only if:

� DTC is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for such global security and we are unable to find a qualified replacement for
DTC within 90 days;

� at any time DTC ceases to be a �clearing agency� registered under the Exchange Act and we are unable to find a qualified replacement
for DTC within 90 days;

� We in our sole discretion decide to allow some or all book-entry securities to be exchangeable for definitive securities in registered
form; or

� An event of default has occurred and is continuing under the indenture, and a holder of the securities has requested definitive
securities.

Any global security that is exchangeable will be exchangeable in whole for definitive securities in registered form with the same terms, and in
the case of debt securities, in an equal aggregate principal amount in denominations of $2,000 and whole multiples of $1,000 (unless otherwise
specified in the prospectus supplement). Definitive securities will be registered in the name or names of the person or persons specified by DTC
in a written instruction to the registrar of the securities. DTC may base its written instruction upon directions it receives from its participants.

In this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, for book-entry securities, references to actions taken by security holders will mean
actions taken by DTC upon instructions from its participants, and references to payments and notices of redemption to security holders will
mean payments and notices of redemption to DTC as the registered holder of the securities for distribution to participants in accordance with
DTC�s procedures.

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, a �banking organization� within the meaning of the
New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a �clearing corporation� within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code and a �clearing agency� registered under the Exchange Act. The rules applicable to DTC and its participants are on file with the
SEC.

We will not have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership
interests in the book-entry securities or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to the beneficial ownership interests.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities covered by this prospectus in any of the following three ways (or in any combination of the following three ways):

� to or through underwriters or dealers;

� directly to a limited number of purchasers or to a single purchaser; or

� through agents.
We may enter into derivative transactions with third parties, or sell securities not covered by this prospectus to third parties in privately
negotiated transactions. If the applicable prospectus supplement so indicates, in connection with those derivatives, the third parties may sell
securities covered by this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, including in short sale transactions. If so, the third party may use
securities pledged by us or borrowed from us or others to settle those sales or to close out any related open borrowings of stock and may use
securities received from us in settlement of those derivatives to close out any related open borrowings of stock. The third party in such sale
transactions will be an underwriter and, if not identified in this prospectus, will be identified in the applicable prospectus supplement (or a
post-effective amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part).

The applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the terms of the offering of the securities covered by this prospectus, including:

� the name or names of any underwriters, dealers or agents and the amounts of securities underwritten or purchased by each of them;

� the initial public offering price of the securities and the proceeds to us and any discounts, commissions or concessions allowed or
reallowed or paid to dealers; and

� any securities exchanges on which the securities may be listed.
Any initial public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time.

Underwriters or the third parties described above may offer and sell the offered securities from time to time in one or more transactions,
including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. If we use underwriters in the
sale of any securities, the securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account and may be resold from time to time in one or
more transactions described above. The securities may be offered to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by managing
underwriters or directly by underwriters. Generally, the underwriters� obligations to purchase the securities will be subject to customary
conditions. The underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of the offered securities if they purchase any of the offered securities.

We may sell the securities through agents from time to time. The applicable prospectus supplement will name any agent involved in the offer or
sale of the securities and any commissions we pay to them. Generally, any agent will be acting on a best efforts basis for the period of its
appointment.

We may authorize underwriters, dealers or agents to solicit offers by certain purchasers to purchase the securities from us at the public offering
price set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement pursuant to delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and delivery on a specified
date in the future. The contracts will be subject only to those conditions set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, and the applicable
prospectus supplement will set forth any commissions we pay for solicitation of these contracts.
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Certain persons participating in this offering may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the securities.
Specifically, in connection with underwritten offerings of the offered securities and in accordance with applicable law and industry practice, the
underwriters may over-allot and may bid for, and purchase, the securities in the open market.

Agents, underwriters and other third parties described above that participate in the distribution of the offered securities may be underwriters as
defined in the Securities Act, and any discounts or commissions they receive from us and any profit on their resale of the securities may be
treated as underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act. We may have agreements with the agents, underwriters and those
other third parties to indemnify them against specified civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments
they may be required to make in respect of those liabilities. Agents, underwriters and those other third parties may engage in transactions with or
perform services for us in the ordinary course of their businesses.

In compliance with guidelines of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, which we refer to as FINRA, the maximum consideration or
discount to be received by any FINRA member will not exceed 8% of the aggregate amount of the securities offered pursuant to this prospectus
and any applicable prospectus supplement.

To comply with applicable state securities laws, the securities offered by this prospectus will be sold, if necessary, in such jurisdictions only
through registered or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, securities may not be sold in some states absent registration or pursuant to an
exemption from applicable state securities laws.
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FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS RELATED TO OUR QUALIFICATION AND TAXATION AS A REIT

The following summary of federal income tax considerations is based on existing law, and is limited to our qualification and taxation as a REIT.
The opinion of our tax counsel, Sullivan & Worcester LLP, attached hereto as Exhibit 8.1 addresses our qualification and taxation as a REIT as
set forth in this summary. For a discussion of certain U.S. federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to persons considering the
purchase of debt securities covered by this prospectus, please see the section entitled �Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations Relevant
to Holders of Our Debt Securities� beginning on page 38.

The sections of the Code that govern federal income tax qualification and treatment of a REIT are complex. This section contains a summary of
applicable Code provisions, related rules and regulations and administrative and judicial interpretations, all of which are subject to change,
possibly with retroactive effect. Future legislative, judicial or administrative actions or decisions could also affect the accuracy of statements
made in this summary. We have received private letter rulings from the IRS with respect to some but not all of the matters described in this
summary, and we cannot provide assurance that the IRS or a court will agree with all of the statements made in this summary. The IRS or a
court could, for example, take a different position from that described in this summary with respect to our acquisitions, operations, restructurings
or other matters, including with respect to matters similar to, but subsequent or unrelated to, those matters addressed in the IRS private letter
rulings issued to us; furthermore, while a private letter ruling from the IRS generally is binding on the IRS, we and our tax counsel cannot rely
on the private letter rulings if the factual representations, assumptions or undertakings made in our letter ruling requests to the IRS are untrue or
incomplete in any material respect. If successful, IRS challenges could result in significant tax liabilities for applicable parties. In addition, this
summary is not exhaustive of all possible tax consequences related to our qualification and taxation as a REIT, and does not discuss any estate,
gift, state, local or foreign tax consequences. For all these reasons, we urge any holder of or prospective acquiror of our securities to consult with
a tax advisor about the federal income tax and other tax consequences of our qualification and taxation as a REIT. Our intentions and beliefs
described in this summary are based upon our understanding of applicable laws and regulations that are in effect as of the date of this prospectus.
If new laws or regulations are enacted which impact us directly or indirectly, we may change our intentions or beliefs.

Taxation as a REIT

Effective for our taxable year that commenced January 1, 2012, we expect to elect to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the
Code, and the discussion below assumes that we will make that election by timely filing our federal income tax return as a REIT. Our REIT
election, assuming continuing compliance with the then applicable qualification tests, will continue in effect for subsequent taxable years. As a
result of this REIT election, our deferred intercompany gains and similar consolidated return items have been restored into income for our
taxable year ending December 31, 2011; however we estimate these restored amounts to have totaled no more than $10 million, and in any event
the restored amounts are not estimated to have affected materially our 2011 federal income tax liability or our subsequent qualification and
taxation as a REIT. Although no assurance can be given, we believe that, since January 1, 2012, we have been organized and have operated, and
will continue to be organized and to operate, in a manner that qualified and will continue to qualify us to be taxed under the Code as a REIT.

Our tax counsel, Sullivan & Worcester LLP, has opined that we have been organized and will have qualified as a REIT under the Code for our
taxable year commencing January 1, 2012 upon our filing a timely REIT federal income tax return for that year, and that our current investments
and plan of operation will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code. Our tax
counsel�s opinions are conditioned upon the assumption that our Certificate of Incorporation, By-Laws, licenses and all other applicable legal
documents have been and will be complied with by all parties to those documents, upon the accuracy and completeness of the factual matters
described in the proxy statement/prospectus filed with the SEC on October 11, 2011 and in this prospectus, upon private letter rulings received
from the IRS as to certain federal
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income tax matters, and upon representations made by us as to certain factual matters relating to our organization and operations and our
expected manner of operation. If the assumption or a representation is inaccurate or incomplete, or if the transactions described in this
prospectus or the exhibits hereto is consummated in a manner inconsistent with the manner contemplated herein, the opinions may be adversely
affected and may not be relied upon. The opinions of our tax counsel are based upon the law as it exists today, but the law may change in the
future, possibly with retroactive effect. Given the highly complex nature of the rules governing REITs, the ongoing importance of factual
determinations, and the possibility of future changes in our circumstances, no assurance can be given by Sullivan & Worcester LLP or us that we
will so qualify for any particular year. Any opinion of Sullivan & Worcester LLP as to our qualification as a REIT will be expressed as of the
date issued. Counsel will have no obligation to advise us or holders of our securities of any subsequent change in the matters stated, represented
or assumed or of any subsequent change in the applicable law. Also, the opinions of tax counsel are not binding on either the IRS or a court, and
either could take a position different from that expressed by tax counsel.

Our actual qualification and taxation as a REIT will depend upon our compliance on a continuing basis with various qualification tests imposed
under the Code and summarized below. Our ability to satisfy the asset tests will depend in part upon our good faith analysis of the fair market
values of our assets, some of which are not susceptible to a precise determination. Our compliance with the REIT income and quarterly asset
requirements also depends upon our ability to successfully manage the composition of our income and assets on an ongoing basis. While we
believe that we will satisfy these tests, our tax counsel will not review compliance with these tests on a continuing basis. If we fail to qualify as a
REIT in any year, we will be subject to federal income taxation as if we were a corporation taxed under subchapter C of the Code, or C
corporation, and our stockholders will be taxed like stockholders of C corporations, meaning that federal income tax generally will be applied at
both the corporate and stockholder levels. In this event, we could be subject to significant tax liabilities, and the amount of cash available for
payments to our securityholders could be reduced or eliminated.

As a REIT, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on our net income distributed as dividends to our stockholders. Distributions to
our stockholders generally are included in their income as dividends to the extent of our current or accumulated earnings and profits. Our
dividends are not generally entitled to the favorable 15% rate on qualified dividend income (scheduled to increase to ordinary income rates for
taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012), but a portion of our dividends, such as dividends attributable to dividend income we receive
from our taxable REIT subsidiaries, or TRSs, may be so eligible. No portion of any of our dividends is eligible for the dividends received
deduction for corporate stockholders. Distributions in excess of current or accumulated earnings and profits generally are treated for federal
income tax purposes as returns of capital to the extent of a recipient stockholder�s basis in its stock, and will reduce this basis. Our current or
accumulated earnings and profits are generally allocated first to distributions made on our outstanding preferred stock, of which there is
presently none outstanding, and thereafter to distributions made on our common stock. For all these purposes, our distributions include both cash
distributions and any in kind distributions of property that we might make.

If we qualify as a REIT and meet the tests described below, we generally will not pay federal income tax on amounts we distribute to our
stockholders. However, even if we qualify as a REIT, we may be subject to federal tax in the following circumstances:

� We will be taxed at regular corporate rates on any undistributed �real estate investment trust taxable income,� determined by including
our undistributed net capital gains and after offset by our available net operating loss carryovers (NOLs);

� If our alternative minimum taxable income exceeds our taxable income, we may be subject to the corporate alternative minimum tax
on our items of tax preference. Items that are treated differently for regular and alternative minimum tax purposes are to be allocated
between a REIT and its stockholders under Treasury regulations which are yet to be prescribed. It is possible that these Treasury
regulations will require tax preference items to be allocated tpt; DISPLAY: block; MARGIN-RIGHT: 0pt; TEXT-INDENT: 0pt"
align="justify">Warren F. Kruger, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Mr. Warren F. Kruger, Manager/CEO of privately held Yorktown Management & Financial Services, L.L.C., is 56 years
old.  Yorktown Management is involved in investment banking, real estate, manufacturing and energy endeavors.  Mr. Kruger earned
a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the University of Oklahoma, and an Executive M.B.A. from Southern Methodist
University.  Mr. Kruger has over thirty years experience in the financial services industry.  In 1980, Mr. Kruger co-founded MCM
Group, Ltd., which owned and controlled United Bank Club Association, Inc. until 1996 when the firm was sold to a subsidiary of
Cendant Corp. (CD-NYSE).  He also owned and operated Century Ice, a manufacturer and distributor of ice products from 1996 to
1997, when Packaged Ice, Inc., acquired Century Ice in an industry rollup.  Mr. Kruger is a partner with William W. Pritchard in
privately held WCC, with investments in oil and gas, real estate and investment banking.
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Mr. Kruger became a director of Greystone on January 4, 2002, served as President and Chief Executive Officer from January 10,
2003 to August 15, 2005 and, most recently, has served as President and Chief Executive Officer from November 18, 2006 to the
present.

Mr. Kruger’s business experience and knowledge of the day to day operations of Greystone make him well suited to serve on
Greystone’s board of directors.
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Mr. Larry J. LeBarre, Director

Mr. LeBarre, age 56, is President and CEO of privately-held Native American Marketing (“Native American”).  Native American was
founded by Mr. LeBarre in 2004 as an oil transportation, storage, and marketing business.  Mr. LeBarre earned a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from the University of Oklahoma, became a Certified Public Accountant while working for Price
Waterhouse & Co. (now PriceWaterhouseCoopers, LLP) and continued his career in the hazardous waste industry and later with
Plains Resources.  Mr. LeBarre is also actively involved in investment banking, real estate, and oil and gas investments. Mr. LeBarre
became a director of Greystone effective May 5, 2012.

Mr. LeBarre’s business experience makes him qualified to serve as a member of Greystone’s board of directors.

Mr. Robert B. Rosene, Jr., Director

Mr. Rosene, age 58, is President of Seminole Energy Services, L.L.C., a natural gas marketing and gathering company that he
co-founded in 1998.  Also in 1998, Mr. Rosene co-founded Summit Exploration, L.L.C., an oil and gas production company that
holds oil and gas production in several states.  Mr. Rosene has served as a director of publicly traded Syntroleum Corporation since
1985. Mr. Rosene has a B.A. with an emphasis in accounting from Oklahoma Baptist University.

Mr. Rosene’s business experience and longstanding relationship with Greystone make him a good fit as a member of Greystone’s
board of directors.

Mr. Rosene became a director of Greystone effective June 14, 2004.

William W. Rahhal, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Rahhal, age 71, is a partner of Rahhal Henderson Johnson, PLLC, Certified Public Accountants, in Ardmore, Oklahoma, and
served as managing partner of such accounting firm from 1988 to 2010.  Mr. Rahhal previously served as Greystone’s Chief Financial
Officer from October 1, 2002 to October 1, 2004 and subsequently served Greystone as an accounting and financial consultant until
his appointment as its Interim Chief Financial Officer.  Mr. Rahhal earned his B.B.A. from the University of Oklahoma and is a
Certified Public Accountant licensed in Oklahoma and Texas.   Mr. Rahhal has also previously served as a Senior Manager with
Price Waterhouse & Co. (now PriceWaterhouseCoopers, LLP) and as financial manager of a privately-held oil and gas production
company and contract drilling company.  

Mr. Rahhal was named Interim Chief Financial Officer effective as of January 13, 2010 and was subsequently named Chief Financial
Officer on a permanent basis.
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Identification of the Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert

Due to Greystone's size and stage of development, it has had difficulty recruiting individuals to serve on its Board of Directors who
are qualified to serve as an audit committee financial expert on an audit committee.  As of May 31, 2012, Greystone had not
established an audit committee and the entire Board of Directors essentially serves as Greystone's audit committee.

Code of Ethics

Effective April 8, 2008, Greystone adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to Greystone's officers and directors. Greystone undertakes
to provide any person without charge, upon request, a copy of such Code of Ethics.  Requests may be directed to Greystone
Logistics, Inc., 1613 East 15th Street, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74120, or by calling (918) 583-7441.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Greystone's directors, officers and persons who beneficially own more
than 10% of any class of Greystone's equity securities registered under Section 12 to file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of such registered securities of Greystone.  Officers,
directors and greater than 10% beneficial owners are required by regulation to furnish to Greystone copies of all Section 16(a)
reports they file.

Based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to Greystone and any written representations that no other reports
were required during fiscal year 2012, to Greystone's knowledge, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to its officers,
directors and greater than 10% beneficial owners during fiscal year 2012 were complied with on a timely basis, except as follows:

Name 
Number of 
Late Reports 

Number of
Reports Not
Reported on a
Timely Basis 

Number of
Reports
 Not Filed 

Warren F. Kruger 4 4 0
Larry J. LeBarre 1 1 0
William W. Rahhal 1 1 0
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Item 11.   Executive Compensation.

The following table sets forth the compensation paid to named executive officers during the fiscal years ended May 31, 2012 and
2011:

Summary Compensation Table

Name and
Principal Position

Fiscal Year
Ending May

31, Salary Bonus
Option
Awards

Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings

Warren F. Kruger,    
President and Chief
Executive Officer

2012
2011

$120,500
$120,000

25,000
-0-

-0-
-0-

120,000 1
120,000 1

William W. Rahhal,
Chief Financial Officer

2012
2011

$66,000
$52,000

7,500
-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-

Robert Noland
Senior Vice President
through 4/18/2011

2011 $112,923 -0- -0- -0-

1  Mr. Kruger voluntarily decided to forgo half of his salary beginning in fiscal year 2006.  Effective June 1, 2012, Mr. Kruger will
begin receiving full salary. The deferred amounts will be paid or applied against amounts owed by Mr. Kruger to Greystone at such
time as agreed between Mr. Kruger and Greystone.
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The following table provides information with respect to named executive officers concerning outstanding equity awards as of May
31, 2012:

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

Name

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised

Options –
Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying

Unexercised Options
–

Unexercisable

Option
Exercise
Price

Option
Expiration
Date

Warren F. Kruger   25,000(a)
150,000(b)
250,000(c)

-0-
-0-
-0-

$1.60
$0.55
$0.40

6/26/2012
4/1/2013
2/28/2014

William W. Rahhal 100,000(b) -0- $0.55 4/1/2013

(a)  The options became exercisable at the rate of 25% of the total shares subject to the option on each of the first four
anniversary dates from the date of the grant, which was June 26, 2002.

(b)  The options became exercisable at the rate of 25% of the total shares subject to the option on each of the first four anniversary
dates from the date of the grant, which was April 1, 2003.

(c)  The options became exercisable at the rate of 25% of the total shares subject to the option on each of the first four anniversary
dates from the date of the grant, which was February 28, 2004.

Directors’ and Officers’ Compensation

Greystone does not pay cash compensation to the members of its Board of Directors for services on the Board.  From time to time in
the past, Greystone has granted options to the members of its Board of Directors under its stock option plan as compensation for
serving on Greystone's Board of Directors.  No options to purchase common stock were issued to Greystone’s directors or officers
during fiscal years 2012 or 2011.  Subsequent to May 31, 2012, Greystone issued options to certain employees and directors under its
stock option plan.

Because the Board of Directors consists of three persons of which two are outside directors, the Board has not considered it
necessary to create a compensation committee.  All of Greystone’s directors participate in determining compensation for officers.
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Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan

General. Greystone’s Amended and Rested Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Plan”) is administered by the Board of Directors of
Greystone or, if the Board so authorizes, by a committee of the Board of Directors consisting of not less than two members of the
Board of Directors. The Stock Plan is presently administered by the entire Board of Directors since no separate committee of the
Board has been designated to administer the Stock Plan.  Accordingly, many of the references below in this description of the Stock
Plan to the Board of Directors could also be construed to be a committee thereof.  All managerial and other key employees of
Greystone and/or its subsidiaries who hold positions of significant responsibility or whose performance or potential contribution, in
the judgment of the Board of Directors, will benefit the future success of Greystone are eligible to receive grants under the Stock
Plan. In addition, each director of Greystone who is not an employee of Greystone is eligible to receive certain option grants
pursuant to provisions of the Stock Plan.   Previously, the Stock Plan was set to expire on May 11, 2011 and the maximum number of
shares of common stock in respect of which options could be granted under the Stock Plan was 2,000,000.  However, on May 5,
2012, the Board of Directors voted to cause the Stock Plan to be extended for another 10 years and to increase the number of shares
of common stock in respect of which options could be granted to 2,500,000.  This number is subject to appropriate equitable
adjustment in the event of a reorganization, stock split or stock dividend or other similar change affecting Greystone’s common stock.

Price and Terms. Each option is evidenced by an agreement between Greystone and the optionee.  Unless otherwise determined by
the Board of Directors at the time of grant, all options become exercisable at the rate of 25% of the total shares subject to the option
on each of the first four anniversary dates of the date of grant, provided that the Board of Directors may, at any time, accelerate the
date any outstanding option becomes exercisable. The exercise price for each share placed under option pursuant to the Stock Plan is
determined by the Board of Directors but cannot in any event be less than 100% of the fair market value of such share on the date the
option was granted.

Effect of Termination or Death. If an optionee’s employment with Greystone is terminated for any reason other than death or
termination for cause, an option will be exercisable for a period of three months after the date of termination of employment as to all
then vested portions of the option. In addition, the Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, approve acceleration of the vesting
of any unvested portions of the option. If an optionee’s employment with Greystone is terminated for cause (as defined in the Stock
Plan), the option shall terminate as of the date of such termination of employment, and the optionee shall have no further rights to
exercise any portion of the option.  If an optionee dies while employed by Greystone, any unvested portion of the option as of the
date of death shall be vested as of the date of death, and the option shall be exercisable in full by the heirs or legal representatives of
the optionee for a period of 12 months following the date of death. In any event, options terminate and are no longer exercisable after
10 years from the date of the grant.

Continued Service as a Director.  In the event any optionee who is an employee and also a director of Greystone ceases to be
employed by Greystone but continues to serve as a director of Greystone, the Board of Directors may determine that all or a portion
of such optionee’s options shall not expire three months following the date of employment as described above, but instead shall
continue in effect until the earlier of the date the optionee ceases to be a director of Greystone or the date the option otherwise
expires according to its stated date of expiration. Termination of any such option in connection with the optionee’s termination of
service as a director will be on terms similar to those described above in connection with termination of employment.
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Grants to Non-Employee Directors.  In order to retain, motivate and reward non-employee directors of Greystone, the Stock Plan
extends participation to non-employee directors on the terms and conditions described below.  The exercise price for options granted
to non-employee directors is equal to 100% of the fair market value per share of common stock on the date the option is granted. As
with options granted to employees, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors at the time of grant, all options granted to
non-employee directors become exercisable at the rate of 25% of the total shares subject to the option on each of the first four
anniversary dates of the date of grant. The Board of Directors is also entitled at any time to accelerate the date any outstanding option
becomes exercisable. If a non-employee director’s service on the Board of Directors is terminated for any reason other than death or
removal from the Board of Directors for cause, an option will be exercisable for a period of three months after the date of removal
from the Board of Directors as to all then vested portions of the option.  If a non-employee director is removed from the Board of
Directors for cause, the option will terminate as of the date of such removal, and the optionee shall have no further rights to exercise
any portion of the option.  If a non-employee director optionee dies while serving on the Board of Directors, any unvested portion of
the option as of the date of death shall be vested as of the date of death, and the option shall be exercisable in full by the heirs or legal
representatives of the optionee for a period of 12 months following the date of death. In any event, options terminate and are no
longer exercisable after 10 years from the date of the grant.

Other than as described above, all options granted to non-employee directors are subject to the same terms and conditions generally
applicable to options granted to employees under the Stock Plan.

Exercise of Options. The exercise price of options may be paid in cash, by certified check, by tender of stock of Greystone (valued at
fair market value on the date immediately preceding the date of exercise), by surrender of a portion of the option, or by a
combination of such means of payment. The prior consent of the Board of Directors is required in connection with the payment of
the exercise price of options by tender of shares or surrender of a portion of the option, except that the consent of the Board of
Directors is not required if the exercise price is paid by surrender of shares that have been owned by the optionee for more than six
months prior to the date of exercise of the option or by a combination of cash and shares that have been owned for more than six
months.

Effect of Certain Corporate Transactions.   In the event of any change in capitalization affecting the common stock of Greystone,
such as a stock dividend, stock split, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, split-up, combination or exchange of shares or other
form of reorganization, liquidation, or any other change affecting the common stock, proportionate adjustments will be made with
respect to the aggregate number and type of securities for which options may be granted under the Stock Plan, the number and type
of securities covered by each outstanding option, and the exercise price of outstanding options so that optionees will be entitled upon
exercise of options to receive the same number and kind of stock, securities, cash, property or other consideration that the optionee
would have received in connection with the change in capitalization if such option had been exercised immediately preceding such
change in capitalization.  The Board of Directors may also make such adjustments in the number of shares covered by, and the price
or other value of any outstanding options in the event of a spin-off or other distribution, other than normal cash dividends, of
company assets to shareholders. In addition, unless the Board of Directors expressly determines otherwise, in the event of a Change
in Control (as defined in the Stock Plan) of Greystone, all outstanding options will become immediately and fully exercisable and
optionees will be entitled to surrender, within 60 days following the Change in Control, unexercised options or portions of options in
return for a cash payment equal to the difference between the aggregate exercise price of the surrendered options and the fair market
value of the shares of common stock underlying the surrendered options.
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Item 12.   Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

As of May 31, 2012, Greystone had one equity incentive plan under which equity securities have been authorized for issuance to
Greystone's directors, officers, employees and other persons who perform substantial services for or on behalf of Greystone.  The
following table provides certain information relating to such stock option plan during the year ended May 31, 2012:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(a) (b) (c)

Plan Category

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities
remaining

available for future issuance
under equity compensation
plans (excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 1,400,000 $0.53 1,075,000

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders -0- N/A -0-

            Total 1,400,000 $0.53 1,075,000
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Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

As of August 26, 2012, Greystone had 26,111,201 shares of its common stock and 50,000 shares of its 2003 preferred stock
outstanding.  Each share of the 2003 preferred stock is convertible into approximately 66.67 shares of Greystone's common stock.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the shares of Greystone's common stock beneficially owned as of May
31, 2012, by (i) each person known by Greystone to own beneficially 5% or more of Greystone's outstanding common stock, (ii)
each of Greystone's directors and named officers, and (iii) all of Greystone's directors and named officers as a group:

Name and Address of
Beneficial Owner

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Owner(1) Percent of Class(2)

Warren F. Kruger
Chairman, President and CEO
1613 East 15th Street
Tulsa, OK 74120

8,489,415(3) 30.10%

William W. Rahhal
Chief Financial Officer
1613 East 15th Street
Tulsa, OK 74120

152,883(4)   0.58%

Robert B. Rosene, Jr.
Director
1323 E. 71st Street, Suite 300
Tulsa, OK 74136

4,585,718(5) 16.45%

Larry J. LeBarre
Director
7518 Middlewood Street
Houston, TX 77063

1,203,991(6) 4.61%

William Pritchard
1437 S. Boulder
Tulsa, OK 74119

1,386,029(7) 5.24%

All Directors & Officers as a Group (4 persons) 14,432,007(8) 48.00%
________________________

(1)The number of shares beneficially owned by each holder is calculated in accordance with the rules of the Commission, which
provide that each holder shall be deemed to be a beneficial owner of a security if that holder has the right to acquire beneficial
ownership of the security within 60 days through options, warrants or the conversion of another security; provided, however, if
such holder acquires any such rights in connection with or as a participant in any transaction with the effect of changing or
influencing control of the issuer, then immediately upon such acquisition, the holder will be deemed to be the beneficial owner of
the securities.  The number the shares of common stock beneficially owned by each holder includes common stock directly
owned by such holder and the number of shares of common stock such holder has the right to acquire upon the conversion of
2003 preferred stock and/or upon the exercise of certain options or warrants.
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(2)The percentage ownership for each holder is calculated in accordance with the rules of the Commission, which provide that any
shares a holder is deemed to beneficially own by virtue of having a right to acquire shares upon the conversion of warrants,
options or other rights, or upon the conversion of preferred stock or other rights are considered outstanding solely for purposes of
calculating such holder's percentage ownership.

(3)The total includes: (i) 6,371,948 shares of common stock beneficially owned directly by Warren Kruger; (ii) 19,000 shares held of
record by Yorktown; (iii) 425,000 shares of common stock that Warren Kruger directly has the right to acquire in connection with
options; (iv) 6,800 shares of common stock that Warren Kruger holds as custodian for minor children; and (v) 1,666,667 shares
that Warren Kruger has the right to acquire upon conversion of the 2003 preferred stock.

(4)The total includes: (i) 52,883 shares of common stock that William Rahhal which owns as a joint tenant and (ii) 100,000 shares of
common stock that Mr. Rahhal has the right to acquire in connection with options.

(5)The total includes: (i) 2,770,951 shares of common stock beneficially owned directly by Robert Rosene; (ii) 48,100 shares of
common stock held of record by RMP Operating Co., (iii) 100,000 shares of common stock that Robert Rosene has the right to
acquire with options; and (iv) 1,666,667 shares that Robert Rosene has the right to acquire upon conversion of the 2003 preferred
stock.

(6) The total includes 1,203,991 shares of common stock beneficially owned directly by Larry LeBarre.

(7)The total includes: (i) 1,061,029 shares of common stock beneficially owned directly by William Pritchard; and (ii) 325,000
shares of common stock that William Pritchard has the right to acquire with options.

(8)The total includes: (i) 10,473,673 outstanding shares; (ii) 625,000 shares issuable upon exercise of vested stock options; (iii)
1,666,667 shares that Mr. Kruger has the right to acquire upon conversion of the 2003 preferred stock; and (iv) 1,666,667 shares
that Mr. Rosene has the right to acquire upon conversion of the 2003 preferred stock.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Transactions with Related Persons

General

For information regarding loans from or to Warren Kruger, see “Transactions with Warren Kruger and Related Entities” under the
heading “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 7 of this Form10-K.

For information regarding an advance from Robert Rosene, see “Advances and Loans from Robert Rosene” under the heading
"Liquidity and Capital Resources" in Item 7 of this Form10-K.

For information regarding the loan from F&M and Messrs. Kruger’s and Rosene’s relationship thereto, see “Loan from F&M Bank” in
Item 7 of this Form 10-K.
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Other Transactions

Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC (“Yorktown”), an entity wholly owned by Greystone’s CEO and President, owns the
grinding equipment Greystone uses to grind raw material for Greystone’s pallet production. The raw material is purchased by
Yorktown which invoices Greystone for Yorktown’s cost plus a grinding fee of $0.04 per pound. During fiscal years 2012 and 2011,
GSM’s raw material purchases from Yorktown totaled approximately $3,911,000 and $2,966,000, respectively, pursuant to this
arrangement.

GSM pays rents to Yorktown as follows: (i) certain pallet molds at the rate of $1.00 per pallet of which approximately $38,000 and
$44,000 were paid in fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively, (ii) office rent at the rate of $1,500 per month and (iii) equipment used
for heavy lifting of which $73,200 was paid in each of fiscal years 2012 and 2011.  The lease for the heavy-lifting equipment ended
February 29, 2012 and the equipment continues to be leased on a month-to-month basis.

Yorktown and GSM have an agreement for purchase, processing and selling pelletized recycled plastic resin.  Yorktown purchases
the raw material and provides the pelletizing equipment and GSM supplies the labor and operating overhead.  Upon shipment to
customers, Yorktown invoices GSM for the cost of the raw material. GSM invoices customers recognizing revenue and accruing
profit-sharing expense to Yorktown at 40% of the gross profit, defined as revenue less cost of material and sales commissions of
2.5%.  Yorktown’s profit share of the resin sales for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 was approximately $168,000 and $359,000,
respectively.  For additional information about this arrangement, see “Transactions with Warren Kruger and Related Entities” under the
heading “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 7 of this Form10-K.

Greystone also pays the labor and certain other costs on behalf of Yorktown’s Tulsa, Oklahoma grinding operation.  These costs are
invoiced to Yorktown on a monthly basis.

Effective January 1, 2009, Greystone entered into a lease agreement with an entity owned by Larry LeBarre, a Greystone director, to
rent certain equipment to produce mid-duty pallets with a minimum monthly commitment of $25,000.  The lease has a term of one
year with the option of renewing or terminating the lease at the end of each year.  The lease was renewed for another year effective
January 1, 2012.  Lease payments were $300,000 for each of fiscal years 2012 and 2011.

On January 18, 2011, GRE and GSM entered into a Real Property Sale and Lease Agreement (the “Sale and Lease Agreement”).  GRE
is owned by Warren F. Kruger, President and Chief Executive Officer of Greystone as well as a member of the Board of Directors of
Greystone, and Robert B. Rosene, Jr., a member of the Board of Directors of Greystone.  GSM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Greystone.   GSM sold its approximately 60,000 square foot manufacturing facility located in Bettendorf, Iowa and the real estate on
which such facility is located (collectively, the “Facility”) to GRE for a purchase price of $2,700,000 (the “Facility Purchase Price”) and,
upon such sale, GRE agreed to lease the Facility to GSM for a period of 120 months at a monthly rental rate of $20,133.   The
Facility Purchase Price was paid as follows: (a) $1,341,464 was paid to Greystone Plastics, Inc. on behalf of GSM in order to pay off
the outstanding loan that financed GSM’s purchase of the Facility, (b) $658,536 paid in cash to GSM, and (c) a $700,000 promissory
note from GRE with an interest rate of 5% per annum and all principal and accrued interest thereon being due on April 18, 2011.  In
addition, the Sale and Lease Agreement provides GSM with the option to purchase the Facility during the lease term at a price equal
to the fair market value thereof, and requires GSM to be responsible for taxes, utilities, maintenance and insurance with respect to the
Facility.
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Director Independence

Greystone has determined that Messrs. LeBarre and Rosene are "independent" within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(15) of the
NASDAQ listing standards.  Because of the small size of Greystone’s Board of Directors, it has not established any
committees.  Rather, the entire Board acts as, and performs the same functions as, the audit committee, compensation committee and
nominating committee.  Mr. Kruger is not considered "independent" within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ listing
standards.

Item 14.   Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The following is a summary of the fees billed to Greystone by HoganTaylor LLP, Greystone's independent registered public
accounting firm, for professional services rendered for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2012 and May 31, 2011:

Fee Category Fiscal 2012 Fees Fiscal 2011 Fees

Audit Fees(1) $ 113,000 $ 92,000
Audit-Related Fees 0 0
Tax Fees 0 0
All Other Fees 0 0

Total Fees $ 113,000 $ 92,000
________________________
(1)Audit Fees consist of aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of Greystone's annual financial
statements and review of the interim financial statements included in quarterly reports or services that are normally provided by the
independent registered public accounting firm in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements during the fiscal
years ended May 31, 2012 and May 31, 2011, respectively.

The entire Board of Directors of Greystone is responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of the
independent registered public accounting firm and approves in advance any services to be performed by the independent registered
public accounting firm, whether audit-related or not.  The entire Board of Directors reviews each proposed engagement to determine
whether the provision of services is compatible with maintaining the independence of the independent registered public accounting
firm.  All of the fees shown above were pre-approved by the entire Board of Directors.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)     (1)           Consolidated Financial Statements

The financial statements required under this item are included in Item 8 of Part II.

(2)           Schedules

None.

(3)           Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger Merging PalWeb Corporation, a Delaware corporation, into PalWeb Oklahoma
Corporation, an Oklahoma corporation, filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on May 2, 2002 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was filed with the SEC
on May 24, 2002).

2.2 Certificate of Ownership and Merger Merging PalWeb Corporation, a Delaware corporation, into PalWeb Oklahoma
Corporation, an Oklahoma corporation, filed with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on May 2, 2002 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was filed with the SEC
on May 24, 2002).

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of PalWeb Oklahoma Corporation filed with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on May 2,
2002 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was
filed with the SEC on May 24, 2002).

3.2 Bylaws of PalWeb Oklahoma Corporation as adopted on May 2, 2002 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
3.2 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was filed with the SEC on May 24, 2002).
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Exhibit No. Description

4.1 Certificate of Incorporation of PalWeb Oklahoma Corporation filed with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on May 2,
2002 (included in Exhibit 3.1).

4.2 Certificate of the Designation, Preferences, Rights and Limitations of PalWeb Corporation's Series 2003 Cumulative
Convertible Senior Preferred Stock (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated
September 8, 2003, which was filed with the SEC on September 23, 2003).

4.3 Certificate of Ownership and Merger Merging Greystone Logistics, Inc., into PalWeb Corporation filed with the
Oklahoma Secretary of State on March 18, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Greystone's Form
8-K dated March 18, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on March 24, 2005).

10.1** Form of Indemnity Agreement between Members of the Board of Directors and PalWeb Corporation (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2002, which
was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2002).

10.2** Indemnity Agreement by and between The Union Group, Inc., and Cabec Energy Corp. dated August 31, 1998
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Amendment No. 3 to Greystone's Form 10-KSB, which was filed
on May 2, 2000).

10.3** Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 of Greystone's Form
10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2002, which was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2002).

10.4** Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.8 of Greystone's
Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001, which was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2001).

10.5** Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.9 of Greystone's Form
10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001, which was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2001).

10.6** Form of Nonemployee Director Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.10 of
Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001, which was filed with the SEC on September 13,
2001).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.7 ** Form of Employee Director Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.36 of
Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2002, which was filed with the SEC on September 13,
2002).

10.8** Employment Agreement between PalWeb Corporation and Warren Kruger dated August 13, 2003 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.35 of Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2004, which
was filed with the SEC on August 30, 2004).

10.9 Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005, by and among Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C., GLOG Investment, L.L.C.,
The F&M Bank & Trust Company and PalWeb Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.10 Security Agreement dated March 4, 2005, by and between Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C., and The F&M Bank &
Trust Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005,
which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.11 Mortgage Agreement dated March 4, 2005, by and between Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C., and The F&M Bank &
Trust Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005,
which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.12 Guaranty of PalWeb Corporation dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of
Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.13 Industrial Lease dated as of July 1, 2004, by and between Greystone Properties, LLC, and Greystone Manufacturing,
L.L.C. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended
February 28, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on April 20, 2005).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.14 Promissory Note dated as of December 15, 2005 in the amount of $2,066,000 issued by Greystone Logistics, Inc. and
Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. to Robert B. Rosene, Jr. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on
January 17, 2006).

10.15 Promissory Note dated as of December 15, 2005 in the amount of $527,716 issued by Greystone Logistics, Inc. and
Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. to Warren F. Kruger, Jr. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on
January 17, 2006).

10.16 Security Agreement dated as of December 15, 2005 by and between Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Greystone
Manufacturing, L.L.C. and Robert B. Rosene, Jr. relating to Promissory Note in the amount of $2,066,000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended
November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on January 17, 2006).

10.17 Security Agreement dated as of December 15, 2005 by and between Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Greystone
Manufacturing, L.L.C. and Warren F. Kruger, Jr. relating to Promissory Note in the amount of $527,716
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended
November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on January 17, 2006).

10.18 Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC Molds, Grinder, Ancillary Resin Handling Equipment, Bumper
Contract, Raw Materials and Finished Goods Inventory Purchase Agreement and Bill of Sale dated as of February 7,
2007, by and between Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated February 7, 2007, which was filed
with the SEC on February 27, 2007).

10.19 Pallet Molds Lease Agreement dated as of February 7, 2007, by and between Greystone Manufacturing, LLC and
Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Greystone's
Form 8-K dated February 7, 2007, which was filed with the SEC on February 27, 2007).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.20 Real Property Sale and Lease Agreement between Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. and Greystone Real Estate,
L.L.C., dated January 18, 2011 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Greystone’s Form 10-Q for the
period ended February 28, 2011, which was filed on April 19, 2011).

10.21 2011 Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Greystone’s Form 8-K/A filed on September 2, 2011).

10.22 Promissory Note dated March 15, 2011, executed by Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. in favor of The F&M Bank &
Trust Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Greystone’s Form 8-K/A filed on September 2,
2011).

10.23 Second 2011 Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Greystone’s Form 8-K/A filed on September 2, 2011).

10.24 Third Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 5, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Greystone’s Form 10-Q for the period ended August 31, 2011, which was filed on October 24, 2011).

10.25** Amendment to Greystone’s Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (submitted herewith).

11.1 Computation of Income Per Share is in Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

21.1 Subsidiaries of Greystone Logistics, Inc. (submitted herewith).

23.1 Consent of HoganTaylor LLP (submitted herewith).

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

**           Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GREYSTONE LOGISTICS, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: September 14, 2012 /s/ Warren F. Kruger
Warren F. Kruger
Director, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: September 14, 2012 /s/ Warren F. Kruger
Warren F. Kruger
Director, President and Chief Executive
Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: September 14, 2012 /s/ Robert B. Rosene, Jr.
Robert B. Rosene, Jr., Director

Date: September 14, 2012 /s/ Larry J. LeBarre
Larry J. LeBarre, Director

Date: September 14, 2012 /s/ William W. Rahhal
William W. Rahhal, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)
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Index to Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger Merging PalWeb Corporation, a Delaware corporation, into PalWeb Oklahoma
Corporation, an Oklahoma corporation, filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on May 2, 2002 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was filed with the SEC
on May 24, 2002).

2.2 Certificate of Ownership and Merger Merging PalWeb Corporation, a Delaware corporation, into PalWeb Oklahoma
Corporation, an Oklahoma corporation, filed with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on May 2, 2002 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was filed with the SEC
on May 24, 2002).

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of PalWeb Oklahoma Corporation filed with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on May 2,
2002 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was
filed with the SEC on May 24, 2002).

3.2 Bylaws of PalWeb Oklahoma Corporation as adopted on May 2, 2002 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
3.2 of Greystone's Form 8-K12G3 dated May 2, 2002, which was filed with the SEC on May 24, 2002).

4.1 Certificate of Incorporation of PalWeb Oklahoma Corporation filed with the Oklahoma Secretary of State on May 2,
2002 (included in Exhibit 3.1).

4.2 Certificate of the Designation, Preferences, Rights and Limitations of PalWeb Corporation's Series 2003 Cumulative
Convertible Senior Preferred Stock (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated
September 8, 2003, which was filed with the SEC on September 23, 2003).

4.3 Certificate of Ownership and Merger Merging Greystone Logistics, Inc., into PalWeb Corporation filed with the
Oklahoma Secretary of State on March 18, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Greystone's Form
8-K dated March 18, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on March 24, 2005).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.1** Form of Indemnity Agreement between Members of the Board of Directors and PalWeb Corporation (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2002, which
was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2002).

10.2** Indemnity Agreement by and between The Union Group, Inc., and Cabec Energy Corp. dated August 31, 1998
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Amendment No. 3 to Greystone's Form 10-KSB, which was filed
on May 2, 2000).

10.3** Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 of Greystone's Form
10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2002, which was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2002).

10.4** Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.8 of Greystone's
Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001, which was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2001).

10.5** Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.9 of Greystone's Form
10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001, which was filed with the SEC on September 13, 2001).

10.6** Form of Nonemployee Director Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.10 of
Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001, which was filed with the SEC on September 13,
2001).

10.7 ** Form of Employee Director Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.36 of
Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2002, which was filed with the SEC on September 13,
2002).

10.8** Employment Agreement between PalWeb Corporation and Warren Kruger dated August 13, 2003 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.35 of Greystone's Form 10-KSB for the Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2004, which
was filed with the SEC on August 30, 2004).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.9 Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005, by and among Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C., GLOG Investment, L.L.C.,
The F&M Bank & Trust Company and PalWeb Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.10 Security Agreement dated March 4, 2005, by and between Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C., and The F&M Bank &
Trust Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005,
which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.11 Mortgage Agreement dated March 4, 2005, by and between Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C., and The F&M Bank &
Trust Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005,
which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.12 Guaranty of PalWeb Corporation dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of
Greystone's Form 8-K dated March 4, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on March 10, 2005).

10.13 Industrial Lease dated as of July 1, 2004, by and between Greystone Properties, LLC, and Greystone Manufacturing,
L.L.C. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended
February 28, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on April 20, 2005).

10.14 Promissory Note dated as of December 15, 2005 in the amount of $2,066,000 issued by Greystone Logistics, Inc. and
Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. to Robert B. Rosene, Jr. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on
January 17, 2006).

10.15 Promissory Note dated as of December 15, 2005 in the amount of $527,716 issued by Greystone Logistics, Inc. and
Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. to Warren F. Kruger, Jr. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on
January 17, 2006).

- 46 -

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 126



Exhibit No. Description

10.16 Security Agreement dated as of December 15, 2005 by and between Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Greystone
Manufacturing, L.L.C. and Robert B. Rosene, Jr. relating to Promissory Note in the amount of $2,066,000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended
November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on January 17, 2006).

10.17 Security Agreement dated as of December 15, 2005 by and between Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Greystone
Manufacturing, L.L.C. and Warren F. Kruger, Jr. relating to Promissory Note in the amount of $527,716
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Greystone's Form 10-QSB for the Quarterly Period Ended
November 30, 2005, which was filed with the SEC on January 17, 2006).

10.18 Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC Molds, Grinder, Ancillary Resin Handling Equipment, Bumper
Contract, Raw Materials and Finished Goods Inventory Purchase Agreement and Bill of Sale dated as of February 7,
2007, by and between Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Greystone's Form 8-K dated February 7, 2007, which was filed
with the SEC on February 27, 2007).

10.19 Pallet Molds Lease Agreement dated as of February 7, 2007, by and between Greystone Manufacturing, LLC and
Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Greystone's
Form 8-K dated February 7, 2007, which was filed with the SEC on February 27, 2007).

10.20 Real Property Sale and Lease Agreement between Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. and Greystone Real Estate,
L.L.C., dated January 18, 2011 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Greystone’s Form 10-Q for the
period ended February 28, 2011, which was filed on April 19, 2011).

10.21 2011 Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Greystone’s Form 8-K/A filed on September 2, 2011).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.22 Promissory Note dated March 15, 2011, executed by Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. in favor of The F&M Bank &
Trust Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Greystone’s Form 8-K/A filed on September 2,
2011).

10.23 Second 2011 Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Greystone’s Form 8-K/A filed on September 2, 2011).

10.24 Third Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 5, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Greystone’s Form 10-Q for the period ended August 31, 2011, which was filed on October 24, 2011).

10.25** Amendment to Greystone’s Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (submitted herewith).

11.1 Computation of Income Per Share is in Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

21.1 Subsidiaries of Greystone Logistics, Inc. (submitted herewith).

23.1 Consent of HoganTaylor LLP (submitted herewith).

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

**           Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders of
Greystone Logistics, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Greystone Logistics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2012 and 2011, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, changes in deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended.  These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.  The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting.  Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Greystone Logistics, Inc. as of May 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ HoganTaylor LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
September 14, 2012
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Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

May 31,
2012 2011

Assets
Current Assets:
    Cash $194,400 $169,420
    Accounts receivable -
       Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $50,000
          and $75,000 for 2012 and 2011, respectively 2,715,893 1,769,387
    Related parties — 652,402
    Inventory 956,638 543,557
    Prepaid expenses 45,090 70,990
Total Current Assets 3,912,021 3,205,756

Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 7,798,178 7,713,608

Deferred Tax Asset 585,000 —

Other Assets 86,454 100,693

Total Assets $12,381,653 $11,020,057

Liabilities and Deficit
Current Liabilities:
    Current portion of long-term debt $1,286,312 $3,937,581
    GLOG Investment, L.L.C., current portion of long-term debt — 135,173
    Advances payable - related party — 725,080
    Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,581,787 1,927,162
    Accounts payable and accrued expenses - related parties 1,285,714 1,621,838
    Preferred dividends payable 2,924,108 —
Total Current Liabilities 8,077,921 8,346,834

Long-Term Debt, net of current portion 10,757,561 8,811,243
Long-Term Debt of Variable Interest Entities, net of current
    portion, GLOG Investment, L.L.C. — 3,566,971

Deficit:
    Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, cumulative, 20,750,000
       shares authorized, 50,000 shares issued and outstanding,
       liquidation preference of $5,000,000 5 —
    Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 5,000,000,000 shares
       authorized, 26,111,201 shares issued and outstanding 2,611 2,611
    Additional paid-in capital 53,089,293 48,089,298
    Accumulated deficit (60,586,143 ) (62,297,986 )
         Total Greystone Stockholders' Deficit (7,494,234 ) (14,206,077 )
    Non-controlling interest 1,040,405 4,501,086
Total Deficit (6,453,829 ) (9,704,991 )

Total Liabilities and Deficit $12,381,653 $11,020,057

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Year Ended May 31,
2012 2011

Sales $24,157,590 $20,501,824

Cost of Sales 19,227,739 18,357,836

Gross Profit 4,929,851 2,143,988

General, Selling and Administrative Expenses 1,992,679 1,920,649

Operating Income 2,937,172 223,339

Other Income (Expense):
    Other income (expense) (133,409 ) 15,157
    Interest expense (897,113 ) (1,085,700 )
Total Other Expense, net (1,030,522 ) (1,070,543 )

Income before Income Taxes 1,906,650 (847,204 )
Benefit (Provision) from Income Taxes 585,000 —
Net Income (Loss) 2,491,650 (847,204 )

(Income) Loss Attributable to Variable Interest Entities, net (146,190 ) 77,109

Preferred Dividends (242,192 ) —

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Common Stockholders $2,103,268 $(770,095 )

Income (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock -
    Basic and Diluted $0.08 $(0.03 )

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding -
    Basic and Diluted 26,111,201 26,111,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Deficit

Preferred
Stock Common Stock

Additional
Paid-in Accumulated

Total
Greystone

Stockholders'
Variable
Interest Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Deficit Entities Deficit
Balances, May
31, 2010 50,000 $5 26,111,201 $2,611 $53,017,317 $(61,527,891) $(8,507,958 ) $826,422 (7,681,536)

Adjustment for
consolidating
variable interest
entities (50,000 ) (5 ) — — (4,999,995 ) — (5,000,000 ) 3,458,517 (1,541,483)

Capital
contributions — — — — — — — 293,256 293,256

Stock based
compensation — — — — 71,976 — 71,976 — 71,976

Net loss — — — — — (770,095 ) (770,095 ) (77,109 ) (847,204 )

Balances, May
31, 2011 — — 26,111,201 2,611 48,089,298 (62,297,986) (14,206,077) 4,501,086 (9,704,991)

Adjustment for
deconsolidating
variable interest
entities 50,000 5 — — 4,999,995 (391,425 ) 4,608,575 (3,618,199) 990,376

Capital
contributions — — — — — — — 75,000 75,000

Cash
distributions — — — — — — — (63,672 ) (63,672 )

Preferred
dividends — — — — — (242,192 ) (242,192 ) — (242,192 )

Net income — — — — — 2,345,460 2,345,460 146,190 2,491,650

Balances, May
31, 2012 50,000 $5 26,111,201 $2,611 $53,089,293 $(60,586,143) $(7,494,234 ) $1,040,405 $(6,453,829)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended May 31,
2012 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income (Loss) $2,491,650 $(847,204 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
  provided by operating activities
     Depreciation and amortization 1,165,795 1,015,561
     Increase in deferred tax asset (585,000 ) —
     Loss on disposition of equipment 131,500 —
     Stock based compensation — 71,976
     Changes in accounts receivable (919,284 ) (816,629 )
     Changes in inventory (413,081 ) 106,386
     Changes in prepaid expenses 25,900 (2,317 )
     Changes in accounts payable and accrued expenses 321,709 587,461
     Other (2,640 ) 1,095
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,216,549 116,329

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
   Purchase of property and equipment (801,960 ) (1,171,849 )
   Debt issue costs — (18,727 )
Net cash used in investing activities (801,960 ) (1,190,576 )

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
   Proceeds from notes and advances payable to related parties — 500,000
   Payments on notes and advances payable to related parties (99,900 ) (626,501 )
   Proceeds from long-term debt — 425,000
   Payments on notes and advances payable (1,301,037 ) (2,043,326 )
   Proceeds from long-term of variable interest entities — 3,908,372
   Payments on long-term debt by variable interest entities — (1,376,883 )
   Capital contributions by variable interest entity 75,000 293,256
   Dividends paid by variable interest entity (63,672 ) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,389,609 ) 1,079,918

Net Increase in Cash 24,980 5,671
Cash, beginning of year 169,420 163,749

Cash, end of year $194,400 $169,420

Supplemental Information (Note 11)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

F-6

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN TOWER CORP /MA/ - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 134



Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

May 31, 2012 and 2011

Note 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Greystone Logistics, Inc. ("Greystone"), through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Greystone Manufacturing, LLC ("GSM") and
Plastic Pallet Production, Inc. ("PPP"), is engaged in the manufacture and marketing of plastic pallets and pelletized recycled plastic
resin.
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Greystone, its subsidiaries and entities required to be consolidated by
the accounting guidance for variable interest entities (“VIE”).  All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated.

Greystone consolidates its VIEs, Greystone Real Estate, L.L.C. (“GRE”) and, until its liquidation effective August 31, 2011, GLOG
Investment, L.L.C. (“GLOG”).  GRE is owned by Warren F. Kruger, president and CEO, and Robert B. Rosene, Jr., a member of
Greystone’s board of directors.  GLOG was owned by Messrs. Kruger and Rosene prior to its dissolution.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Greystone's financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires Greystone's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in these financial
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Greystone carries its accounts receivable at their face value less an allowance for doubtful accounts.  On a periodic basis, Greystone
evaluates its accounts receivable and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based on a combination of specific customer
circumstances and credit conditions and based on a history of collections. Based on periodic reviews of outstanding accounts
receivable, Greystone writes off balances deemed to be uncollectible against the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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Inventory

Inventory consists of finished pallets and raw materials and is stated at the lower of average cost or market value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Greystone's property, plant and equipment is stated at cost.  Depreciation expense is computed on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant buildings 39 years
Production machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Office equipment & furniture & fixtures 3-5 years

Upon sale, retirement or other disposal, the related costs and accumulated depreciation of items of property, plant or equipment are
removed from the related accounts and any gain or loss is recognized.  When events or changes in circumstances indicate that assets
may be impaired, an evaluation is performed comparing the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset to the
asset’s carrying amount. If the asset carrying amount exceeds the cash flows, a write-down to fair value is required.

Patents

Amortization expense for the costs incurred by Greystone to obtain the patents on the modular pallet system and accessories is
computed on the straight-line method over the estimated life of 15 years.

Stock Options

The grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees is amortized over the vesting
period of the award as compensation cost.  The fair value of new option grants is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have
no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions including the expected stock price volatility, dividend yields and expected holding periods.

Recognition of Revenues

Greystone’s sales agreements to customers other than its primary customer generally provide for risk of loss to pass to the customers
upon shipment from Greystone’s plant in Bettendorf, Iowa.  Revenue is recognized for these customers at date of shipment.
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Greystone’s agreement with its major customer provides that (1) risk of loss or damages for product in transit remain with Greystone
or (2) product is subject to approval at the buyer’s premises.  Accordingly, Greystone recognizes revenue when product has been
delivered to the customer’s sites and risk of loss has passed to the customer.

For sales to all customers, cost of goods sold is recognized when the related revenue is recognized.

Income Taxes

Greystone accounts for income taxes under the liability method, which requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for
the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.  Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statements and tax bases of assets and
liabilities and tax loss carryforwards using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the year. In arriving at income available to common stockholders, preferred stock dividends are
deducted from net income for the year. For fiscal years 2012 and 2011, convertible preferred stock and stock options are not
considered as their effect is antidilutive.

The following securities were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2012
and 2011 as their effect would have been antidilutive:

2012 2011
Options to purchase common stock 1,400,000 1,940,000
Convertible preferred stock 3,333,334 —

4,733,334 1,940,000

Note 2.    INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following as of May 31:

2012 2011
Raw materials $ 593,225 $ 171,104
Finished pallets 363,413 372,453

Total Inventory $ 956,638 $ 543,557
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Note 3.    PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the property, plant and equipment for Greystone is as follows, as of May 31:

2012 2011
Production machinery and equipment $ 10,121,006 $ 8,899,389
Building and land 4,663,339 4,663,339
Leasehold improvements 188,124 188,124
Furniture and fixtures 161,592 149,723

15,134,061 13,900,575

Less: Accumulated depreciation (7,335,883 ) (6,186,967 )

Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 7,798,178 $ 7,713,608

Production machinery and equipment includes equipment in the amount of $610,629 that had not been placed into service as of May
31, 2012.  Building and land are owned by a variable interest entity for which the net book value is $3,707,653 at May 31, 2012.

Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2012 and 2011 is $1,148,916 and $1,003,446, respectively.

See Note 6, Related Party Transactions, for a discussion of a sale and leaseback transaction of Greystone’s building to GRE.

Note 4.    OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following as of May 31:

2012 2011
Patents $ 190,739 $ 190,739
Debt issue costs 18,726 18,726
Accumulated amortization (127,829 ) (110,950 )
Customer deposits 4,818 2,178

Total Other Assets $ 86,454 $ 100,693

Amortization of intangibles was $16,879 and $12,115 for 2012 and 2011, respectively.   Future amortization will be $16,327 per year
for the next five fiscal years.
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Note 5.    LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following as of May 31:

2012 2011
Note payable to F&M Bank & Trust Company,
prime rate of interest not less than 4.5%, due
March 13, 2014, monthly principal payments of
$72,593 plus interest $ 5,226,665 $ 5,952,591

Note payable by variable interest entity to F&M
Bank & Trust Company, prime rate of interest
but not less than 4.75%, due March 15, 2014,
monthly installments of $35,512, secured by
buildings and land 3,623,070 3,866,827

Capitalized lease payable, due August 15, 2016,
5% interest, monthly payments of $10,625 plus
$0.50 per pallet for monthly sales in excess of 12,500 481,597 —

Note payable to BancFirst, prime rate of interest
plus 1%, due June 2012, secured by equipment 8,047 181,771

Note payable to Robert Rosene, 7.5% interest,
due January 15, 2014 2,066,000 2,066,000

Note payable to Warren Kruger, 7.5% interest,
due January 15, 2014 527,716 527,716

Other notes payable 110,778 153,919
12,043,873 12,748,824

Less: Current portion (1,286,312 ) (3,937,581 )

Long-term Debt $ 10,757,561 $ 8,811,243
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At May 31, 2011, GLOG, a variable interest entity had a note payable to The F&M Bank & Trust Company, 4.5% interest, monthly
installments of $24,917 and due March 15, 2014.  GLOG was dissolved effective August 31, 2011 and, accordingly, removed from
the consolidation of Greystone effective September 1, 2011. The balance outstanding at May 31, 2011 was $3,702,144 of which
$135,173 was the current portion.

The prime rate of interest as of May 31, 2012 was 3.25%.                                                                                                     

On March 4, 2005, Greystone entered into a loan agreement (the “F&M Loan Agreement”) with GLOG and The F&M Bank & Trust
Company ("F&M”), which, among other things, sets forth certain terms applicable to a $1,500,000 revolving loan extended by F&M
to GSM on or about December 18, 2004 and a new $5,500,000 term loan extended by F&M to GSM on March 4, 2005.    GLOG, an
entity owned by Warren F. Kruger, President and CEO and a director, and Robert B. Rosene, Jr., a director, was a party to the F&M
Loan Agreement for the sole purpose of securing the funds necessary to purchase 50,000 shares of Greystone's 2003 preferred stock.
On March 28, 2011, two amendments (collectively, the “2011 Amendments”) to the F&M Loan Agreement were executed.  The 2011
Amendments (a) have an effective date of March 15, 2011, (b) cause all of GSM’s accrued debt under the F&M Loan Agreement plus
an additional $300,000 to be transferred into a single term loan facility, with such facility being in the aggregate principal amount of
$6,097,776 and having a maturity date of March 13, 2014, (c) renew GLOG’s obligations under the F&M Loan Agreement in the
principal amount of $3,722,155 until March 15, 2014, (d) provide for cross-collateralization and cross-default among property and
debts of GSM, GLOG and GRE, an entity owned by Messrs. Kruger and Rosene, (e) impose certain guaranty requirements on
Messrs. Kruger and Rosene, and (f) add to the F&M Loan Agreement certain financial covenants, reporting requirements and other
provisions that are customary in such types of agreements including a restriction on dividends to the preferred and common
stockholders. Financial covenants include compliance with funded debt to EBITDA, earnings before interest depreciation and
amortization, and debt service coverage ratios.  Calculation of these ratios includes GSM, Yorktown, GLOG, GRE and Warren
Kruger individually.

In addition to the cross-collateralization provisions of the 2011 Amendments, Greystone's obligations are secured by a lien in favor
of F&M on substantially all of GSM's assets pursuant to the terms of a security agreement.  Also, pursuant to the terms of a guaranty
agreement, Greystone guaranteed GSM's performance and payment under the notes.  In addition, in order to induce F&M to enter
into the F&M Loan Agreement, Messrs. Kruger and Rosene entered into a limited guaranty agreement with F&M and Mr. Rosene
entered into a pledge agreement with F&M.

Effective as of August 31, 2011, Warren Kruger, Robert Rosene, Jr., F&M, GSM and GLOG entered into an amendment (the “Third
Amendment”) to the Loan Agreement.  The Third Amendment (a) causes all of GLOG’s rights and obligations under the Loan
Agreement to be transferred to  Messrs. Kruger and Rosene, (b) affirms the cross-collateralization and cross-default provisions of the
Loan Agreement among property and debts of GSM, GLOG and GRE, (c) amends the cross-collateralization and cross-default
provisions of the Loan Agreement to include Messrs. Kruger and Rosene as replacements for GLOG, (d) amends certain financial
covenants of the Loan Agreement, and (e) includes certain other provisions that are customary in such types of agreements.  The
Third Amendment was a result of GLOG distributing its assets to its members, Messrs. Kruger and Rosene, and subsequently being
dissolved.

Maturities of Greystone’s long-term debt for the five years after May 31, 2012 are $1,286,312, $3,890,053, $3,906,073, $419,668 and
$2,541,767.
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Note 6.   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Warren F. Kruger, Chairman

Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC (“Yorktown”), an entity wholly owned by Greystone’s CEO and President, owns the
grinding equipment Greystone uses to grind raw material for Greystone’s pallet production. The raw material is purchased by
Yorktown which invoices Greystone for Yorktown’s cost plus a grinding fee of $0.04 per pound. During fiscal years 2012 and 2011,
GSM’s raw material purchases from Yorktown totaled approximately $3,911,000 and $2,966,000, respectively, pursuant to this
arrangement.

GSM pays rents to Yorktown as follows: (i) certain pallet molds at the rate of $1.00 per pallet of which approximately $38,000 and
$44,000 was paid in fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively, (ii) office rent at the rate of $1,500 per month and (iii) equipment used
for heavy lifting of which $73,200 was paid in each of fiscal years 2012 and 2011.  The lease for the heavy-lifting equipment ended
February 29, 2012 and the equipment continues to be leased on a month-to-month basis.

Yorktown and GSM have an agreement for purchase, processing and selling pelletized recycled plastic resin.  Yorktown purchases
the raw material and provides the pelletizing equipment and GSM supplies the labor and operating overhead.  Upon shipment to
customers, Yorktown invoices GSM for the cost of the raw material. GSM invoices customers recognizing revenue and accruing
profit-sharing expense to Yorktown at 40% of the gross profit, defined as revenue less cost of material and sales commissions of
2.5%.  Yorktown’s profit share of the resin sales for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 was approximately $168,000 and $359,000,
respectively.

Effective December 15, 2005, Greystone entered into a loan agreement with Warren Kruger to convert $527,716 of advances due
him into a note payable at 7.5% interest and Mr. Kruger has waived payment of interest and principal thereon until January 15, 2014.
Greystone accrues interest on advances and note payable to Mr. Kruger at the rate of 7.5% per year.  Interest accrued in fiscal years
2012 and 2011 was $137,543 and $133,654, respectively. At May 31, 2012, a note payable of $527,716, advances of $625,180 and
accrued interest of $699,399 were due to Mr. Kruger or to entities owned or controlled by him.

Greystone also pays the labor and certain other costs on behalf of Yorktown’s Tulsa, Oklahoma grinding operation.  These costs are
invoiced to Yorktown on a monthly basis.

Greystone pays advances to Yorktown in recognition of the amounts owed pursuant to the aforementioned agreements.  As of May
31, 2012, net advances to Yorktown totaled $1,883,922.  Mr. Kruger has agreed that, if necessary, the amounts due Greystone should
be offset against the amounts that Greystone owes him or Yorktown.  At May 31, 2012, the offset against the net advances is the
combined total of (i) the accrued interest of $699,399 payable to Mr. Kruger, (ii) advances payable to Mr. Kruger of $625,180 and
(iii) an account payable of $720,000 for deferred compensation payable to Mr. Kruger. 

Pursuant to Mr. Kruger’s employment contract with Greystone, he is entitled to be paid an annual salary of $240,000.  However,
effective November 2006, Mr. Kruger voluntarily elected to temporarily defer the payment of half of such salary. Effective June 1,
2012, Greystone resumed payment of the full salary to Mr. Kruger.
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Transactions with Robert B. Rosene, Jr., Director

Effective December 15, 2005, Greystone entered into a loan agreement with Mr. Rosene to convert $2,066,000 of the advances into a
note payable at 7.5% interest and Mr. Rosene has waived the payment of principal and accrued interest thereon until January 15,
2014. Mr. Rosene loaned $500,000 to Greystone which was repaid in April, 2011. Greystone has accrued interest on the loans in the
amounts of $244,032 and $244,402 in fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively. Accrued interest due to Mr. Rosene at May 31, 2012
is $1,285,714.

Transactions with Larry J. LeBarre, Director

Effective January 1, 2009, Greystone entered into a lease agreement with an entity owned by Mr. LeBarre to rent certain equipment
to produce mid-duty pallets with a minimum monthly commitment of $25,000.  The lease has a term of one year with the option of
renewing or terminating the lease at the end of each year.  The lease was renewed for another year effective January 1, 2012.  Lease
payments were $300,000 for each of fiscal years 2012 and 2011.

Note 7.    FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Deferred taxes as of May 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011
Net operating loss carryforward $ 2,548,931 $ 2,660,986
Depreciation and amortization, financial
    reporting in excess of tax 617,466 974,808
Deferred compensation accrual 244,800 210,800
Allowance for doubtful accounts 17,000 25,500

3,428,197 3,872,094
Valuation allowance (2,843,197 ) (3,872,094 )

Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 585,000 $ —

In assessing the reliability of deferred tax assets, management considers the likelihood of whether it is more likely than not the net
deferred tax asset will be realized. Based on this evaluation, management has provided a valuation allowance which allows for the
estimated tax benefit to be realized in fiscal year 2013 and for the full amount of the net deferred tax asset for May 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

The net change in deferred taxes for the year ended May 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

2012 2011
Net operating loss $ (112,055 ) $ 296,418
Depreciation and amortization, financial
    reporting in excess of tax (357,342 ) (202,218 )
Deferred compensation accrual 34,000 40,800
Allowance for doubtful accounts (8,500 ) 25,500
Valuation allowance 1,028,897 (160,500 )

Total $ 585,000 $ —
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Greystone's provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended May 31, 2012 and 2011 differs from the federal statutory rate as
follows:

2012 2011
Tax provision (benefit) using statutory rates $ 648,261 $ (288,050 )
Net change in valuation allowance (1,028,897 ) 160,500
Net operating loss (112,055 ) —
Compensation cost of stock options — 24,472
(Income) loss of variable interest entities (49,705 ) 32,194
Other (42,604 ) 70,884

Tax benefit per financial statements $ (585,000 ) $ —

At May 31, 2012, Greystone had a net operating loss (NOL) for Federal income tax purposes from inception through May 31, 2005
of $17,693,000 expiring in fiscal year 2013 through fiscal year 2029 of which $2,925,000 is management’s estimate of the usable
amount pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382. The limitation is due to a change in control of Greystone during the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2005. The utilization of NOL’s accumulated through fiscal year 2005 is limited to approximately $225,000 per
year.

NOL
Carryforward

Year
Expiring

Cumulative as of May 31, 2005 $ 2,925,000 2013 - 2025
Year ended May 31, 2006 1,673,534 2026
Year ended May 31, 2007 2,151,837 2027
Year ended May 31, 2011 746,484 2021

Greystone is no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to fiscal year 2006.

Greystone does not have any uncertain tax positions that could result in a material change to its financial position.

Note 8.    STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Convertible Preferred Stock

In September 2003, Greystone issued 50,000 shares of Series 2003, cumulative, convertible preferred stock, par value $0.0001, for a
total purchase price of $5,000,000.  Each share of the preferred stock has a stated value of $100 and a dividend rate equal to the
prime rate of interest plus 3.25% and may be converted into common stock at the conversion rate of $1.50 per share or an aggregate
of 3,333,333 shares of common stock. The holder of the preferred stock has been granted certain voting rights so that such holder has
the right to elect a majority of the Board of Directors of Greystone.

Preferred stock dividends must be fully paid before a dividend on the common stock may be paid.  Dividends in arrears on the
preferred stock were $2,924,108 and $2,599,999 as of May 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The holders of the preferred stock
waived their rights to compounded interest on unpaid dividends during the period from inception through May 31, 2012.

GLOG was the owner of Greystone’s preferred stock until August 31, 2011 when it was liquidated and the preferred stock was
distributed to its owners, Warren Kruger, Greystone’s president and CEO, and Robert Rosene, a member of Greystone’s board of
directors.  As a result of the consolidation of GLOG with Greystone at May 31, 2011, GLOG’s investment in the preferred stock and
the related dividends receivable are eliminated against Greystone’s equity in the preferred stock and the related accrual of dividends
in arrears.
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Note 9.    STOCK OPTIONS

Greystone has a stock option plan that provides for the granting of options to key employees and non-employee directors. The
options are to purchase common stock at not less than fair market value at the date of the grant.  Effective May 5,2012, Greystone’s
board of directors approved the renewal and extension of Greystone’s stock option plan through May 11, 2021 and increased the
maximum number of shares of common stock for which options may be granted to 2,500,000 of which 1,075,000 were available for
grant at May 31, 2012. Stock options generally expire in ten years from date of grant or upon termination of employment and are
generally exercisable one year from date of grant in cumulative annual installments of 25%. Following is a summary of option
activity for the two years ended May 31, 2012:

Number

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Remaining
Contractual
Life (years)

Total outstanding, May 31, 2011 1,940,000 $ 0.99

Expired during fiscal year 2012  (540,000 )

Total outstanding May 31, 2012 1,400,000 $ 0.53 1.3

Exercisable, May 31, 2012 1,400,000 $ 0.53 1.3

Share-based compensation cost was $-0- and $71,976 for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively.  As of May 31, 2012, there was
no unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested share-based options.

Note 10.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating the fair-value disclosures for financial instruments:

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable:  The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for accounts receivable and
accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

Long-Term Debt: The carrying amount of loans with floating rates of interest approximate fair value.  Fixed rate loans are valued
based on cash flows using estimated rates for comparable loans.  The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet approximate fair
value.

Note 11.  SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION OF CASH FLOWS

Supplemental information of cash flows for the years ended May 31:

2012 2011
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
   Preferred dividend accrual $ 242,192 $ —
   Equipment purchased through capital lease 563,026 —
   Advances from related party applied
      against receivables from the related party  625,180 —
Supplemental information:
   Interest paid 516,059 722,855
   Taxes paid — —
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Note 12.  CONCENTRATIONS

For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2012 and 2011, one customer accounted for approximately 59% and 56% of sales, respectively.
The account receivable from this customer at May 31, 2012 totaled $1,331,326.

Used and damaged pallets are a desirable source of raw material. Greystone purchases pallets from its customers at a price
competitive with other sources for the same grade of raw material. Currently, most of the purchases of used and damaged pallets
come from Greystone’s major customer. These pallets are recycled and used in the manufacture of pallets. During the latter part of
fiscal year 2011, Greystone’s major customer discontinued its use of a particular size of pallet which was replaced by another size of
Greystone’s pallets.  Greystone repurchased these discontinued pallets for a contractual price.  Greystone’s willingness to accept the
returned pallets has resulted in a surplus of pallets with respect to Greystone’s current production needs.  As of May 31, 2012,
Greystone had an account payable to the major customer resulting from this transaction in the amount of approximately $1,658,000
for which the customer has agreed to accept Greystone’s monthly payments of $240,000.

Purchases from this major customer were approximately $3,626,000 and $1,400,000 in fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
purchases in fiscal year 2012 included $2,158,000 for the discontinued pallets as discussed in the preceding paragraph.

As of the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012 and 2011, Greystone purchased approximately 49% of its raw materials from Yorktown
Management & Financial Services LLC, an entity owned by Warren Kruger, Greystone’s Chairman and CEO.   However, the raw
materials for Greystone’s products are readily available and may be purchased from other suppliers.

Note 13.  VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

Greystone Real Estate, L.L.C.
GRE, is owned by Warren Kruger, President and CEO, and Robert Rosene, a member of the Board of Directors.  It was created
solely to own and lease a building that GSM occupies at 2600 Shoreline Drive, Bettendorf, Iowa. Effective January 18, 2011, GRE
acquired from GSM an adjacent building located at 2601 Shoreline Drive, Bettendorf, Iowa, in a sale and leaseback transaction based
on an appraised market price of $2,700,000.  In addition, GRE and GSM entered into an amended lease agreement for 2600
Shoreline Drive.  The sale and leaseback and the amended lease terms and conditions are based on ten year leases at appraised
market rates with options to purchase at appraised market value. The outstanding mortgage on the buildings is guaranteed by Messrs.
Kruger and Rosene.

The building(s), having a carrying value of $3,707,653 and $3,822,445 at May 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, serve as collateral
for GRE’s debt.  The debt had a carrying value of $3,623,070 and $3,866,827 at May 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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GLOG Investment, L.L.C.
GLOG was created in March 2005 for the purpose of acquiring from a third party, all of the outstanding Series 2003 Preferred Stock
of Greystone.  The owners of GLOG were Messrs. Kruger and Rosene.  Until August 31, 2011, GLOG’s sole asset was the preferred
stock with a carrying value of $5,000,000. GLOG’s debt had a carrying value at May 31, 2011 of $3,702,144..

Effective August 31, 2011, GLOG was liquidated, the assets were distributed to the owners and the debt was assumed by the
owners.  Accordingly, the entity was deconsolidated effective with the liquidation of the entity.

Note 14.  RETIREMENT PLAN

Greystone sponsors a retirement plan for the benefit of all eligible employees. The retirement plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code thereby allowing eligible employees to make tax-deferred contributions. The retirement plan provides that
Greystone may elect to make employer-matching contributions equal to a percentage of each participant’s voluntary contribution and
may also elect to make profit sharing contributions. Greystone has never made any matching or profit sharing contributions to the
retirement plan.

Note 15.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Effective June 1, 2012, Greystone issued stock options to purchase 2,100,000 shares of common stock to certain of its board of
directors, officers and employees and cancelled options to purchase 1,300,000. The new options are for a ten year period and are
vested at the rate of 25% per year beginning with the first anniversary of the date of the grant. The cost of the options is valued at
$214,000 to be accrued over the vesting period of four years.
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ANNEX C

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED   February 28, 2013

o TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM _________ TO _________

Commission file number        000-26331      

GREYSTONE LOGISTICS, INC. 

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Oklahoma 75-2954680
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

1613 East 15th Street, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74120

(Address of principal executive offices)     (Zip Code)

(918) 583-7441

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has
been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.   Yes x      No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to post and submit such files).   Yes x      No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company.  See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of
the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer  o Accelerated filer  o
Non-accelerated filer  o
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) 

Smaller reporting company  x

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes o    No x
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Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date:     April
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ITEM 1.  Financial Statements.

Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

February 28, May 31,
2013 2012

(Unaudited)
Assets

Current Assets:
    Cash $381,822 $194,400
    Accounts receivable -
        Trade, net of allowance of $50,000 2,086,142 2,715,893
        Related party 949,320 —
    Inventory 1,109,307 956,638
    Prepaid expenses and other 154,392 45,090
Total Current Assets 4,680,983 3,912,021
Property, Plant and Equipment 15,454,712 15,134,061
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (8,321,845 ) (7,335,883 )
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 7,132,867 7,798,178
Deferred Tax Asset 822,400 585,000
Other Assets 74,183 86,454
Total Assets $12,710,433 $12,381,653

Liabilities and Deficit
Current Liabilities:
    Current portion of long-term debt $1,291,736 $1,286,312
    Preferred dividends payable 3,168,971 2,924,108
    Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,400,052 2,581,787
    Accounts payable and accrued expenses - related parties 1,482,722 1,285,714
Total Current Liabilities 8,343,481 8,077,921
Long-Term Debt, net of current portion 9,813,123 10,757,561
Deficit:
    Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, $5,000,000 liquidation preference
      Shares authorized: 20,750,000
      Shares issued and outstanding: 50,000 5 5
    Common stock, $0.0001 par value
       Shares authorized: 5,000,000,000
       Shares issued and outstanding:  26,111,201 2,611 2,611
    Additional paid-in capital 53,129,361 53,089,293
    Accumulated deficit (59,703,145 ) (60,586,143 )
Total Greystone Stockholders' Deficit (6,571,168 ) (7,494,234 )
    Non-controlling interests 1,124,997 1,040,405
Total Deficit (5,446,171 ) (6,453,829 )
Total Liabilities and Deficit $12,710,433 $12,381,653

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

- 1 -
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Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
February 28,

2013
February 29,

2012

Sales $16,705,437 $16,872,981

Cost of Sales 13,467,061 13,821,507

Gross Profit 3,238,376 3,051,474

General, Selling and Administrative Expenses 1,573,995 1,454,146

Operating Income 1,664,381 1,597,328

Other Income (Expense):
    Other Income (Expense) 6,500 (1,909 )
    Interest Expense (620,022 ) (680,480 )
Total Other Expense, net (613,522 ) (682,389 )

Income before income taxes 1,050,859 914,939
Benefit from income taxes 226,900 —
Net Income 1,277,759 914,939

Income Attributable to Variable Interest Entities, net (149,898 ) (96,669 )

Preferred Dividends (244,863 ) (160,274 )

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders $882,998 $657,996

Income Available to Common Stockholders:
    Per Share of Common Stock - Basic $0.03 $0.03
    Per Share of Common Stock - Diluted $0.03 $0.03

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding -
    Basic 26,111,201 26,111,201
    Diluted 27,366,000 26,111,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

- 2 -
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Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
February 28,

2013
February 29,

2012

Sales $4,517,453 $4,875,856

Cost of Sales 3,687,258 3,960,606

Gross Profit 830,195 915,250

General, Selling and Administrative Expenses 472,912 554,801

Operating Income 357,283 360,449

Other Income (Expense):
    Other Expense, net — 4,932
    Interest Expense (200,668 ) (201,583 )
Total Other Expense, net (200,668 ) (196,651 )

Income Before Income Taxes 156,615 163,798
Benefit From Income Taxes 17,600 —
Net Income 174,215 163,798

Income Attributable to Variable Interest Entity (45,688 ) (50,489 )

Preferred Dividends (80,137 ) (79,247 )

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders $48,390 $34,062

Income Available to Common Stockholders:
    Per Share of Common Stock - Basic $0.00 $0.00
    Per Share of Common Stock - Diluted $0.00 $0.00

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding -
    Basic 26,111,201 26,111,201
    Diluted 27,554,523 26,111,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Greystone Logistics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
February 28,

2013
February 29,

2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
   Net income $1,277,759 $914,939
   Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
    provided by operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 995,749 867,005
      Deferred income taxes (237,400 ) —
      Stock-based compensation 40,068 —
      Changes in receivables (319,569 ) (294,002 )
      Changes in inventory (152,669 ) (1,339,103 )
      Changes in prepaid expenses and other (109,302 ) (82,994 )
      Changes in other assets 2,484 (3,320 )
      Changes in accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,273 1,500,827
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,512,393 1,563,352

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
   Purchase of property and equipment (320,651 ) (435,211 )

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
   Payments on long-term debt and capitalized leases (939,014 ) (935,964 )
   Payments on advances from related party — (93,500 )
   Capital contributions to variable interest entity — 75,000
   Distributions by variable interest entity (65,306 ) (54,560 )
Net cash used in financing activities (1,004,320 ) (1,009,024 )

Net Increase in Cash 187,422 119,117
Cash, beginning of period 194,400 169,420

Cash, end of period $381,822 $288,537

Non-Cash Activities:
   Acquisition of equipment by capital lease $— $563,026
   Preferred dividend accrual 244,863 160,274
   Net decrease in liabilities due to deconsolidation of VIE — 990,378
Supplemental Information:
   Interest paid 329,737 398,523

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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GREYSTONE LOGISTICS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Note 1.          Basis of Financial Statements

In the opinion of Greystone Logistics, Inc. (“Greystone”), the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all
adjustments and reclassifications, which are of a normal recurring nature, necessary to present fairly its financial position as of
February 28, 2013, and the results of its operations for the nine-month and three-month periods ended February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012 and its cash flows for the nine-month periods ended February 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012.  These
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2012 and the notes thereto included in Greystone's Form 10-K for such period. The results of operations for the
nine-month and three-month periods ended February 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of the results to
be expected for the full fiscal year.

The consolidated financial statements of Greystone include its wholly-owned subsidiaries,  Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. (“GSM”)
and Plastic Pallet Production, Inc. (“PPP”), and its variable interest entities, Greystone Real Estate, L.L.C. (“GRE”) and GLOG
Investments, L.L.C. (“GLOG”), except that GLOG was deconsolidated effective September 1, 2011.  GRE owns two buildings located
in Bettendorf, Iowa which are leased to GSM.

Note 2.          Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted-average effect of all common shares issued and outstanding and is calculated by
dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of
common shares used in the basic earnings per share calculation plus the number of common shares that would be issued assuming
exercise or conversion of all potentially dilutive common shares outstanding.

Greystone excludes equity instruments from the calculation of diluted earnings per share if the effect of including such instruments is
anti-dilutive.  Equity instruments which have been excluded are certain options to purchase common stock totaling 350,000 and
1,940,000 shares for the nine and three months ended February 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012, respectively, and convertible
preferred stock which is convertible into 3,333,334 shares of common stock for both the nine months and three months ended
February 28, 2013, and 2012.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted shares for the nine and three months ended February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012:
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February 28, 2013 February 29, 2012
For the Nine-Month Periods:
Weighted-average shares outstanding:
    Basic 26,111,201 26,111,201
Incremental shares from assumed conversion of
options 1,254,799 —
Diluted shares 27,366,000 26,111,201

For the Three-Month Periods:
Weighted-average shares outstanding: 26,111,201 26,111,201
    Basic
Incremental shares from assumed conversion of
options 1,443,322 —
Diluted shares 27,554,523 26,111,201

Note 3.          Inventory

Inventory consists of the following:

February 28, May 31,
2013 2012

Raw materials $ 647,879 $ 593,225
Finished goods 461,428 363,413
Total inventory $ 1,109,307 $ 956,638

Note 4.          Related Party Transactions

Yorktown Management & Financial Services, LLC (“Yorktown”), an entity wholly owned by Greystone’s CEO and President, owns
certain equipment that Greystone uses for its pallet and resin production. Greystone pays advances to Yorktown in recognition of the
amounts owed pursuant to certain agreements.  As of February 28, 2013, Greystone has a receivable from Yorktown in the amount of
$2,985,051.  Mr. Kruger has agreed that, if necessary, the amounts due Greystone should be offset against certain amounts that
Greystone owes him or Yorktown.  At February 28, 2013, the offset against the net advances is the combined total of (i) the accrued
interest of $802,551 payable to Mr. Kruger, (ii) advances payable to Mr. Kruger of $513,180 and (iii) an account payable of
$720,000 for deferred compensation payable to Mr. Kruger.
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Effective February 1, 2013, the arrangement between Greystone and Yorktown whereby Yorktown provided the pelletizing
equipment and received a 40% share of the gross profit from the sale of pelletized resin was replaced by an arrangement whereby
Greystone will pay Yorktown a fee of $0.02 per pound for utilization of Yorktown’s pelletizing equipment. Also, Greystone no longer
purchases raw materials for pallet production from Yorktown and the grinding fee for utilization of Yorktown’s equipment was
increased to $0.05 per pound.

Note 5.          Notes Payable

Notes payable as of February 28, 2013 and May 31, 2012 are as follows:

February 28, May 31,
2013 2012

Note payable to F&M Bank & Trust Company,
prime rate of interest not less than 4.5%, due
March 13, 2015, monthly principal payments of
$76,561 plus interest $ 4,573,333 $ 5,226,665

Note payable by variable interest entity to F&M
Bank & Trust Company, prime rate of interest
but not less than 4.75%, due March 15, 2014,
monthly installments of $35,512, secured by
buildings and land 3,431,356 3,623,070

Capitalized lease payable, due August 15, 2016,
5% interest, monthly payments of $10,625 plus
$0.50 per pallet for monthly sales in excess of 12,500 417,492 481,597

Note payable to BancFirst, prime rate of interest
plus 1%, paid June 2012 — 8,047

Note payable to Robert Rosene, 7.5% interest,
due January 15, 2015 2,066,000 2,066,000

Note payable to Warren Kruger, 7.5% interest,
due January 15, 2015 527,716 527,716

Other notes payable 88,962 110,778
11,104,859 12,043,873

Less: Current portion 1,291,736  1,286,312
Long-term Debt $ 9,813,123 $ 10,757,561

Greystone, GSM, GRE, Warren F. Kruger, President and CEO, and Robert B. Rosene, Jr., a director, are parties to a loan agreement
dated as of March 4, 2005, as amended (the “Loan Agreement”), with F&M Bank & Trust Company (“F&M”).  The Loan Agreement (a)
includes cross-collateralization and cross-default provisions among property and debts of GSM and GRE, an entity owned by
Messrs. Kruger and Rosene, and Messrs. Kruger and Rosene, as owners of
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Greystone’s Series 2003 Preferred Stock (debt in the amount of approximately $3,400,000 owed by Messrs. Kruger and Rosene to
F&M is collateralized by the preferred stock), (b) contains certain financial covenants, and (c) restricts the payments of dividends.
Greystone’s note payable to F&M is secured by Greystone’s cash, accounts receivable, inventory and equipment.

On March 1, 2013, F&M and GSM entered into a Fourth Amendment (the “Fourth Amendment”) to the Loan Agreement.  The Fourth
Amendment (a) has an effective date of February 28, 2013, (b) extends the maturity date of the loan from F&M to GSM under the
Loan Agreement (the “Loan”) to March 13, 2015, and (c) increases the amount of the Loan by $250,000. The loan increase of
$250,000 was funded on March 1, 2013, whereby the outstanding principal balance of the Loan became $4,823,333.  In connection
with the execution of the Fourth Amendment, (y) Greystone ratified its existing guaranty of GSM’s obligations under the Loan
Agreement, and (z) GSM executed a promissory note in favor of F&M, whereby GSM promises to repay the Loan.

Note 6.          Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating the fair-value disclosures for financial instruments:

Long-Term Debt: The carrying amount of loans with floating rates of interest approximate fair value.  Fixed rate loans are valued
based on cash flows using estimated rates of comparable loans.  The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet approximate fair
value.

Note 7.          Risks and Uncertainties

Greystone derives a substantial portion of its revenue from a national brewer.  This customer accounted for approximately 67% and
68% of Greystone’s pallet sales and 59% and 57% of Greystone’s total sales for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012, respectively.  Greystone’s recycled plastic pallets are approved for use by the customer and, at the current time,
are the only plastic pallets used by the customer for shipping products. There is no assurance that Greystone will retain this
customer’s business at the same level, or at all.  The loss of a material amount of business from this customer could have a material
adverse effect on Greystone.

Warren F. Kruger, President and CEO, Robert B. Rosene, Jr., a Greystone director, have provided financing and guarantees on
Greystone’s bank debt.  As of February 28, 2013, Greystone is indebted to Mr. Kruger in the amount of $527,716 for a note payable
and to Mr. Rosene in the amount of $3,548,701 for a note payable and related accrued interest.  Effective January 15, 2012, Messrs.
Kruger and Rosene agreed to a two year extension on the debt.  There is no assurance that these individuals will continue to provide
extensions in the future.

See Note 5 for a discussion of the cross-default and cross-collateralization provisions contained in the loan agreement dated as of
March 4, 2005, as amended, with F&M.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Results of Operations

General to All Periods

The unaudited consolidated statements include Greystone Logistics, Inc., its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Greystone
Manufacturing, L.L.C. (“GSM”), and Plastic Pallet Production, Inc. (“PPP”).  Greystone also consolidates its variable interest entities,
Greystone Real Estate, L.L.C. (“GRE”), and GLOG Investment, L.L.C. (“GLOG”), except that GLOG was deconsolidated effective
September 1, 2011.  All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

References to fiscal year 2013 refer to the nine-month and three-month periods ended February 28, 2013, as applicable.  References
to fiscal year 2012 refer to the nine-month and three-month periods ended February 29, 2012, as applicable.

Sales

Greystone's primary focus is to provide quality plastic pallets to its existing customers while continuing its marketing efforts to
broaden its customer base.  Greystone's existing customers are primarily located in the United States and engaged in the beverage,
pharmaceutical and other industries.  Greystone has generated and plans to continue to generate interest in its pallets by attending
trade shows sponsored by industry segments that would benefit from Greystone's products.  Greystone hopes to gain wider product
acceptance by marketing the concept that the widespread use of plastic pallets could greatly reduce the destruction of trees on a
worldwide basis.  Greystone’s marketing is conducted through contract distributors, its President and other employees.

Greystone derives a substantial portion of its revenue from a national brewer.  This customer accounted for approximately 67% and
68% of Greystone’s pallet sales and 59% and 57% of Greystone’s total sales for the nine-month periods ended February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012, respectively.

Personnel

Greystone had approximately 94 full-time employees as of February 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012.

Taxes

Prior to fiscal year 2012, Greystone generated substantial net operating losses (“NOLs”) which would normally have reflected a tax
benefit in the statement of operations during the
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periods in which the NOLs were incurred.  However, in assessing the reliability of recognizing estimated tax benefits from utilization
of NOLs, management considers the likelihood of whether it is more likely than not the tax benefit will be realized.  Based on this
evaluation, management provided a full valuation allowance for these NOLs prior to fiscal year 2012. Greystone recognized no
provision for income taxes for fiscal years 2013 or 2012 as tax incurred on net income was offset by the utilization of prior period
NOLs.  Furthermore, in fiscal year 2013, Greystone reduced its valuation allowance and recognized a tax benefit of $226,900 and
$17,600 for the nine-months and three-months ended February 28, 2013, respectively, due to management’s current assessment of
future profitability and ultimate expected realization of prior period NOLs.

Based upon a review of its income tax filing positions, Greystone believes that its positions would be sustained upon an audit by the
Internal Revenue Service and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material change to its financial position.
Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded. At February 28, 2013, Greystone had no unrecognized
tax benefits.

Nine Month Period Ended February 28, 2013 Compared to Nine Month Period Ended February 29, 2012

Sales
Sales for fiscal year 2013 were $16,705,437 compared to $16,872,981 in fiscal year 2012 for a decrease of $167,544.  This decrease
in total sales from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2013 was the result of a $712,254 decrease in resin sales offset by an increase in
pallet sales of $544,710.

Pallet sales were $14,609,391, or 87% of total sales, in fiscal year 2013 compared to $14,064,681, or 83% of total sales, in fiscal year
2012 for an increase of $544,710 or 4%. There was an increase of 10% in the number of pallets sold in fiscal year 2013 over fiscal
year 2012; however, the product mix in fiscal year 2013 included 28% of Greystone’s nestable pallets compared to 22% in fiscal year
2012.  The nestable pallet is Greystone’s lowest priced pallet.

Greystone’s sales to its major customer in fiscal year 2013 were 67% of total pallet sales compared to 68% of total pallet sales in
fiscal year 2012. Pallet sales to Greystone’s major customer are generally based on the customer’s need to maintain its pallet inventory
and may vary by period.  Greystone cannot predict the customer’s future needs to maintain or grow its pallet inventory but has been
able to grow sales to new pallet customers developed through Greystone’s marketing efforts to broaden its customer base.

Sales of recycled plastic resin were $2,096,046 in fiscal year 2013 compared to $2,808,300 in fiscal year 2012 for a decrease of
$712,254.  Greystone has curtailed its sales of resin during fiscal year 2013 due to unfavorable margins with respect to the cost of
material compared to the resale pricing values.  Greystone intends to place more emphasis on the sale of resin as market conditions
improve.
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Cost of Sales
Cost of sales in fiscal year 2013 was $13,467,061, or 81% of sales, compared to $13,821,507, or 82% of sales, in fiscal year 2012.
Cost of sales for pallets as a percent of pallet sales were 76% for fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

The ratio of cost of resin sales to resin sales was approximately 112% in fiscal year 2013 compared to 111% in fiscal year 2012.  The
increase in the ratio of cost of sales to sales from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2013 was due to an increase in production costs as a
result of the addition of a new pelletizing line which was offset in part by an improvement in gross profit margins before production
costs.  Yorktown Management, LLC (“Yorktown”), an entity owned by Warren Kruger, Greystone’s President and CEO, provides the
pelletizing equipment and receives a 40% share of the gross profit before production costs (defined as revenue less material, freight
and commissions). Effective February 1, 2013, this arrangement between Greystone and Yorktown was terminated, and Greystone
will instead pay Yorktown a fee of $0.02 per pound for utilization of Yorktown’s pelletizing equipment.

General, Selling and Administrative Expenses
General, selling and administrative expenses were $1,573,995 in fiscal year 2013 compared to $1,454,146 in fiscal year 2012 for an
increase of $119,849. The increase in general, selling and administrative expenses was primarily due to increases in salaries of
$71,126, stock compensation costs of $40,068 and audit fees of $31,292 offset by a decrease in travel expense of
$36,130.   Greystone had no stock compensation costs in fiscal year 2012.

Interest Expense
Interest expense was $620,022 in fiscal year 2013 compared to $680,480 in fiscal year 2012 for a decrease of $60,458.  Interest
expense in fiscal year 2012 included approximately $45,000 for the variable interest entity, GLOG, which was deconsolidated
effective September 1, 2011.

Benefit from Income Taxes
Benefit from income taxes was $226,900 and $-0- in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. See “Taxes” in this Item 2 as to the
increase in the benefit for Greystone’s NOLs.

Net Income
Greystone recorded net income of $1,227,759 compared to $914,939 in fiscal year 2012 for the reasons discussed above.

Net Income Attributable to Common Stockholders
Net income available to common stockholders for fiscal year 2013 was $882,998, or $0.03 per share, compared to $657,996, or
$0.03 per share, in fiscal year 2012 for the reasons discussed above.
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Three Month Period Ended February 28, 2013 Compared to Three Month Period Ended February 29, 2012

Sales
Sales for fiscal year 2013 were $4,517,453 compared to $4,875,856 in fiscal year 2012 for a decrease of $358,403.  This decrease in
total sales from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2013 was the result of a $376,424 decrease in pallet sales offset by an increase in resin
sales of $18,021.

Pallet sales were $3,955,555, or 88% of total sales, in fiscal year 2013 compared to $4,331,979, or 89% of total sales, in fiscal year
2012 for a decrease of $376,424 or 9%. The number of pallets sold in fiscal year 2013 over 2012 increased 16%; however, the
product mix in fiscal year 2013 included 46% of Greystone’s nestable pallets compared to 26% in fiscal year 2012.  The nestable
pallet is Greystone’s lowest priced pallet.

Greystone’s sales to its major customer in fiscal year 2013 were 50% of total pallet sales compared to 53% of total pallet sales in
fiscal year 2012. Pallet sales to Greystone’s major customer are generally based on the customer’s need to maintain its pallet inventory
and may vary by period.  Greystone cannot predict the customer’s future needs to maintain or grow its pallet inventory but has been
able to grow sales to new pallet customers developed through Greystone’s marketing efforts to broaden its customer base.

Sales of recycled plastic resin were $561,898 in fiscal year 2013 compared to $543,877 in fiscal year 2012 for an increase of
$18,021.  Greystone has curtailed its sales of resin during fiscal years 2013 and 2012 due to unfavorable margins with respect to the
cost of material compared to the resale pricing values.  Greystone intends to place more emphasis on the sale of resin as market
conditions improve.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales in fiscal year 2013 was $3,687,258, or 82% of sales, compared to $3,960,606, or 81% of sales, in fiscal year 2012. Cost
of sales for pallets as a percent of pallet sales were 76% for fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

The ratio of cost of resin sales to resin sales was approximately 124% in fiscal years 2013 and 2012.  Yorktown, an entity owned by
Warren Kruger, Greystone’s President and CEO, provides the pelletizing equipment and receives a 40% share of the gross profit
before production costs (defined as revenue less material, freight and commissions).  Effective February 1, 2013, this arrangement
between Greystone and Yorktown was terminated, and Greystone will instead pay Yorktown a fee of $0.02 per pound for utilization
of Yorktown’s pelletizing equipment.

General, Selling and Administrative Expenses
General, selling and administrative expenses were $472,912 in fiscal year 2013 compared to $554,801 in fiscal year 2012 for a
decrease of $81,889. The decrease in fiscal year 2013 over fiscal year 2012 was principally due to decreases in commission expense
of $60,988 and travel expense of $34,897 offset by an increase in stock compensation costs of $13,356.  Greystone had no stock
compensation costs in fiscal year 2012.
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Benefit from Income Taxes
Benefit from income taxes was $17,600 and $-0- in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. See “Taxes” in this Item 2 as to the
increase in the benefit for Greystone’s NOLs.

Net Income
Greystone recorded net income of $174,215 compared to $163,798 in fiscal year 2012 for the reasons discussed above.

Net Income Attributable to Common Stockholders
Net income available to common stockholders for fiscal year 2013 was $48,390, or $0.00 per share, compared to $34,062, or $0.00
per share, in fiscal year 2012 for the reasons discussed above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Greystone’s operations have provided positive cash flows for each of the years beginning in fiscal year 2007 through the nine month
period ended February 28, 2013. While these positive cash flows have been beneficial to Greystone’s ability to finance its operations,
Greystone will require additional cash to achieve continued growth and to meet Greystone's contractual obligations. Greystone
continues to explore various options including refinancing long-term debt and equity financing.  However, there is no guarantee that
Greystone will be able to raise sufficient capital to meet these obligations.

A summary of cash flows for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 is as follows:

Cash provided by operating activities $1,512,393

Cash used in investing activities  (320,651 )

Cash used in financing activities (1,004,320 )

The contractual obligations of Greystone are as follows:

Total
Less than
1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years

More than
5 years

Long-term debt $ 11,104,859 $ 1,291,736 $ 7,136,343 $ 2,676,780 $ -0-

Greystone had a working capital deficit of $(3,662,498) at February 28, 2013 compared to a working capital deficit at May 31, 2012
of $(4,165,900) for an improvement of $503,402.  Excluding preferred dividends payable, the working capital deficit at February 28,
2013 would be $(493,527).  To provide for the funding to meet Greystone's operating activities and contractual obligations as of
February 28, 2013, Greystone will have to continue to produce positive operating results or explore various options including
long-term debt and equity financing.  However, there is no guarantee that Greystone will continue to create positive operating results
or be able to raise sufficient capital to meet these obligations.
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Substantially all of the financing that Greystone has received through the last few fiscal years resulted from loans provided by certain
officers and directors of Greystone and bank loans which are guaranteed by certain officers and directors of Greystone.

Greystone continues to be dependent upon its officers and directors to provide and/or secure additional financing and there is no
assurance that its officers and directors will continue to do so.  As such, there is no assurance that funding will be available for
Greystone to continue operations.

Greystone has 50,000 outstanding shares of cumulative 2003 Preferred Stock with a liquidation preference of $5,000,000 and a
preferred dividend rate of the prime rate of interest plus 3.25%.  Greystone does not anticipate that it will make cash dividend
payments to any holders of its preferred stock or its common stock unless and until the financial position of Greystone improves
through increased revenues, another financing transaction or otherwise.

Forward Looking Statements and Material Risks

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes certain statements that may be deemed "forward-looking statements" within the
meaning of federal securities laws.  All statements, other than statements of historical fact, that address activities, events or
developments that Greystone expects, believes or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including decreased costs, securing
financing, the profitability of Greystone, potential sales of pallets or other possible business developments, are forward-looking
statements.  Such statements are subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking statements
contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q could be affected by any of the following factors: Greystone's prospects could be
affected by changes in availability of raw materials, competition, rapid technological change and new legislation regarding
environmental matters; Greystone may not be able to secure additional financing necessary to sustain and grow its operations; and a
material portion of Greystone's business is and will be dependent upon a few large customers and there is no assurance that
Greystone will be able to retain such customers.  These risks and other risks that could affect Greystone's business are more fully
described in Greystone's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012, which was filed on September 14, 2012.  Actual results
may vary materially from the forward-looking statements.  Greystone undertakes no duty to update any of the forward-looking
statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Not applicable.

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, Greystone carried out an evaluation under the
supervision of Greystone's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
Greystone's disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e).  Based on an
evaluation as of May 31, 2012, Warren F. Kruger, Greystone's Chief Executive Officer, and William W. Rahhal, Greystone’s Chief
Financial Officer, identified two material weaknesses in Greystone's internal control over financial reporting.  As of the end of
the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, such material weaknesses had not been rectified. As a result of the
continuation of these two material weaknesses, Greystone’s CEO and Chief Financial Officer concluded that Greystone's disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective at February 28, 2013.

During the three-month period ended February 28, 2013, there were no changes in Greystone's internal controls over financial
reporting that have materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, Greystone's internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART II.  OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.   Legal Proceedings.

None.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Not applicable.

Item 2.   Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None.

Item 3.   Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4.   Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5.   Other Information.

None.
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Item 6.  Exhibits.

10.1Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K
filed by the registrant on March 12, 2013).

10.2Promissory Note dated February 28, 2013, executed by Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. in favor of The F&M Bank & Trust
Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 8-K filed by the registrant on March 12, 2013).

11.1 Computation of Earnings per Share is in Note 2 in the Notes to consolidated financial statements.

31.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

31.2Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.2Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

101 Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets at February 28, 2013
and May 31, 2012, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012, and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (submitted herewith).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

GREYSTONE LOGISTICS, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: April 22, 2013 /s/ Warren F. Kruger
Warren F. Kruger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: April 22, 2013 /s/ William W. Rahhal
William W. Rahhal
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)
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Index to Exhibits

10.1Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated March 4, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K
filed by the registrant on March 12, 2013).

10.2Promissory Note dated February 28, 2013, executed by Greystone Manufacturing, L.L.C. in favor of The F&M Bank & Trust
Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 8-K filed by the registrant on March 12, 2013).

11.1 Computation of Earnings per Share is in Note 2 in the Notes to consolidated financial statements.

31.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 (submitted herewith).

31.2Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32.2Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

101Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets at February 28, 2013 and May
31, 2012, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012, (iii)
the Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended February 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012, (iv) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012, and (v) the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements (submitted herewith).
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